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Established in 1994, the China Development Bank (hereinafter referred to as CDB or
the Bank) is a state-funded and state-owned development finance institution (DFI).
As an independent legal entity directly overseen by the State Councll, it is dedicated
to supporting China’s economic development in key industries and under-developed
sectors.
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To anchor its mission of supporting national development and delivering a better life for the
people, CDB aligns its business focus with China’s major medium and long-term economic
development strategies. Tapping into its strengths as a DFI, CDB keeps closely to national
development strategies, operates on market principles with the backing of sovereign credit, and
ensures principal safety and modest profitability. Adhering to the development finance methods
for building consensus and synergy and seeking win-win cooperation, CDB mobilizes, guides
and allocates economic resources to increase support for key industries and underdeveloped
sectors and boost high quality economic and social development. CDB mainly supports the
following key areas: (1) Socioeconomic development, such as infrastructure, basic industries,
pillar industries, public services and management; (2) Urbanization, urban-rural integration and
balanced regional development; (3) Programs essential for national competitiveness, including
the transformation, upgrading, and restructuring of traditional industries, energy conservation,
environmental protection, and advanced equipment manufacturing; (4) Public welfare, including
affordable housing, consolidation of poverty alleviation achievements, rural revitalization, student
loans, and inclusive finance; (5) Areas of strategic importance, including science and technology,
and people-to-people exchange; (6) The Belt and Road Initiative (BRI), international cooperation
in industrial capacity, manufacturing, infrastructure connectivity, energy and resources, and “Go
Global” Chinese enterprises; (7) Initiatives in support of development and economic and financial
reforms; (8) Other areas encouraged by national development strategies and policies.

Acting on the new development philosophy and placing a strong premium on reform and
innovation, CDB brings into play its role as a DFl in promoting government development goals,
compensating for market failures, improving resource allocation efficiency, and alleviating cyclical
economic fluctuations. CDB implements a people-centered approach to development to provide
high quality support to the national strategies, plans and policy objectives, putting itself on track
to be a world-class, modern DFI and a strong force of financial support for China’s sustained and
sound economic and social development.
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The year 2022 was of great significance in the history of the Communist Party of China (CPC) and the country.
The CPC successfully convened its 20th National Congress, drawing up a grand blueprint for building a modern
socialist country in all respects. Under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade
Xi Jinping at its core, CDB implemented the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress, and
acquired a deep understanding of the decisive significance of the establishment of both Comrade Xi Jinping’s
core position in the CPC Central Committee and in the CPC as a whole and the guiding role of Xi Jinping
Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era. CDB demonstrated its commitment to
political integrity, thinking in big-picture terms, following the leadership core and keeping in alignment with the
central Party leadership; staying confident in the path, the theory, the system and the culture of socialism with
Chinese characteristics; and firmly upholding General Secretary Xi Jinping’s core position in the CPC Central
Committee and in the CPC as a whole, and upholding the Central Committee’s authority and its centralized,
unified leadership. CDB spared no effort to make its financial services more politically-oriented and people-
centered and firmly stay on the path of financial advancement with Chinese characteristics. While advancing
the coordination of pandemic response with economic and social development, it supported the real economy,
managed financial risks and deepened financial reforms, making headway across all lines of business and
contributing to the social and economic development. At the end of 2022, the CDB group’s total assets stood
at RMB18.2 trillion. With a group-wide net profit of RMB84.34 billion, it achieved high quality development while
supporting state strategies.
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Implementing national monetary and credit policies and stepping up investment and
financing. CDB answered the call of the CPC Central Committee for ensuring effective
pandemic response, economic stability and development security and implemented the national
macro regulatory requirements, helping boost effective investments and contributing to a stable
economy. CDB developed an action plan for the implementation of a package of detailed policy
measures to further stabilize the economy issued by the State Council. With a view to enabling
relevant policies to produce full effect early on, CDB took the initative to shoulder responsibility,
issued over RMBS3 ftrillion of loans in domestic and foreign currencies and on-lending loans to
micro and small businesses over the year, with the balance of loans increasing by RMB1.06
trillion.

Supporting infrastructure development in keeping with the Bank’s development finance
mandate. CDB took advantage of its medium- and long-term loans and gave full play to CDB
Infrastructure Investment Fund in priority areas such as networked infrastructure, infrastructure
for industrial upgrade, urban infrastructure, agricultural and rural infrastructure and national
security-related infrastructure, and provided long-term, stable and market-based capital for
infrastructure development. It issued RMB1.4 trillion of infrastructure loans and invested
RMB425.6 billion out of CDB Infrastructure Investment Fund throughout the year, helping build a
modern infrastructure system.
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Improving the loan portfolio to support key sectors of national strategic importance. CDB actively supported
technological innovation and manufacturing, granted low-cost funding to more micro and small businesses in
more sectors, and provided targeted services to specialized and sophisticated SMEs. It increased support for
balanced regional development, and contributed to high quality regional development by leveraging complementary
advantages. CDB stepped up support to people’s livelihood, rural vitalization, affordable housing and the elderly care
service system. It offered interest-free student loans and allowed deferred repayment of principal. It followed the
responsible financing philosophy and advanced high quality Belt and Road cooperation. It issued green loans on a
larger scale with the amount of green bonds hitting RMB51 billion, mobilizing funds across society to deliver a strong
boost to green and low-carbon development.
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Tackling risks more effectively to enhance sustainable growth capacity. With a keen appreciation of the risk
landscape, CDB has been improving its risk management system and refining its risk management mechanism
and procedures. It highlighted risk detection and early warning and enhanced risk management in priority areas. It
continued to manage risks in a proper manner, made greater efforts to recover non-performing loans (NPL) after
write-offs, and improved the quality and performance of risk management and mitigation. The Bank launched the
Year of Internal Control Mechanism Building to strengthen internal control and compliance on credit business. It
ensured that such measures applied to all its subsidiaries in an effort to enhance group-wide risk management.

Improving internal governance to enhance capacity for governance and management. CDB faithfully
carried out the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council on reforming and
improving policy-based finance, delivered reform measures, and steered the whole bank to better respond to
national strategies while focusing on its mandate. It improved corporate governance in sync with the consolidation
of the Party’s leadership, combining the leadership of the CPC CDB Committee with the decision-making of the
Board of Directors and the management of the senior management in line with authorization. It coordinated the
implementation of strategic plans, strengthened the management of assets and liabilities and group-wide financial
management, deepened the digital transformation, and promoted the successful operation of the new-generation
system to strengthen its operation support capacity.

In promoting the new development paradigm and boosting high quality development, we had a deeper
understanding of development finance as we have entered a new era and embarked on the new journey. We
must uphold the centralized leadership of the CPC Central Committee, and firmly implement the decisions and
instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council. We must stay people-centered and root our
actions in the overall national interests. We must take our political responsibilities during the reform and fulfil our
duties. We must coordinate development and security and promote high quality development. We must apply a
systemic approach, upholding fundamental principles and breaking new grounds. We must ensure that the political
responsibility for governance over the Party is fulfilled and enforce strict Party self-governance.

The year 2023 marks the start of fully implementing the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress. The
blueprint has been drawn up and it is time we work arduously. We will rally more closely around the CPC Central
Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at its core, study, publicize and implement the guiding principles of the 20th
CPC National Congress in the reform, development and management of CDB with higher morale and in a down-to-
earth manner, so as to better play our role as a DFI. We will give substantial support to the real economy and key
sectors of strategic importance. We will keep improving governance by prioritizing risk management and reform, so
as to make new contributions to a good start in the building of a modern socialist country in all respects.
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IMPORTANT NOTIGE

AITEES2023FE RSN TF2023F 4827 HE UGBS R EFEEIRS
KiFPEC LS ITHENNERM SRS EMNRE 2022 FEM S IRECEKIEEITINESH (S5 LB
E1) AR REREMEREDENTIT, FHERELRBENHNEFITIRS .

The Board of Directors reviewed and approved this report at fourth meeting in the 2023 financial year (the calendar year as
adopted by the Bank) on 27 April 2023.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2022 are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting
Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP
has audited these financial statements in accordance with Auditing Standards for the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and
International Standards on Auditing, and has issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.

BERIENR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

JEE AR ERFFLIRIT (EHIR: FFERIT)

EEEX G CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (485 : CDB)
EEREA: X

EMRTA ARM4,212.4812 7T

SEAR L : IEERTAEBXEXTNAE18S

MR E RS - 100031

B : 86-10-6830 6688

f£H: 86-10-6830 6699

[l www.cdb.com.cn

Registered Name in Chinese:

Registered Name in English:
Legal Representative:
Registered Capital:
Registered Address:

Post Code:

Telephone:

Facsimile:

Website:

ERFF & $R1T (shortened to FFARIT)

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (abbreviated as CDB)
ZHAO Huan

RMB421,248 million

18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
100031

86-10-6830 6688

86-10-6830 6699

www.cdb.com.cn
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l A 55 476 5
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(847 : ARM101Z7Tsk & 2 b Billion RMB or %)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
24 m
B 18,243.1 17,167.9 17,103.6 16,504.6 16,179.8
Total Assets
BARBHRAE
Gross Loans and Advances to Customers 14,474.9 13,262.5 13,049.9 12,200.5 11,678.9
TREHRE 9 9 9 9 9
Non-Performing Loan Ratio 0-78% 0-84% 0.79% 0.95% 0.92%
BB EER
Allowance to Total Loans Ratio 4.28% 3.0 BEE 2R R %
IS8R G
A 16,637.5 15,629.7 15,623.0 15,110.8 14,879.1
Total Liabilities
g g e
E’gﬂﬂ*’“ﬁ.% 12,126.0 11,480.4 10,722.1 9,735.8 9,108.4
Debt Securities Issued
FRE%W@ 1,605.6 1,538.3 1,480.6 1,393.7 1,300.7
Total Equity
R
Profit for the Year 84.3 80.8 118.8 118.5 112.1
AATRE 11.37% 11.66% 12.03% 11.71% 11.81%

Capital Adequacy Ratio

A1 RFEERE (BRMFEIN) R SEERERETRERLSITHENRE, BRESIRAN, ARTEMEFASEITORE, LA
RMARmro

F2: FRPRARCEZRBHPERTREEEEEZRS (UTHRRERS (B URTEREENE (X7 SHEXMETE.
FARBNN, REEREMBEATEZARBEHNEFHORZ.

Note 1: All the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards and, unless
otherwise specified, the consolidated data of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Note 2: The capital adequacy ratio in the above table has been calculated in accordance with relevant regulations including the Capital Rules for Commercial
Banks (Provisional ) issued by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC). Unless otherwise stated, the capital adequacy ratio is a
consolidated figure.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

s meRERRMRETIIE)
CTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

4 RE 5 HEFR 1EERAT 8]
Full Name Title of Position Gender  Date of Birth In Office Since
B EERK NTES 5 19634128 2018114
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963 November 2018
E BESEK . HTES. 7K 5 1966406 A
TAN Jiong* Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President M June 1966
CREN HMATES BIfTK e 1969404 B 20224104
XU Shouben Executive Director*, Executive Vice President M April 1969 October 2022
EER HEES e 19624128 2017410AR
LIAN Weiliang Government Agency Director M December 1962 October 2017
WES WEEE =3 1963%09H 2022%07A
XU Hongcai Government Agency Director M September 1963  July 2022
By e WEEE i 19714078 20234048
GUO Tingting Government Agency Director F July 1971 April 2023
BN HEEE e 19584058 20174104
ZHANG Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1958 October 2017
KES BINEE = 1966503 8 20174108
ZHANG Shenghui  Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
#EiNE BANES s 19634058 2021408H
CUI Hanzhong Equity Director M May 1963 August 2021
B ok BINES 2 1966401 H 2022%02A8
TAN Long Equity Director M January 1966 February 2022
BERE" KiNES heg 1968401 H
GE Rongrong* Equity Director F January 1968
SR BNEE Z 19704108
ZHANG Lusong* Equity Director F October 1970
KB BIEE s 1968406 B 20194014
ZHANG Yong Equity Director M June 1968 January 2019
SR BINES 2 1966408 B
FAN Kejun* Equity Director M August 1966
RIEF TR LA IR ERA A K e 19624088 20194014
SONG Xianping Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision M August 1962 January 2019
KR EIEER:S 2 1972404 8 20214028
ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President M April 1972 February 2021
X BT =3 1976504 H 20214094
LIU Jin Executive Vice President M April 1976 September 2021
ESER BT ES 1968403 8 2022108
WANG Weidong Executive Vice President M March 1968 October 2022
=ME EEWP s 19655128 20224104
LI Huachang Secretary of the Board of Directors M December 1965 October 2022
7EE HEHITE “ 19655118 20204098
YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer F November 1965 September 2020
X|$E 5 aELSE s 1964508 B 2021404 A
LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer M August 1964 April 2021
S HEAKRE -3 1966508 A 20224108

M

h
WANG Zhong

Chief Risk Officer

August 1966

October 2022
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Full Name Title of Position Gender  Date of Birth In Office
BIEE. SEEBHR
Directors and Senior Management Members Leaving Office
BHDE BIESK HTESR. TK Ee 19634014 20194128 —2023402H
OUYANG Weimin  Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President M January 1963 December 2019-February 2023
AEE HITES. BIITK 2 1962509 A 20175108 —2022407H
ZHOU Qingyu Executive Director, Executive Vice President M September 1962  October 2017-July 2022
EIlE HEEE T 1963506 A 20194058 —2022407H
Z0U Jiayi Government Agency Director F June 1963 May 2019-July 2022
RN HEES 3 19674028 20178108 —20234F04 B
LI Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017-April 2023
e/ RINEE 2 1963504 20204088 —2023%03H
WU Zhenpeng Equity Director M April 1963 August 2020-March 2023
B R EELWP B 1962407 B 2008128 —2022F108
CHEN Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008-October 2022

BEAAEEREHNER .

* Please refer to the Changes to the Board of Directors and Senior Management in this chapter.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BR BEK NTER. SEPERRRITLAIVSHALELE, BIHHTRITK, AR USMIEE, EBEHHT
TR, FERZRRITEIITRK, FEXX (£HA) 2248 PEXREARMATHTESTRIACRRITNITES. 7K, B E
RIBITRIFEEK. 17K

ZHAO Huan is Chairman and Executive Director of CDB. Prior to joining CDB, he held various positions successively in China Construction Bank
(CCB), including Deputy General Manager of Corporate Business Department, Deputy General Manager of Xiamen Branch, General Manager of
Corporate Business Department, General Manager of Shanghai Branch, and Executive Vice President. He also served as Executive Director of
China Everbright (Group) Corporation and China Everbright Group Ltd. and concurrently Executive Director and President of China Everbright
Bank; and Vice Chairman and President of Agricultural Bank of China (ABC).

Bl BEEK ITES OK(EREBEHSFRRESIZE) . BEERERTEBBGRMTATK(ERIE) TK,
ZEEMITK, PRESEEARATESEK, PERGTS REATHK, PEIRRGTHITES AITK, SMNEAR
HAEIEK, ABAREARR, RMNEEEE. RAEBK, SBHRARBIC ().

TAN Jiong is Vice Chairman, Executive Director, and President of CDB (pending confirmation by the CBIRC). Previously, he served as Deputy
General Manager (acting general manager) and General Manager of Bank of China (BOC) Tibet Branch, General Manager of BOC Yunnan
Branch, Chairman of Bank of China Investment Management Co., Ltd., General Manager of BOC Guangdong Branch, Executive Director and
Executive Vice President of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC), Vice Governor of Guizhou Provincial People’s Government,
member of the Party Leadership Group of Guizhou Provincial People’s Government, member of the Standing Committee of CPC Guizhou
Provincial Committee, Head of the United Front Work Department of CPC Guizhou Provincial Committee, and concurrently Deputy Secretary of
the Party Leadership Group of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) Guizhou Committee.

BIFE PITES (TREREFRAKSIZE)  BITK. EEFEIFRIT REoTalTK, RYITHTTK, BFE
ITRERITAEITK
XU Shouben is Executive Director (pending confirmation by the CBIRC) and Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he held various

positions successively in the ICBC, including Deputy General Manager of Guangdong Branch, General Manager of Shenzhen Branch, and
Executive Vice President of ICBC.
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E4ER MEEZ . GEHZIHEK MERL, EHETHK. TZEIPIE, THEEEE EEHERE THEEEE.
BMNTERRE, BERERNAEZERREI T T

LIAN Weiliang is Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously he worked in Henan, serving successively as Mayor and Party Secretary of
Xinxiang; Mayor and Deputy Party Secretary of Luoyang; member of the Standing Committee of CPC Henan Provincial Committee and Party

Secretary of Luoyang; and member of the Standing Committee of CPC Henan Provincial Committee and Party Secretary of Zhengzhou. Then, he
served as Vice Minister of China’s National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC).

WEA NEVERMEEK, R EEBRFRROTHEES. SEVERMEIE T K. K, WEEREKEIE,

XU Hongcai is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Finance (MOF) and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously he served as
Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Budget Department, and Assistant Minister of the MOF.

BEE NEFISMLETK, REEBRFRROTHEZEZ - BEFFEVSIRTK . FK, GE5IFTK, §H MK,

GUO Tingting is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Commerce (MOFCOM) and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously she
held various positions successively in the MOFCOM, including Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Department of Finance,
Director-General of Comprehensive Department, and Assistant Minister of MOFCOM.

KRS HEEF. GEPEARBRTEHEMRRLEFARR, PEREREDESALNITEESRED, FEARR
TErmmBIIK, EMEERIIK, FEARRBRITITKEIE, BEAXZHEBEOSRZRRK,
ZHANG Xiaohui is Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously, she was People’s Bank of China (PBC) Chief Representative for the

Americas, Senior Advisor to China’s IMF Executive Director, Director-General of Department of Financial Markets and Department of Monetary
Policies of PBC, Assistant Governor of PBC, and Dean of Tsinghua University PBC School of Finance.

ke BRNEF. TEERMLEEFBERKRXIRIK, EBREFRIK. K, FEARBRTEENRRLERFE
K%k, BFRINCEEB S 1.
ZHANG Shenghui is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he was Deputy Director-General of Balance of Payments Department of SAFE, Deputy

Director-General and then Director-General of Supervision and Inspection Department of SAFE, PBC Chief Representative for the Americas, and
Chief Accountant of SAFE.

ENE BNEF.QEPRELZREARAS (H8) ERFLEL1E, BRINCEEBRRRINCUSH OB TEREES
B, FEEEORTRNES.
CUI Hanzhong is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he was Managing Director of State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE) Investment

Company Limited (Hong Kong), Deputy Director General and Chief of the General Office of SAFE Investment Center, and Equity Director of the
Export-Import Bank of China.

B BRNESR. BEVBEEEESR OB (BIFKER), MEEEES SO EE, MBEEHREI&EITK. —
RN

TAN Long is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he held positions in MOF successively as Chief Accountant (Deputy-Director-General-Level),
Deputy Director-General of the Treasury Payment Center, and Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of Tax Policy Department.
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BEE RNES (IREARGEFRAESZE) . BEEPEIFRITRNES, ARLERAAERFTELIRITINEE
EBE-#METE . EFLEE IRHEESEEARATIRLES, FAZRREARNDEBRLAIMEAEFRFIEFBRTE
NEEE.

GE Rongrong is Equity Director of CDB (pending confirmation by the CBIRC). She used to be Equity Director of the ICBC, work for Central
Huijin Investment Ltd. as Deputy Director-General of Banking Institution Management Department | and Senior Advisor, and serve as Independent

Director of ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd., and Director of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. and Shenwan Hongyuan
Securities Co., Ltd.

KEH RAET (ERAESHRRESRE) . SETERATRFEATERANBAT DA AR ANAAK. B
QEE EERLE.

ZHANG Lusong is Equity Director of CDB (pending confirmation by the CBIRC). Previously, she held various positions at China Investment
Corporation, including team leader and senior manager of Legal & Compliance Department and then Senior Advisor.

KB ZLARITEFR2022FF /RS WENEY, KERABEEARTRNES (XL ERESBZRNKEWTRARR
REREEZE) BEEFEIHRTEEEEMAZELE, FELHOGHRRRAIRNES.

ZHANG Yong no longer served as Equity Director of CDB (until confirmation by the CBIRC for GE Rongrong or ZHANG Lusong to serve as
Equity Director of CDB) as reviewed at the eighth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2022. Previously, he was Deputy General Manager of
Information Management Department of the ICBC, and Equity Director of China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation.

RARBE EBNESR(ERARSGREARSEE) . BEPRARBFGIA S 1THRXEKE DA ZTENY S ERE K,
WEERR L SRR, BARFRIMESHIRI BT K —RKINR

FAN Kejun is Equity Director of CDB (pending confirmation by the CBIRC). Previously, he served as Deputy Director General of the Department
of Administration and Finance of the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the Macao SAR, and worked in the MOF successively
as Deputy Inspector of the Department of Agriculture, Deputy Director-General and Level 1 Inspector of the Department of Natural Resources and
Ecological Environment.

REF PREZERBZFRERFALRITLELBFHARK. SEFERUBRITHARAZENEE, ARE=AEE. EE T
MEBERTITR, NREERIEE, NEEELS BFRNLEER (= RXREESL) ZEE, PERIRRERITLEDC.

SONG Xianping is Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision of CCDI and NSC at CDB. Previously, he was Secretary of Discipline
Inspection and Supervision of the Agricultural Development Bank of China. Earlier in his career, he worked in the ABC successively as Deputy
Director-General of the General Office, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of the Research Office, General Manager of Jilin
Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department, and Chief Risk Officer and General Manager of Risk Management Department
(Agricultural Business Risk Management Center).

T

KIE BT, BERBRITATREMRELSEZE. DEIE, NKEEL (B-REH) BI2E1E, LBHATET
BEREH) BLE, aRNEERNREERN (RUBEIRE) BE

ZPiL, IMETEITR TR, KEEIEER (
B (E1E).

ZHANG Hui is Executive Vice President of CDB. Before joining CDB, he worked in the Bank of Communications of China as Deputy-General
Manager and then General Manager of Asset Preservation Department; Deputy General Manager of Risk Management Department (Asset
Preservation Department); Deputy General Manager and Disciplinary Secretary of Shanghai Branch; Deputy General Manager and then General
Manager of Guizhou Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department (Asset Preservation Department), Chief Risk Officer and
concurrently General Manager (Director-General) of Risk Management Department (Office of Case Prevention Leadership Team).

-
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Wi BITK. BERERARBITHERMAARZRNETE, XERZINEEEKRZFLHESMZRRK, BERMARZEFE, tEH
PITTK (3.
LIU Jin is Executive Vice President of CDB. He worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of Policy Research Department, Director-

General of Education & Training Department and Dean of CDB Institute of Development Finance, Director-General of Policy Research Department,
and General Manager of CDB Beijing Branch (concurrently ).

FER ATK.BEERALXRTERSHRBEIBEK, EFRSELESBRIBK, RIIMmHTTK, BEFRemBLEES
BEE, BRI TR, IHEITITR
WANG Weidong is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of International

Finance Department, Deputy Director-General of International Cooperation Department, General Manager of Shenzhen Branch, Director-General
of Administration Office of International Finance Department, General Manager of Chongging Branch, and General Manager of Jiangsu Branch.

FUE ZFESUWP ANREBRELE, SEERALRTIFE=ZREIBSK, ATRIFE EESERABK.BK,
AMENTTK, EREEREK, BEASHARREILATEEK. BH, ERALRTASZHEBEK.

LI Huachang is Secretary of the Board of Directors and General Manager of Human Resources Department of CDB. Previously, he worked
successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of Project Appraisal Department Ill, Deputy Director-General of Executive Office, Deputy Director-

General and then Director-General of Legal Department, General Manager of Henan Branch, Director-General of Loan Management Department,
Chairman and President of CDB Capital Co., Ltd., and Director-General of Human Resources Department of CDB.

MEE BEREEITE SIHLEE. ERERALRTVEERIEK, 8288EEK, UaREBEK, FiELEESE
RATIESK, BERALBRITEITEEK
YANG Baohua is Chief Audit Officer and General Manager of Audit Department of CDB. She worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-

General of Finance and Accounting Department, Director-General of Operations Department, Director-General of Finance and Accounting
Department, Chairperson of the China-Africa Development Fund (CADFund), and Director-General of Audit Department.

WFE BERULSE UVSLZERFLDEE. BEERARRTT REATEITK FF_FREIBK. BK, 2ULFHK, W
FERBBK
LIU Peiyong is Chief Business Officer and General Manager of Business Development Department of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at

CDB as Deputy General Manager of Guangdong Branch, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Project Appraisal Department II,
Director-General of Large Corporate Client Department, and Director-General of Business Development Department.

Fh BEEARE. NEERHLSLE. BEERFEARTAZERBK. ERFTNATREAK, EEhLOEE, BR
MEBRK, BIE2TTK, RERBBK.

WANG Zhong is Chief Risk Officer and General Manager of Risk Management Department of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at CDB
as Deputy Director-General of Human Resources Department, Full-time Deputy Chief of Assessment and Evaluation Team, Director-General of
Operations Center, Director-General of Information Technology Department, General Manager of Sichuan Branch, and Director-General of Treasury &
Financial Market Department.
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- EERTRER

L CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BRTEFER2021FHRRSWHWBIHRRARESIE, BEBERTRNES . ERTEEFR2022FFVREN
BB, TR BEATREES EEATEER2022FF RS WHENELSHRBRESRE, RTE . T LREF
FITRITK, ZUBBEXRTEZSUD, TP EEATERARE . AR TER 202285 ) URSNENEY, BES.
KEMBERATRNES, EERERGDGTRALESZE EXTESR2023FE RS WHNEY, RTFAREERT
HITES, HERAEHFRAKSZE. RRITERR20283FE RS WHEINEY, AREBERTENES, EFHR
BREFREREZE ERITEFR2028FE-REWHENBEY, BARABETRITITRKEIRN ERITEER2023F
FERZWEBEY, BABEATRESEK ATES. 7K, HEREARESFRARSEE. RXTEER2023F %
ZXRRWEVEY, BEFEERTHEES.

MAZRABIEERTRIEEK MTES. ITK. BEEABEEIRITHITES . 81171 48115 . TN A FIBERT
HEEE, KB RRBABEIATRNES (KERLEBERESFRIRKENTIRABRRBERESZE). RRAB
BERTEEWB.

As reviewed and approved at the sixth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2021 and confirmed by the CBIRC, TAN Long was appointed as
Equity Director. As reviewed and approved at the sixth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2022, XU Hongcai was appointed as Government
Agency Director. As reviewed and approved at the sixth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2022 and confirmed by the CBIRC, XU Shouben
and WANG Weidong were appointed as Executive Vice President, LI Huachang Secretary of the Board of Directors, and WANG Zhong Chief
Risk Officer. As reviewed at the eighth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2022, GE Rongrong and ZHANG Lusong were appointed as Equity
Director, pending confirmation by the CBIRC. As reviewed at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023, XU Shouben was appointed
as Executive Director, pending confirmation by the CBIRC. As reviewed at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023, FAN Kejun was
appointed as Equity Director, pending confirmation by the CBIRC. As approved by the first meeting of the board in 2023, TAN Jiong is to perform
the duties of the president. As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023, TAN Jiong was appointed as Vice Chairman,
Executive Director, and President, pending confirmation by the CBIRC. As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023, GUO
Tingting was appointed as Government Agency Director.

OUYANG Weimin no longer served as Vice Chairman, Executive Director, and President. ZHOU Qingyu no longer served as Executive Director
and Executive Vice President. ZOU Jiayi and LI Chenggang no longer served as Government Agency Director. ZHANG Yong and WU Zhenpeng
no longer served as Equity Director, with the former continuing his duty until confirmation by the CBIRC for GE Rongrong or ZHANG Lusong to
serve as Equity Director. CHEN Min no longer served as Secretary of the Board of Directors.

A FEFHEIER

ANNUAL REMUNERATION

BRAHMER. RTATAFHRZBCRREBEWVARAFMERETHENVNT, FMENBEEREH . &
REHMEIHEMBN . BEREERETEINATHREARTAEREHFEZNGRTNERATRE, BEFER
Z2EN RREFCASEFHERSHTE FESMAER REEBRTERNETEREFHERTEANIE LA
Ho2022%F , KT IR LRMEMFARABRLEFNRYEHOELMIAE,

Remuneration for executives. The remuneration policy for executives of the Bank is kept in compliance with the Provisional Standards for the
Remuneration of Leading Members of Senior Management of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities. Comprising an annual base
salary, an annual performance-based salary, and term incentives, their salaries are calculated in accordance with the base figure and performance
evaluation results released by the competent state authorities every year. Their remuneration plan must first be adopted by the CPC CDB
Committee and then presented to the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration of the Board of Directors for review. It is filed with
the competent state authorities and announced on the official website of the Bank after approval by the Board of Directors. In 2022, their annual
base salaries and annual performance-based salaries were paid in strict compliance with the above-mentioned standards and regulations.

-
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KITARAMEMSREEAR2022F EFHH1ER

Remuneration of Executives and Other Members of Senior Management in 2022

(&{7: BT 10 Thousand RMB)

2022 FENRITIRGHIBLETFHEN 157

Total Remuneration Before Tax from the Bank in 2022

HEFE, RUES. HRETRE

s Ry — RAEEARSNB B
Full Name Title of Position T Contribution by the Employer
Remuneration . i
Prepaid to Social Insurance, Annuities,
Additional Medical Insurances and
Housing Allowance
2022FFREFRRA
Executives in Office at the End of 2022
2PV EFEERK NTES
ZHAQO Huan Chairman, Executive Director 61.93 17.12
BB R BESK . MITES TK 61.93 1712
OUYANG Weimin Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President ’ ’
RIEF IR ERAAK 55.74 16.84
SONG Xianping Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision : ’
TR HATES. BIITK 23.03 763
XU Shouben Executive Director, Executive Vice President ’ ’
K HE EIESRS
ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President 55.74 16.84
PO EIESR'S
LIU Jin Executive Vice President 55.74 16.84
TR EIESRS
WANG Weidong Executive Vice President 23.23 7.63
2022 FEREFEHMEREEAR
Other Members of Senior Management at the End of 2022
S BEELWB
LI Huachang Secretary of the Board of Directors 20.16 8.72
MERE HESEITE
YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer 121.25 19.00
X|3E & HELSE
LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer 121.18 18.80
* HEXKE
WANG Zhong Chief Risk Officer 20.16 869

CRIBERBXRAE, B2015F1AR, RTARTAHFIZBUBE PREPEWARAFHERGTMENNIT, EFELRN.
F2: ATMEEFNRNESAAERITIREGH
A3 REERBAXNE, RTARANEMSREEAR022FRALFINDERANILIED, FHINESABESETERITHRE.

Note 1: Since January 2015, in accordance with the government regulations, the remuneration for executives of the Bank has been kept in compliance with the
Provisional Standards for the Remuneration of Leading Members of Senior Management of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities, and has
been paid hereby.

Note 2: Government Agency Directors and Equity Directors are not remunerated by the Bank.

Note 3: In accordance with the government regulations, the final remuneration of executives and other members of Senior Management in 2022 is still subject to final
confirmation. Additional details of remuneration will be disclosed when they have been determined.
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RIFHMEE. ATHMEATARERIREIRSMAE THEMEANRMURAMBEXIE, BFIR . Xe 02
W SRR EFEARE. I F£5.20225F , RTARESLATUAR A S AR ORI FEN S E , RETEAL BN o B AN
B, RS EIRAKF . ROMEFEAZSRU2021F T HREMERE T/E, Fi R AL mEE —&r . XA
RRULEZ T, RGBSR FM O ERERL, RIEHFMRRIAEMARER. "REIREEX, HE(ERAXR
RITHRYFHFWERMNEBIEIE (20225F5R) ), H—DHEHRUFHF SR X1TSMBE B REBIIARI TSR
b, BFEAFRZRKE ERXETRKE. K. THMEERRS, 2L E W EHAEG), 28 R THRRK &
. RTIRKE, AMMRIMIVEEZDERARIINEAREZ S RELAFEZREIN, SREREEN M AEAREDE,
KITM2012FRARATRYBGUFS, FRBIRIHW—ELAHREVFSHE, £ R TIRNERITRI#HT R
2022%F , KATHENBFEZEETE, ANMIRZEN, omizEm, BERERE, e hiREEsKsa, REFEM
R K

Remuneration for the staff. Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures in exchange for the services provided by the
staff; these include salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits, social insurance, housing allowance, and annuities. In 2022, the Bank continued
adopting a position- and performance-based salary policy. The remuneration policy was improved to provide more effective management of
performance-based salaries. While properly settling the group-wide payroll in 2021, the Bank continued to give priority to staff working in the
front line, holding key positions and having excellent performance, in resources allocation, aiming to give full play to differentiated performance-
based salary distribution and provide more effective incentives and restraints. The Bank implemented regulatory requirements, released the
Administrative Measures of CDB on the Recovery and Deduction of Performance-based Salaries (2022). To further regulate the management of
performance-based salaries. The Bank joins local government’s social insurance schemes to provide coverage in basic endowment insurance,
healthcare, unemployment, workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly to the premium in accordance with the threshold and
percentage mandated by local authorities. Local social security departments are legally bound to make pension payments to the Bank’s staff
members after their retirement. In addition to the basic pension, CDB, approved and filed by competent state authorities, set up annuity schemes
for its staff in 2012. The accrued amount of annuity is based on a certain percentage of the total salaries and will be paid as planned during

retirement. In 2022, the Bank kept reinforcing the operation and management of annuity, analysed market trends, adjusted the investment
strategies and spared no effort to stabilize fund income amid market volatility, which was to ensure the sustainable growth of annuity.

4 RIIER
STAFF

BZE20228FK, AEBAHBART1,928 N HHFONMRATHEARRIULZF, 7T7T%HNATHEMRERIALZR.

At the end of 2022, CDB had a staff of 11,928, of whom 99% held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 77% a master’s degree or higher.

-
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~E)RE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

4 RENRIELRR
OVERVIEW

REB(ERFTLBRITER), ATAMBENTEATE. NTER. HAEE . BRHENAST ARG, FEE#FLHe
RUAIEARAAEEN MR FRRITREZRMRFENASER, RIERBEXZMERNGH BRBIRINT EES
MESWER, MREFELBRRIER. SEETREZERNARBEELEEE, WEARBIEZTDRAN, RHTRE
FEMBIRMES-

2022%F , KT AT BEXFBERSREMINLMOERR T ENEU XM AR FEERER

CDB follows its Articles of Association and puts in place a legally defined corporate governance system with transparent powers and
responsibilities, effective coordination, and balance between different functions. It keeps modernizing its system and capacity for governance
as a DFI. The CPC CDB Committee plays an active leading role in ensuring and supervising the implementation of the principles and policies of
the Party and the state. The Board of Directors performs its duties with high efficiency and plays an active role in strategic decision-making. The
senior management carries out daily operation and management in line with the authorization, conscientiously organizes and implements the
resolutions of the Board of Directors, fulfilling various targets and tasks throughout the year.

In 2022, there was no significant difference between the actual corporate governance of the Bank and the normative documents issued by
regulators on corporate governance.

C A
HIERRMKREEERR E£EL B
Committee on Strategic Development e . MRS
and Investment Management Board of Directors : Board of Supervisors
C J
C Al
HItZERE

Audit Committee

C J
C Al
R EBRERS | SAEER
Risk Management Committee Senior Management
C J
C A

XEXGRHERS
Committee on Related-Party —
Transaction Control

AEEHFHERS
Committee on Human Resources —
and Remuneration
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RBREFMMEENAS. RERPREFR AT, TEHTBEIARRTREEZIRMEXLIEFLPICEEE R
THE, BREYELZAR ESHRRARBLZ TEREIT(FERHFRERTRBRITRERISTHERANYFHE, 8%
BHEXMERNUEAET, IMUHMFREK. RERK . SBRKR BHEMBRHASNTELTCEEE— HERE. &
ER . 0ERRAREINER. MBENBREZRMNREBWIE, EEXNBRENBURES.

RENTEEHEER RREEVMMNESREGMIITER, FEMBADREHERR. FIERNEZTBREESED
ERTERE, EXELRA, cEAMNERNEZFERFRE BEYEEFTVNEFTERTNGE, ARARESTERFEIT
N HEEZSHITK (SER) HARNAOR, FEZERNEE EFEE2 . 5EENFLR.

FREQTREETNG RBAEXERZENRCERFRRITER), FEEES AT EENG, RETRIQSEE R O
REH N TRBIFEIERERR, FRATEEFEEE, MEATREENHZ . MENEFTTNANRAELH, £

XEERELTNERCRR REEFSRARRE P REEFTORWUREFTENZI BN, MEEITIEFRIL
R ABEN ARBRINBEGTEEEENS, BERNEEKEBRENS, WERBRXEE . BEURIKXRRKSHE
FEAOELREEEHE, #HE . HITRERFAIRERREAREMNTIET, MERERTHAIER. S5
FRIERAN BB FEEHF 2 S WREIFERE.

Upholding and Strengthening CPC Leadership. CDB upholds the centralized leadership of the CPC Central Committee and keeps improving
the mechanism for the Party committee to study and deliver General Secretary Xi Jinping’s instructions to ensure the implementation of the
decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council. The CPC CDB Committee revises the Rules of Work of China
Development Bank Committee of the Communist Party of China and other regulations, and reviews major issues in accordance with relevant
regulations, enabling well-informed and democratic decision-making with high efficiency. CDB improves corporate governance in sync with
the consolidation of the Party’s leadership, and formulates a list of decisions for the Party committee, the Board of Directors and the senior
management. The Bank also intensifies efforts to counter corruption, enhance integrity and build a clean political environment.

Enhancing corporate governance system. In accordance with the requirements of regulators and financial authorities, CDB continues to
enhance corporate governance regulations. It formulates administrative measures and working procedures for performance of functions of
equity directors to ensure that their responsibilities are clearly defined and their duties are fully performed. It sets down the rules for the Board
of Directors evaluate the performance of duties of directors, and organizes the annual performance evaluation on directors. It formulates
supplementary scheme for the Board of Directors to give authorization to the president (senior management), and keeps refining authorization
management, with a view to setting the boundary of powers and responsibilities between the Board of Directors and the senior management.

Improving corporate governance and operation mechanisms. CDB keeps improving its corporate governance system and operational
efficiency in accordance with relevant laws and regulations and its Articles of Association. Based on research, it develops an evaluation index
system for corporate governance, carries out self-examination of corporate governance evaluation, and strengthens publicity and training of
corporate governance. It strengthens the integrated arrangement of subjects and proposals of the Board of Directors, has the responsibilities of
all special committees clearly defined, and improves the quality of decision-making by the Board of Directors. It further improves the feedback
mechanism for the implementation of resolutions of the Board of Directors and opinions of directors, ensuring that there are relevant records,
supervision and feedback. It fulfils its obligation in terms of information disclosure, improves temporary information disclosure and reporting
system, ensures the targeted and effective information disclosure. The Bank improves the democratic corporate management system based on
the employees’ congress, and promotes the standardized operation of employees’ congress at the head office, all branches and subsidiaries
under its control, effectively protecting the rights of employees to be informed, participate, express and supervise. It continues to promote the
formulation of criteria for the liquidation of branches and affiliates.

-
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4 BRFRIER
SHAREHOLDERS
I, KT AR . B 200055, ATRERFARIS LR A TE:

Within the reporting period, there was no change to the shareholders of the Bank. CDB’s shareholders and their shareholdings by the end of
2022 are as follows:

BRHREIR HERR S
Shareholder % of Total
T LR

Ministry of Finance 36.54%
FRCERABRIELT

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 34.68%
AR AT ABREELNT 07 199,
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. Y0
2EHSREESEES 1.599%
National Council for Social Security Fund e
ait

Total 100.00%

VB AESBRARE], REREEV B  MRBEREIE . VBRES TENRWEZERT.

PRICERBERTELXIREBE(PEARKMEQATE)HEREREZNEBRE AT, RBE SRR, LIERE
BARKRERMENEFER SRV ITEERZARFANEBTERANS, XAUERERHE~REEE.

BRI EFEBRIELAITREREFE(PEARAMERIEYHEFINCEERERRILMNERFELT, TENER
WHNIE B R B S RRRAUR R RITEE  RREE.
cEHEREESEERREEEHSREESHNEEEZENM.

The MOF is a macro-regulation body under the State Council, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating fiscal and tax
policies, and exercising fiscal supervision.

Central Huijin Investment is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions, and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, investing in domestic and overseas projects, equities,
debts, funds, and loans and engaging in entrusted asset management and investment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.
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4 EER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

== P

EESEM

Members of the Board of Directors

BRESEAEN(ERARRITER), ATESSHIBBZESAN, BFESBNITES (EEEK). 4BHWEEET6
BRNES. BEl, AMTEEKHBORER, BIESKHENEE, HITESEE: BR OB RTA" BEESH
RERVEZ VHEM. FEH ARBITEERIEHEZARTALE, 8F ELER FRT . BEE. KRR, RINES
HRARBMIER, B KES EXE B BEE  KEL  KE ARE.EFEZUWH: FHE.

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board of Directors has 13 members: three Executive
Directors (the Chairman included), four Government Agency Directors, and six Equity Directors. The incumbent Chairman is ZHAO Huan and
Vice Chairman TAN Jiong*; the Executive Directors are ZHAO Huan, TAN Jiong, and XU Shouben*; the Government Agency Directors are each
appointed by the NDRC, the MOF, the MOFCOM, and the PBC. They are LIAN Weiliang, XU Hongcai, GUO Tingting, and ZHANG Xiaohui. The
shareholders appoint ZHANG Shenghui, CUI Hanzhong, TAN Long, GE Rongrong*, ZHANG Lusong*, ZHANG Yong*, and FAN Kejun* as Equity
Directors. LI Huachang is the Secretary of the Board of Directors.

S T ERENER

* Please refer to the Changes to the Board of Directors and Senior Management in the previous chapter.

= A =

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

ATESSRBAXEIEENR(EARALRBRTERYETRR. EESNRNEECRE - HIEFEVSMERE RE
AR FNEAPRAR U SHAR, EBSWEANREBITAR ARRITEEREBEERLFIES, FHER KL
BRER EELXETVHRAAR FEGSRITU, RAEEBANHFENEELAMRTLARITAR  EXMAE, KSR,
NEBEHSERNEIEGE, A EEEN, —RIENII VMR E OFENBEL R, ABETTER FEL/ETIANR
BRI, FERES AENATESKREECSERNENEIS.

The Board of Directors fulfils its responsibilities as per applicable laws, regulations and the CDB Articles of Association. Its responsibilities include
making annual financial budgets and statements, profit sharing plans, losses compensation plans, rules of procedures of the Board of Directors
and related revised plans, and policies and systems for information disclosure of the Bank. It reviews and approves medium- and long-term
development strategies, annual business operation plans and investment plans, annual plans on bond issuance, plans on capital management
and issuance of capital replenishment instruments, major projects, management rules on risk management and internal control, internal
management structure, plans on the establishment, adjustment and cancellation of tier-one branches in and outside the Chinese mainland,

charters, annual working plans and institutions of internal auditing, and annual reports. It decides on the authorization to the Chairman and the
senior management.

== =25 A=
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Work of the Board of Director

2022%F , ATEESUINEFHMERPERFEHSEXNBERNES, RABNTHNZ+REH, INEEXLwH L. EHSR
RERHE RSEFHSERE, REEER . AZSUREK. 5TRE. SERSRETARNAR S, MEBYFLRITH
FRE ZEEEEANONEARR, REFRBITESHAERFERKBAINESRELRE. 2FBAESTSSIORL,
BHIGBITINECTIN, B E BUC R 1250,

In 2022, the Board of Directors of CDB, under the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era,
fully implemented the guiding principles of the CPC 20th National Congress, earnestly implemented the decisions and instructions of the CPC
Central Committee and the State Council, supported economic recovery and social development, regulated the exercise of power and adopted
scientific and efficient decision-making. In coordination with functions including the CPC CDB Committee and the senior management, the board
strengthened research and decision-making on major matters concerning the reform, development, operation and management of the Bank,

actively promoted the Bank to provide high quality support to the national strategies, and ensure its own sustainable, sound development. Over
the year, the Board of Directors convened ten meetings, at which members reviewed and approved 67 proposals, and heard 12 special reports.

-
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EESTNERS

Committees of the Board of Directors
AKTEZESTEREBARNKAEEZRS FITEAS NEEEBEZRAS  XBXFEHIERS. AZESHFMEZERSSS
MENERE . SETNEASREBEEZSENARIG, USSR R

The Board of Directors has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit Committee, the

o

Risk Management Committee, the Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control, and the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration,
all of which discharge their responsibilities as mandated by the Board of Directors and report to the Board of Directors.

REEARNBBEEZRR FEATTVUATKPALARKBANLESEANR, RELVSAERY, AEREFELRE
W BRBAERTERURESHTERETER, SRSERKBBEANEERRAITHR, OEFEFTREBRENS.
2022%F , AITHE A RANBEREEZASINBEBEY, AT ARAKELR . EEEESEAEM, HINBUNELRNRE
AEE HECBILBEENG. 2EBFI0REWN, FIN25TUINE,

Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development strategy and
the overarching goal of business management of the Bank and provides suggestions on business changes; monitors the execution of the annual
operational plan, investment plan and the fulfilment of corporate social responsibilities; studies national strategies and the supporting policies and
advises the Board of Directors. In 2022, the committee strengthened strategic planning, deliberated on major matters of reform, development,

operation and management, intensified budget constraint and capital management, and handled existing risks in a prudent way. It convened ten
meetings to review 25 proposals.

HIHZERR TEARTHZAME T EZERMN TERS, AP KEE AN FEER IR, S B8 E2MT
MABEE T TE, BEMENIMEFE A TE, REPEF VMBS EREINE. 2022F , KITHEHTERERFEX
AW FIEIT. ARBIEG R ARME T TEBER, 2AHAE~ARNBHER, THERESHERNEREMENERMT, #
SRFNEBEIHNE, mEFIFEINE TEMRI, HPNEERRIBRIER .. FEBFF 13RSI, B 2T E

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and approves medium- and long-term audit
plans and annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on external audit; and
advises on the hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2022, the committee continued to focus on financial operation, internal control and
internal audit, analysed and evaluated the Bank’s assets and liabilities and earnings, evaluated the soundness and effectiveness of the internal

control system and mechanism, enhanced the value of internal audit, supervised and evaluated the progress and performance of external audit,
and helped improve the quality and efficiency of business development. It convened 13 meetings to review 12 proposals.

REEEZR|S FERRENNREEKE, EEeEENEANK. XKL GRERK . BIEXK. B 3IXE. R
TRERNERG . FEXRANEERENEESEXNHES R EERNKERIER, XK BUER . SRR X5 e
NHTEHIRG, REEXNREENAMIEFHOENS . 2022F, AT EEZRASERICEXCEERLE, HIE
SEREIE5FLMSHMIMEVEENNEENEERER, s EXTESATGEXNKRER, AR S XK S NHFEEE S,
RERALENEEETIERY. EEBF RSN, BTN E,

Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the senior management in their control of
various risks with regard to credit, market, liquidity, operations, country, interest rates on bank books, reputation, and IT as well as comprehensive
risk management; conducts regular assessments of risk policies, management, and resilience; and advises on how to improve risk management
and internal control. In 2022, the committee accurately grasped the landscape of risk management, kept improving the comprehensive risk

management system fit for the Bank as a DFI, paid close attention to risk control in key areas, kept enhancing the risk monitoring and control
capacity, and promoted the risk management quality and efficiency. It convened seven meetings to review 16 proposals.

XBRGEFNERS . TEARXEXINER . F5HHE, BHXEZZINK, MREATSXEKAZENZSHFEW
TERRERARFEN.2022F, RTKKZ S RHERASHEINCXEK S  XEXSEE HIRTEXEISEERARR,
RAXBKXRZEEEAM . 2FB 2RI, HIITUNZE.

Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control. This committee manages, reviews, and approves related-party transactions; controls
the risks of related-party transactions; and ensures integrity and fairness in the transactions between CDB and related-parties. In 2022, the

committee kept improving the management of related parties and related-party transactions and further promoted the development of the related-
party transaction system to improve performance in related-party transaction management. It convened two meetings to review one proposal.
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AEEFHERS TEZARTHTURNTEMARGEMEBCR, UENTESHNSREEARNFTHAZ, nESREH
BlAREN, HFEEAELE, IEEENSREBARNEEREFNE, NESHNSABEEARTRIRETVSEH
RABEZERREBRNSE.2022F, AT AEEFHNERCESARESFERFETN, BRESNSEERR. T5
SREZEELLE, NETREWAZHFHEEREERED. 2FF ARSI, BIIBIINE.

Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committee reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of the
Bank, draws up and executes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and senior management, advises the Board of Directors on
remuneration plans and supervises the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and senior
management, and preliminarily examines the qualification of candidates for the directors and senior management and advises the Board of
Directors on the matter. In 2022, the committee guided the annual performance evaluation on directors, and studied and reviewed major matters

concerning the management of human resources and remuneration, prioritizing the building of board and senior management and improvement
of performance evaluation. It convened six meetings to review 13 proposals.

= a5 =
- BEE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

AOTESERHTK . ATK. ESSUPRAMSEEEARMN. s EERB(ERALXRITEE)REZSBENAR
ZEEEEN, NEESAR
The Bank’s senior management includes President, Executive Vice Presidents, Secretary of the Board of Directors, and other executives. They

discharge duties in operational management as mandated by the CDB Articles of Association and the Board of Directors, and reports to the
Board of Directors.

A RERETT

INTERNAL AUDIT

RB(ERARLRITER), ABFHMBIIREARTABDESSARIFRE LIE. 2022F, R{TA IR FITBI AR R H
REUHZRASSWEH, BXREER, REQOASH, AEHHEETITE VLRETITHEER. FRETRE
ESRPNSREBLARGAERBREREEIT, REEREAKBERBEREREMRIY . FRERETREEE. INCERL
S MRS B EY S ARERM EFRILRZBEE TG T, RHECUBERNG . FREE NG EIEHIT.
SWFHMEET T EERREEREIT RAREIT. XKKX S FIT, RELSEMNET. FREIINMTULSEIT, RiESD
XHNMBREE. SWEFERAEFEITEFRE T, MEEIAINEEIT LRI B BB LRKBNE, BRHFAFLG. FRAS
FHEFREE T, BEICASTEHERAN AFZEERAF RO SEIR, MNRBFZE FIRTNEK . FFEE
RUFHRESE, TEEITRE, HRFITRR, MREEFIHERERSGRR, MBFE T TV ARER, FHRAZ L&
NFIE AL

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors. In 2022,
the internal audit function of CDB implemented the guidelines set at the meeting of the Audit Commission of the CPC Central Committee, met
regulatory requirements, focused on solving problems, and made progress on various audit programs, which helped the Bank bring into full play
the monitoring role of audit. It carried out follow-up auditing of the loan policy dedicated to the ecological protection and high quality development
in the Yellow River Basin, ensuring that the major strategies and policy measures of the state produced their intended results. Auditing was
carried out for management of credit assets quality, foreign currency credit, M&A loans, credit investigation, and NPL transfer and write-off
compliance to contribute to preventing and containing credit risks. Auditing was carried out for comprehensive risk management, performance-
based salary management, IT management, anti-money laundering, and related-party transactions to promote business operation compliance.
Business auditing was carried out in overseas branches to promote their prudent operation. CDB efficiently coordinated with the National Audit
Office to carry out auditing in an orderly manner, and implemented the long-acting mechanism for correcting problems identified in internal and
external audits, addressing both the causes and symptoms. Accountability audits were carried out to encourage appropriate and prudent exercise
of power. Public complaints concerning the CDB’s asset security were handled in a transparent manner, coupled with follow-up checks and risk
reminders. It kept promoting the integrated management of auditing, strictly controlled audit quality, expanded audit resources, and stepped up
building an audit information system. It strengthened training the team of auditors to improve their proficiency and raise auditing efficiency.

-
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

A ZiR
OVERVIEW
2022%F , KATINERMERZWEER, BEFRFWHEELZ N, REERKBEMILELSFTRUBELSIRA. FHER~EIR
& (ROA) 0.48%, T2 E =W X (ROE) 5.37%-

In 2022, CDB faithfully implemented national policies, focused on its mandate, supported national strategies and boosted the performance of the
real economy. It saw an ROA of 0.48% and an ROE of 5.37%.

A WSFKZ
INCOME AND EXPENSES
20224, RITEFLIFFE843.40127T. M RIFWARETREZNRARIR, 2FEZIF RIFWA1,703.101Z5T.

In 2022, CDB made a net profit of RMB84.340 billion. Net interest income, as the leading source of the Bank’s income, reached RMB170.310 billion.

(#4: ARMELIT Million RMB)

2022 2021 Change?-:/?)

:)E:ggr*autﬁg Profit 97,138 93,108 4,030
%Ctaiﬁjf\;\i%ﬁ\terest Income 170,310 143,632 26,678
Niéiifa@?éiurﬁr)n\ission Income 1,504 1,443 61
Npéejtklflt;r?lgp)gr(aﬁlgj I)ncome/( Expense) 9 (26) 35
fﬁé%rﬁéeﬁérfx Expense 12,807 12,288 519
Ll 84,340 80,794 3,546

Profit for the Year
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FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

B ZE 20224k, RITHRFEH182,430.831Z7¢, [ ELIEH6.26% 0 WARRARITHIOE . B ZE 2022F K, R A KT
7£138,991.0712 7T, [ LLIBK8.66%, R HEF=HI76.19%. 71 /2 EM166,375.02127T, B tLIGK6.45% . RIGE2ATHRE
BHIRVARIE B E 20228 K, ERTHRIIEHREN121,259.56127T, FLLIEKE.62%, 2 HHEMN72.88%.

At the end of 2022, CDB had total assets of RMB18,243.083 billion, growing by 6.26% year on year. Loans remained the dominant assets, with
RMB13,899.107 hillion of loans and advances, up by 8.66% year on year and accounting for 76.19% of the total assets. Total liabilities stood at

RMB16,637.502 billion, up by 6.45% year on year. Debt issuance was the primary source of funding. At the end of 2022, CDB had a balance of
RMB12,125.956 billion in debt securities, up by 5.62% year on year and accounting for 72.88% of total liabilities.

(84: ARTE AT Milion RMB)

R
2022 2021 S
Erait 18,243,083 17,167,941 1,075,142

Total Assets

WM& RFMRITEE R
Cash, Balances with Central Banks and Deposits with 227,186 287,609 (60,423)
Banks and Other Financial Institutions

é)ﬁa%fiﬁg%d%xanoes to Customers 13,899,107 12,791,666 1,107,441
%\iﬂ;&n%—zm Securities 2,894,338 2,925,505 (31,167)
g&tﬁrs 1,222,452 1,163,161 59,291
'?B{tﬁaﬁji-l;bilities 16,637,502 15,629,661 1,007,841
Eejétﬁs—iﬁgz Issued 12,125,956 11,480,377 645,579
() B AT A0 L Ath < RRATLAE 5 5K 572,862 e 128,901

Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions

ERIZEd ey T recE e
Deposits from Banks and Other Financial Institutions 3,703,798 3,474,710 229,088
and Due to Customers

HAth

Oire 234,886 225,613 9,273
FAIBEREETT

Total Equity 1,605,581 O bl
= >R

LB 421,248 421,248 =

Share Capital

RARTRIMBRAIR
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve 397,475 383,784 13,691

— R R
General Reserve 260,425 258,519 1,906

ROBFEFH A
Retained Earnings and Other Equity 500,678 450,895 49,783

DEBG R
Non-Controlling Interests 25,755 23,834 1,921

-
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

- RS EEMEEMIZEREIR

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

20224, ATt —H X EFKPBERMLDE, AElR. KB KF. R OFR. M TEREEBSEMSERSRERKE. BT
KRS, BT KENIRE . ©ELAMEMIRHEREZ 4712 7T. R EF LM IR A LS, IR 42561Z7T:
ESBRMENZ, TRBLTH S EMEHEER. KBEMEEESSIES RS TE123R. 1,083.61Z7t,
W5 EHERAS SEMEER.

In 2022, CDB leveraged its strength as a medium- and long-term lender to provide long-term, stable financial support for infrastructure in such
areas as energy, transport, water resources, agriculture, logistics, and underground utility tunnels, which helped to boost effective investment. It
issued RMB1.4 trillion infrastructure loans over the year. It operationalized the CDB Infrastructure Investment Fund to make timely investments,
which hit RMB425.6 billion. Acting as the lead underwriter, the Bank issued 123 corporate debt financing instruments for urban, rural, transport
and other infrastructure, with a total value of RMB108.36 billion, channeling funds across society to infrastructure development.




fkMEE S — STRATEGIC PRIORITES — 27 ‘

@ B 71 ELECTRIC POWER

ROTRESIFERBANERMNE, MUEREN, ERZFNE R LBEHMERIE, ARIKE . B HHKEEE
SEXRMBEIR.

The Bank promoted the supply-side energy reform to improve the energy mix, with a focus on new energy projects, such as wind and photovoltaic
(PV) power generation, and major hydropower, nuclear power and pumped storage projects.

BEREMNZB 1. 25HATH
Units 1 & 2 of Zhangzhou Nuclear Power
Plant in Fujian Province

ZMBERREAEE=AZRE " EE—S"
HEHCIENENIE

It is the first project adopting China’s indigenous
Gen Il nuclear power reactor, Hualong One.

T2 DR EER A PR/ 8K K X200MW
HIREEWE

The 200MW integrated PV project of Ningxia
Weigang New Energy Co., Ltd. in Shapotou District

S ZIEN T XAERAMIBE, & TRsE
S - ' g1 SRIPNSRELEEBMEE .

This project plays a positive role in improving regional
energy mix and promoting ecological protection and high
quality development in the Yellow River Basin.
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&) HSEMIZRE OIL AND GAS INFRASTRUCTURE

R FHSEMREAMNER, BIARRIF-HEEERER, REERERLZ 2.

CDB helped to fill in the gaps in oil and gas infrastructure and strengthen gas production, supply, storage and distribution systems to safeguard
national energy security.

BRRAHRBRURASERASEWLLLNGIE
REENELIAE

Tangshan LNG and supporting pipeline project of
Caofeidian Suntien Natural Gas Co., Ltd.

ZI B 2RI E RAS S~ HEEE R REME
MU rMER I EARINE -
This is a major project to promote the production, supply,

storage and distribution of natural gas in Hebei Province and
improve local energy infrastructure.

@ % RAILWAYS

MRZEF )W)\ ST TERERKEL. & K
PREREE . SR IBARA . R BRI BRUBERY BERIESE
BRI

CDB gave priority to the nationwide high-speed rail network composed
of “eight vertical and eight horizontal” lines and their connecting lines,
inter-city and intra-city rails in priority regions, integrated transport
hubs, and electrification and capacity expansion of existing rail lines.

KRS SRR EEIN A

Zhangjiajie-Jishou-Huaihua High-speed Railway

ZIB R )\H\ 1" SRR W A KISk, HE
BB G X a  Hons e R B E R

This project is a connection line of the “eight vertical and eight

horizontal” high-speed railway network, and is expected to promote the
tourism industry along the line upon its completion.
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‘(z) ~E& HIGHWAYS

ERXBFERSERABMSRBEREEZR. BAHBRY FREORLRLAKER. PAMKLERENERRS. 2F
B EIFR4,04812 7T

CDB supported the improvement of the national expressway network, including the construction of unfinished sections, the expansion and
renovation of congested sections, the construction of highways along and to the borders, and the connection of dead-end highways in the central
and western regions. It issued RMB404.8 billion loans throughout the year.

@ #Ii% LOGISTICS

BLERYAEA. BERB T ARYREMBREXENY, ELHFERERYRE . T8 L E RS EMHN 5T
a8 . MERMEBEME . EF R REK1,396127T.
Focusing on national logistics hubs and national backbone cold-chain logistics bases, CDB supported projects like Hengyang International

Logistics Port (Phase I), Ningbo Meishan International Cold Supply Chain Platform, and Huaihua International Inland Port. The loans issued for
logistics during the year hit RMB139.6 billion.
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@ AL CIVIL AVIATION

EEERXFERABAXIGENERRER, MANRAYIZHE . RN BIANERIFNE

Based on major national strategies for regional development and the strategy for coordinated regional development, CDB increased financial
support for the construction, relocation, reconstruction and expansion of hub airports.

BRI AE PRI =AY B TR E
The expansion project (Phase Ill) of Xi’an Xianyang
International Airport

IZI0 B B A T HESh BR P A0 R 2% A B 2 O
S AN FTIE F B R IMNER BN« 7R 78 X 16 B 5T A9 FF
&R

This project helps the inland Shaanxi Province further open

up to both the east and the west and improve its land, air
and sea transport links.

%) R AGRICULTURE

RARESE " BAR T BUAR T, MAXM SIERE REKNF RV EMIRTES T NE.

CDB was committed to the strategy of increasing farmland productivity through sustainable farmland use and agricultural technology innovation,
and increased its support for agricultural infrastructure such as high-standard farmland and farmland water conservancy.

M)l EEStnERBEZIZRINE
High-standard farmland construction in
Gulin County, Sichuan
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@ k% WATER RESOURCES

REKFRERERIIHAFESZIAT , BRI FEREARKF TRERMFAKR  RISHEK KESEEEREKFIRE. 2
FR MK EI5R1,86412 7T o
CDB focused on key industries and under-developed sectors to promote the development of water resources, giving priority to major national

water conservancy projects and projects vital for people’s livelihood, such as flood control and relief, rural water supply, and water ecological
restoration. It issued RMB186.4 billion of loans for water resources projects in the year.

EPAN 7 =

Yangtze-to-Huaihe water diversion

ZIBRXEEITRGKRREEEENAKIRIEZE ABREILNS TKZBENEZRE, RITFRKELMZLTT
X, HKARS117FH

This is a strategic project to optimize the allocation of water resources in the Huaihe River Basin and enhance the backbone water transport channel
connecting the north and the south. The designed annual water diversion volume is 4.3 billion cubic meters, benefiting 51.17 million people.

@ W3 URBAN RAIL TRANSIT

REMHEMBETHNEIBERR, ERAXFIER BN FS.XH. ENSHDHMZMELHE (3F) ®KEE, TRER
BIiF600~E

CDB supported rail transit development in metropolitan areas and city clusters, focusing on new subways, intra-city rails and inter-city rails in
Beijing, Zhengzhou, Qingdao, Wuxi, and Xiamen, with a total mileage of more than 600 kilometers.

.
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Iy FEmANHELMBREHZHNE

MANUFACTURING AND TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION

2022%F , ATEGERBRE VMREER TV EL. EMMREELSE, £
FRBBOBABEK, ILERRSSKFRREZABNHIELSRELRR. HELH
KPRREWELIBIE =, FE W HARMERRBI DTt IR TRES
BUEARBRREF VN EASRBEF1001ZTT, KETHIEER, 5ISHEES
DRI RHX BT A R AN = AR S 55 o

In 2022, focusing on priority areas such as integrated circuits, machinery and equipment, industrial
automation and basic materials, CDB bolstered breakthroughs in core technologies in key fields, and
supported self-reliance in advanced science and technology and high quality development of the
manufacturing sector. The medium- and long-term loans to the manufacturing sector saw an increase
of nearly 30% year on year, and the total balance of loans to the manufacturing sector hit more than
RMB1 trillion for the first time. CDB creatively issued China’s first special financial bond, totaling
RMB10 billion, for commercialization of major scientific and research findings, mobilizing capital from
the market for the commercialization and industrialization of scientific and research findings.

2022%F , AT AREIUFRLREERAIRRE] LB
A R MBER RTINS, BT R RERLR

In 2022, CDB issued special loans for energy supply to local power
producers, including Huaneng Shandong Zhongtai Power Plant, for
them to purchase coal.
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BRRETHNTREmE
HGTECH Laser Engineering Project

in Wuhan
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FINANCIAL RELIEF AND ENERGY SUPPLY

2022%F , ATHEEASMARMERMT A, FHENBERMNTIL AV RELR. EFLMERKBHRATR
1,6431Z7T, EAERITE001ZITE A BERR MBI 5R, STIFBR LB RER R« MR BB bl B R AN K E
B

TEERFTWESER, HE/\HEVREEE. @, BN, fBATEAMERBRS /N FRY . &F L B/NY
Il #£%503,38912 7T o

In 2022, CDB leveraged a variety of development finance instruments to help enterprises and industries recover from temporary
difficulties. Last year, CDB issued RMB164.3 billion loans for the supply of coal and coal-fired power plants and acted as the lead
underwriter for special bonds of RMB60 billion for power supply, to support quality coal production capacity, procurement of thermal
coal by coal-fired power producers, and clean and efficient use of coal.

CDB improved the on-lending system, delivered low-cost funding to more micro and small businesses in more sectors, and provided
better and more efficient development finance services for them. A total of RMB338.9 billion loans were issued to micro and small
businesses through on-lending schemes.

-
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BALANCED REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND URBANIZATION

2022%F , RTESUREMB AR KIZFHERRE. EBRNEKX
B K=ZA—MFRUAR. BUIRBESRFMNSRELR. Rtk
H*% BYRSERXKFEHEBKIIE, MAESSUENIBERHE
BRE, B AMBERBEN . SRELRNXKBEFME.

ANZHEUAR ORI EIENL, SRE FHERETEHRRE, X
FUEHANEZRERRENE R, B HEMRERER, FTEE
B BB . 2 F A B ME HTRS,31312 T,

In 2022, CDB established a long-acting mechanism to support the national
strategies for regional development, including the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
coordinated development, the Yangtze Economic Belt, the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta integrated development,
the Yellow River Basin ecological protection and high quality development, and the
Northeast China revitalization. It increased lending to priority areas and projects
and contributed to high quality regional development by leveraging complementary
advantages.

CDB supported new, people-centered urbanization, advanced urban renewal and
transformation in a compliance-based and orderly manner, promoted urbanization
in counties, strengthened urban infrastructure, and helped to build liveable,
resilient, and smart cities. A total of RMB331.3 billion loans for new urbanization
were issued throughout the year.

N NIRRT T R

The relocation of HBIS Tangsteel
ZIMBENTFIEERESHEXEX ARHTUESE
MEAXBREAEEER N,

The project is vital for building an ecological buffer for the

capital and promoting Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei coordinated
development.

WEEFERS I EIRR

Yellow River diversion in central Shanxi Province

ZIMEM e ERBESKFPNSRELR
BREEREX.

This project is important for ecological protection and high

quality development in the Yellow River Basin.
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dn WMARSERENLERE

PEOPLE’S LIVELIHOOD

2022%F , RATRFUARAFONELRBE, BE NI REMIRE . IEFREELE, RERENLERE, B
NIBBARBRRERE. £B-E.

In 2022, CDB adhered to a people-centered development philosophy and supported the improvement of people’s livelihood through its efforts in
priority areas such as rural revitalization, affordable housing and student loans in the hope to deliver a better life to the people.

@ IR % 2 ##&>¢ RURAL REVITALIZATION

ATFENMK ZR"EMIBFNE, 2EPREFRMINIG2,62112TT. FHEEM A Ml R34 R ER W ZR IV FEXEE
RABH T AR RRFF R EMRERZRMABIRRS, WAEREWMES HREIR. IO NEHRRE AR
R EZEAXMEFELFTRIE, FEEEZIBRIEERT. ROERZ RN FEXRER, ITESMRSHFIRRE.
AURERS, TTONERERBHIREMSNIER ZNFEXBENYEES, BB T ZUERATL1.67
AR

In 2022, the Bank continued to increase financial support for agriculture, rural areas and farmers, with the balance of rural-related loan increasing
by RMB262.1 billion. It continued to increase support for priority areas such as the seed industry, facility agriculture and agricultural parks. It
supported rural infrastructure development and rural living environment upgrade, contributing to a beautiful and harmonious countryside that
is desirable to live and work in. To help sustain the success of poverty alleviation, the Bank took a package of initiatives for paired assistance
and continued to advance follow-up livelihood programs for relocated families. It vigorously advanced the construction of demonstration
zones for rural revitalization. It also provided intellectual support by making financing plans for all 160 counties identified as priorities and five
demonstration areas in the national rural revitalization program, and offering about 16,000 training opportunities from local government officials
and professionals.

@ Bh## 1878 STUDENT LOANS

FTRIRT A FRABER, IXFRIZIARENESER TIE EFLMBNFTFR496127T, ERS15HFE,

CDB expanded the access to student loans, and offered interest-free loans for students and allowed deferred repayment of principal. RMB49.6
billion student loans were issued in the year, benefiting 5.15 million students.

X {EEFREARZREIRZ HOUSING

RITHEZ MR R RREMREERE EIBNXKSUSMF X S0E, B W ZMEBAE . & F L BREME S 57701,302
fer, ERREHAEERE, ERERBIE27.8AF. RXFO2HZIH/NRERRXEEL M. R1TXXF2,600h FE
SRS oF i i -

CDB continued to support affordable rental housing and the renovation of dilapidated housing and shanty towns, helping meet the housing need
of all people. It issued affordable housing loans of RMB130.2 billion and benefited over 278,000 households with affordable rental housing. It

helped bring a better living environment for a total of 992,000 people in old residential quarters and supported 26 million households in total to
move into new apartment buildings from shanty towns.

-
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@ iR ZFEFF ELDERLY CARE AND HEALTH CARE

FIBEBAFRZRZEREZR, RRRSETKSERRR . ERET ZEMER.

CDB supported the development of inclusive elderly care services. It promoted partnerships between hospitals and strengthened healthcare
services at the community level.

I AN B ZEF R OIER

Liuzhou Baiyun Nursing Home in Guangxi

ZHMBR AN ENEEERE  BEPE. BV RE. EEHXEEN—KOFERSZSEZSHIE .

This project is the first elderly care service complex in Liuzhou that integrates intelligent elderly care, health care, medical care and elderly community
management.
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4 MMRGEERIMS

GREEN FINANCE

2022%F , RITHATERERIT, REZESMAEAR, RELEZESMIEBESHAGRER. §IEFRE, HEMAX
EERR RSB ESRIFEESKZEMRESMEIFHNE RAXLE  BEF TSRS FEXHNEE
BRREHIERS TR2TEINRAFIER e ERTHEESRGFHF51012TT.

Committed to becoming a green bank, CDB continued its efforts in 2022 to improve the green finance governance system, integrate the
philosophy of green finance into lending policies, rules and processes, and step up support for key green and low-carbon areas such as clean
energy, pollution control and carbon reduction, and ecological protection and rehabilitation. It fully implemented the special financial service

scheme “RMB100 billion loans for 100 counties”. The growth rate of green loans and clean energy loans was higher than the average growth rate
of loans across the Bank, and a total of RMB51 billion green finance bonds were issued over the year.

&) ExRfEEH NATIONAL FOREST RESERVE

KAANZHFEREEMRRMBZE L E5MA, RS W &E, ArFEE AL BIEHF RS T K.

CDB vigorously supported national forest reserves and afforestation, promoted the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” strategy, and
constantly practiced the Two Mountains Theory through development finance.

EEMIRESERR (BE=H) BERESESMERINE

The forest reserve (Sanming, Fujian Province) under the national pilot program of comprehensive forestry reform

ZHMEBRZKEENIALCZHZSING NERESHIE

This is the first national forest reserve project that introduces the carbon sink forward trading mechanism.
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j;i EEEER SRS CLEAN ENERGY, POLLUTION CONTROL AND CARBON REDUCTION

FITREFEFRZMERSITER, XBMRWEZFEMRERER, FEMAINBEERER . BUSHER . SIS ER I
XEFNE-

CDB leveraged the guiding role of development finance to support the building of a new modern energy system, with a focus on priority areas
such as clean energy, pollution control and carbon reduction, and ecological carbon sink.

IASIERINVERTSMEELRBRAERREME
The national demonstration project of salt cavern compressed air energy storage (CAES) and power generation system in Jintan,
Jiangsu Province

ZMB R FEEANE NMENMA = SRR MR, BE - FAH RS
BERHIEERE=XKES.

oy

L SRR T EAR = S RERR LR AR T

Bringing together enterprises, universities, research institutes and end-users, the project, the first non-supplementary fired CAES power station in
the world, achieved three milestones, namely, a breakthrough in compressed air energy storage technology, standards making, and engineering and
commercial operation demonstration.
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r RFEREHE —F—B"

HIGH QUALITY BELT AND ROAD COOPERATION

2022% , ATUASARE. RS ERENER, FTEMR " —F— B RS IR, g —Ht N mReH
B BERIRLZIMEARNE YR AR EETER, MAMIINERBOSFNE REFELRRESER, H)J
NEBIEMEMRERTR R, ERXFENERGZERR. AR ORRERS " TR EL L.

2022F, BRFARRIT —"— B EMRFEHAERP/IEBRBFLETESKIE, RESREBEMAHE LRI, &
HEXHEENROEIE

In 2022, CDB supported both landmark and “small yet smart” projects under the BRI, with a view to promote high-standard, sustainable and
people-centered development. CDB increased support for foreign trade financing with its special facility for foreign trade and special facility for
international supply chains logistics. It leveraged the role of the China-Africa Development Fund to help solve difficulties in Africa’s infrastructure
financing, focusing on the Nine Programs, including green development, health care, poverty reduction and agriculture.

In 2022, the Bank continued to support foreign students studying in Chinese universities with the CDB BRI Scholarship. With its influence
growing, the scholarship helped promote cultural and people-to-people exchanges.

‘=R EMEAIE: A e %
Jakarta-Bandung high-speed railway, a project supported by the BRI special lending scheme

ZIMEEK1422E , RITRSNEIS0RE , EEINERAT EHBEMAMBEN AT HE, ERBLE -5 %,

With a total length of 142 kilometers and a designed maximum speed of 350 kilometers per hour, the project connects Jakarta, Indonesia’s capital,
with Bandung, the country’s fourth largest city. It is the first high-speed railway in Southeast Asia.

.
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= Aok
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OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT

A X SR

PLANNING AND RESEARCH

2022%F , AT EH( BERARRT" +HR"HEHLSRREAK VERENE. ZEEHAF R, IR IZFE A FIE
B BEZRNRX FEMKR. REEHFN L. XEMARREEE[MY, IBSERBEZMABF. ULEFANES
1B, X ZTMUA AR KB 2022FEERS WS EsRERRTHIAE) HEERSHEEEERIR. B —
B ERaEeEBLEAR, WEBABIMERAREF —&— B AUHEARFENMAZRARE —RE2ESI,
DRI R . B B8 K EXRMENEEL.

In 2022, the Bank continued to effectively implement the CDB Business Development Plan for the 14th Five-Year Period. It made progress in
planning and research, provided intellectual and institutional support for development, and focused on priority areas such as rural revitalization,
green and low-carbon development, strategic emerging industries, and balanced regional development. It strengthened coordination and
cooperation with government ministries and commissions, local governments, and corporate clients, achieving a number of results in planning
and research. It released the Action Plan for the High Quality Development of High-Level National Think Tanks in 2022 to improve the capacity of
think tanks. To deliver the outcomes of the Belt and Road Forum for International Cooperation, CDB, working with relevant government agencies
and international organizations, held the first plenary meeting of the Coordination Committee of BRI Innovation and Development Platform,
focusing on innovative research, project consulting, partnerships and capacity building.

- mEWLS
TREASURY

2022% , KITRFEAHBRES, QFRAETE—. ZETHEE, NISERERENRE. LELTARDLBE
%50 5451250, BRESRTBI 11T RITBRIMING BB ET. FRER. BibEEFRFRINMT KTIEH
a4 5 b E E R EAUFRAERE .

ARSI — . — BB I3 BT RAEENES, BENETIAMES, NDHEEESHUNRAT . 2T 5
RAMEE00ZT, BHERARIN T QIR LT ENE 2 LRI EIHIE A% AT ZHRIEAE, BEDFHEH
BIRAER, 20226, EF 35 BBOFZIT, WHHHE—.

BEMAGERBRERMITBNE LT BBRIBEHARERIBERREREHNE KIRGESRERIPNEE &
MRS EA R TRSZEESRHES, H1151027T. BFARBRITRAHXIFIANSHERBEESHANAEIBER,
RELRAAGEREE, By D#EHBOAERA.

In 2022, CDB raised a massive amount of funds in a prudent way and improved the primary and secondary markets for CDB bonds, providing

strong support for the Bank’s business growth. Over the year, CDB issued RMB2.54 trillion financial bonds, with a balance of over RMB11 trillion
bonds. USD3.2 billion overseas and domestic foreign currency bonds were issued. International ratings agencies like Standard & Poor’s and

o

i

Moody’s consistently rated CDB at the same level as China’s sovereign rating.
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Building the primary and secondary markets. CDB creatively issued two-way optional bonds and regular floating-rate bonds to provide diversified
investment products for the market. It issued RMB50 billion secondary capital bonds, effectively completing capital replenishment. It innovatively
issued China’s first special over-the-counter bonds for financial institutions. It also increased the frequency of market-making support operations
and adjusted the market-making evaluation system for CDB bonds. In 2022, the trading volume of CDB bonds exceeded RMB8O trillion, ranking
the first in the market.

Increasing support for green and low-carbon finance. A total of RMB51 billion green finance bonds were issued for low-carbon transport system
development, clean energy equipment manufacturing, ecosystem protection and rehabilitation in the Yangtze River Basin, and green infrastructure
upgrading. It made use of the carbon-reduction supporting tool and the re-lending program for clean and efficient use of coal, to contribute to a
greener economy and society and promote carbon peaking and carbon neutrality.

A FESS

INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS

20225, K175 | SMBRBRSERERLGY, BNV HARERERE , RHABRIELFRENA. Rt AIERER
BMESAELTRS, TRERBELITI0R, 2518,027.1127T. . ERNRE. BENREZ IV EREBELE, BRH
EHZERZSTUERIRFER, £2F W FE52127T, BHIEK143% . RIRESBZE LR, £ F 8 S L IR E LT
32.4127T, BAKEPE88IN & RAAR S 2E o

In 2022, CDB mobilized financial resources on the market to support key national strategies, help corporate clients access direct financing, and
reduce financing costs for the real economy. CDB served as an underwriter for 116 clients, completing the issuance of 190 debenture bonds for
a total of RMB302.71 billion. The Bank’s services such as bills, domestic factoring and domestic letter of guarantee grew steadily, meeting the
diverse financial service needs of market players, with an annual business volume of RMB52.1 billion, up 143% year on year. It reduced fees,

lowered interest rates, and cut or reduced charges on 88 items of financial services, with the cuts totaling RMB3.24 billion in the intermediary
business throughout the year.

4 RIEERE

CREDIT MANAGEMENT

2022%F , KTARZBUZSRKRENKREE, SREFREEITEHEMIE, £2FLEMNEMESMUL, BAXEERTRM.
REEREBELIENFSAD, S AFAREFEMRERZEZS WS ITFHEERTIE, MABRMEFLAMERT
ANERERTHENNE. HEXFEEMNBEMREZRTELSR, FMRBFEMRERRE NG, T K
RIRBANERER. HERETHRERUBREEMNE, EURZ £— ENER MBI REENG . HE™ R
FEX T, AR FUHERAORMER URRAZBFEEFER~NT REVRE, REAFREER =X
mEIS.

In 2022, CDB maintained a good balance between business expansion and risk management, and carried out credit extension and review
efficiently. The total credit lines and structure saw significant improvement in the year, which enabled strong financing support. In supporting
key industries and underdeveloped sectors of strategic importance, it conducted review and approval over the activities of CDB Infrastructure
Investment Fund in an efficient and orderly manner, and intensified efforts to promote policy-based development financial instruments. It
formulated a work plan for strengthening infrastructure development comprehensively, and released a package of proactive, favorable credit
policies to support priority infrastructure. It also introduced measures for the management of differentiated credit review policies, and established
a sound, unified, and standardized management mechanism for differentiated policies. It promoted innovation in products and financing models,
and helped foster a virtuous cycle of technology, businesses and finance. It revitalized stock assets with loans, expanded effective investment,
and explored financing services supported by fixed assets.

-
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- ZHES5EIELS

SETTLEMENT AND OPERATION

2022F , RTHEFERAEET R, HFREXFNRFSEERE MELER. 2% 24 RBPKAEEEAR, R
BTN AR ZRIL R E L TENE, T’Ez'xbﬁiklmﬁﬁﬁf{%m?mt%iﬁ, SHEHMMEEZXREENNIAEIE, BReTEELS
B EL e FMERINDEE22.57127T RIMNHER237.9H 12T REXFHMEHFEE188.6H127T.

In 2022, CDB continued to offer diverse customer settlement products, handled settlement of fund transactions and bonds properly, and built
a multi-tiered, whole-chain, and full-lifecycle account management system. It further promoted the reduction of fees and interest to benefit
enterprises, standardized management of banking outlets, and intensified the overall operational risk management and emergency response to

ensure the safety and continuity across all lines of business. It handled settlement of RMB22.5 trillion in local and foreign currencies, clearance of
RMB237.9 trillion in local and foreign currencies, and settlement of fund transactions and bonds of RMB188.6 trillion throughout the year.

4 EEE1E

COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2022%F , RATH—TRUGRT AWK EIE, RERRESIEITIH MBEIRESENMER, MAX/NlE FH D
E. RARRIVSHELR, 2EMERAZRKERESTE1.5H1ZT, 5| RRAVESILIMAM4S,166127T, TR IFEM
REERTEZIR.

In 2022, CDB continued to deepen and expanded its strategic cooperation with other banks. CDB strengthened on-lending partnerships

for greater support to micro and small businesses. It ensured good performance in loan syndication, with more than RMB1.5 trillion of new
syndicated loans signed, and channelled RMB416.6 billion from other banks to major infrastructure projects.

A ANRIFESHRNA

HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

2022%F , RITRMFH AR HERREL, BIRSEREW U TFBAS AL RIBEEEXR, BITEERMVAR K UL
§§%M7ME§**¢EEJJ\‘}£ RETINsE A ERFE S, BT RIEX R AE RN, MR SE, ZRES|I T RS, #—THENG
BRI A REBE, BAMRP R T TEE L ARR M.

BENG. T RS ER T, ESRHREH. #— SRR BARIA, EIEIBRNNRIHL B S
s, BARSMMTFRE (1) /° —H— 5 AHFZRTBL, MERBE LB SIS, HNEID TNOERER,
BRI L B E 20228 5K, RITEADZMMAE—RATIR. ZRH TR, EHH I EESTIR
ARFLR, TELRTFAT6R.

In 2022, following the CPC’s guidelines on organization, CDB continued to improve the professionalism of its staff members. It revised the
administrative measures for job rotation and mandatory vacation for staff members holding important positions in line with the regulatory
requirements, and continued to strengthen internal control to prevent operational and moral risks. Answering the call of the government to
stabilize employment, CDB recruited staff members from various channels and offered better career development prospects to motivate staff
members.

Reforms and innovations focused on organization, remuneration, and evaluation were advanced steadily. CDB further improved the organizational
structure and conducted professional, systematic and standard-based management. It consolidated the former Planning Department and
Financial Research Institute into the Planning and Research Department (Institute)/Innovation and Development Center for BRI, regulated
the business operation of the Strategic Client Department, promoted the development of overseas representative office system, and set up a
representative office in Budapest. At the end of 2022, the CDB network included 37 primary branches and four secondary branches on the
Chinese mainland, one branch in Hong Kong, 11 representative offices in other countries, and six majority-owned subsidiaries.
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4 RITIE)
STAFF TRAINING

20225, ATUAS REFIIRA L. KFRSELLENBIF, ATRABSZIITERZN. SIEN . HSTHKFE. 0I5
ARFE, RN NABARESRBHBERIES, PEPEFRZN - AEHAEFTH. REREERAES, R
ERFELRLR, RERAENRR, REMEBRFEE K. 2 FXNIBCHEZINII14E, T AL NI AZIIPIO0H .
MBAEBIBHEARRIR, AFRFMIEFLIE, FEFIMER.

In 2022, CDB provided more professional, systematic, and standard-based internal training, aiming at quality training for staff members and
strong support to business development. New training formats and methods were introduced in studying the guiding principles of the Sixth
Plenary Session of the 19th CPC Central Committee, and category-based and tiered education and training activities were carried out for Party
members to study the guiding principles of the 20th National Congress of CPC. Highlighting ideals and convictions, the strategy of supporting
development, capacity and professionalism, and build-up of resources, the Bank held 14 training sessions on theory studies and 90 sessions

on professional knowledge and skills throughout the year. It strengthened the building of internal teaching team, developed micro-lectures, and
enriched the training system.

4 ERRHENEE

IT MANAGEMENT

20224 , KITHEX " HIF AT BB, RAEHBFUEDL S ITEES . T O TREMINE”, RELS LRI,
TRERBER PIERKR. AL EIE. JXLI}\_‘IA%M HENBESERIEITHES, REF R LS. RIEL S
REUERNEBELEEERTKEL. FETEEERGEAR, HNTEBNE KK, REMNZR2HHKE, BUER
R FFIEsE N BIZ. IR Wit = 0" BERE R IEMEZENPL 2L RE, AR ESEREN I ELENX
BHREIER .

In 2022, CDB implemented the strategy of Digital CDB and steadily promoted digital transformation. The new-generation system for core services
has been put into operation to support business development and innovation. IT support was enabled for priority services, including all-course
credit, student loans, treasury, operations, risk compliance, and data application, to improve the procedures for student loans and systematic and
centralized handling of confirmations. It continued to enhance the IT governance system, optimized IT management mechanisms, strengthened

cyber security, and reinforced the prevention and control capacity against IT risks. Efforts were made to improve infrastructure in the three centers
in two localities and ensure safe operations at important times, so as to provide strong IT support for business activities.

S N

SUBSIDIARIES

EAEMBERRELT
CDB Capital Co., Ltd.

EFEmERTEATIMIZT2009FE8H , EMALS19.6712T. ATERRR, BEFT I, £EZSET I FEREIIMNE
B, ESREERAEEEES, RS EBEFT I SRFEIHXBENE, SHEFAEE KILFH. BEBRAIXSE
EREALBXEZEN —F B BIREG1E, SHURSZSEFTHEARE. 20225, AT EL% “ BRE . MR BHXE .
RER"THEFE mEAKR, AHRESAEEEKE REOEFILESEARMNKERE . 2 FIRRELIS7127T, LEEF
H222.68127T. BLEFR, AR HE1,65412 7T
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) , with a registered capital of RMB81.967 billion, was founded in August 2009. The company concentrated
resources on its mandate, and gave play to the role of guiding investment in various professional platforms. Relying on national strategic funds,
it supported strategic emerging industries and key areas of technological innovation, supported the development of key national strategic
regions such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze Economic Belt, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and the BRI international
cooperation, promoting economic and social development in various respects. In 2022, with a main focus on strengthening Party building,
boosting weak economic sectors, preventing risks and promoting development, the company strictly controlled risks, constantly improved
its operation and management capacity, and steadily promoted business development, reform and transformation. Its annual new investment
exceeded RMB45.7 billion, and its net profit was about RMB2.268 billion. At the end of the year, its total assets reached RMB165.4 billion.

E ISR ERAT

CDB Securities Co., Ltd.

EFIESRMDBRAT ML TF20105H8A , 2017H8A MR MG $I S . 20224, A 5)E NITEHFERBIRIT, TWHS
€ H2,233.9127T, BELIBK93.24% , T HEB E 14 BEFR, A8 D HF446.16127T.

CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities) was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company in August

2017. In 2022, the company worked to build itself into a distinctive boutique investment bank. It underwrote RMB223.39 billion bonds, an
increase of 93.24% year on year, ranking No. 14 in the industry. At the end of 2022, its total assets were RMB44.616 billion.

EREMEERNBRAE

CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

EREMHEERMER AT F2016FE7 AEEBHRERXSMIREE LT STMEAR126.42127T. 20225, RERANTEW
FRRER REERRYSERMELS, ARSEAKBTRIFTESL  BGSHRM. BEFR, AT BHE=3,547.17
27,

CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (CDB Financial Leasing), with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion, was listed on the main board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in July 2016. In 2022, the company thoroughly implemented the new development philosophy, focused on

operations in key regions and priority sectors, showed renewed commitment and achieved new results in supporting the group’s strategy. At the
end of 2022, its total assets were RMB354.717 billion.

FIELRESERLAT

China-Africa Development Fund

A RESHRATRLFL007F6H, RPEE—RETFHERAUBAVEAES, BAL1001ZE 7T . 20225,
FIEARESREFRIL, BSPIESERIEZE/EBKASW  NIM IR SELGY, #HIRFILSSHELR,
SEFIBIIFIRFTIREKO.2812FE Tt BEFR, RIT LRI IFRHE50.8512E 7T, ERAAIRITHES0ZETEEIKE -
China-Africa Development Fund was established in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specialising in Africa investments. In
2022, CADFund, committed to its mandate, advanced high quality development of its investment business in priority areas such as the Nine
Programs of the Eighth Ministerial Conference of the Forum on China-Africa Cooperation (FOCAC). It committed USD628 million for investment

in Africa throughout the year. At the end of the year, with its actual investments in Africa totaling USD5.085 billion, CADFund completed USD5
billion investments as originally designed.
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XU T
RISK MANAGEMENT

ATHRELZRNZE, FETEXNREETEESR, RUNKEERZEZTLAR, RAXNKEEKF EHRNELIULXE
=, MR IR TR, HEM AR e N E, ETRBITIFR TSR G, RREPEXKR K.
CDB balances development and security, continuously improves the institutional framework of risk management, and optimizes the methods and
tools of risk management to improve its performance in risk management. It has strengthened risk control in priority areas and takes concrete

measures to relieve risk and recover losses. It continues to intensify efforts to prevent and resolve financial risks, commits itself to a long-term
campaign against financial risks, and never compromises on the bottom line of risk prevention.

1. SERKREE

COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT

FTEZEXNEEEPEELLE. 28BS BT BRMNERRN, 2R XNEEEREN, ERZER BEAE.
BRB GBI

20224, FATRMM X EAIERBEAMKICHE, £ R NEANKLRE T, &0 " NERIEEBW . HlHIRIERT
EHEIARSH ERRERY WNREERR, TEXNREENFRENGEZIE, SEUBLESENKR. FRE
HXBIR B SR, BB EEX LR, RIXECERE, FES T HERONE EZEE. BEEAXKRREFRES, ZL2R
TN RF BN, REXNRBEFOIBESES HEMUEREAZTFEEREERR NDREE FIERT EERE.
BFHE. NKEER. RAZRENTAFERAEAZTFAEERY. a2 — MU EANFREEER, 2EAHLFLS
R EENE . BUE RNEEIR, RANLERW ZRF WA, HEHIKE XUFEE RHIRAN.

CDB practices comprehensive risk management following the basic principles of symmetry, full coverage, independence, and effectiveness,
establishing a robust risk governance structure, which works efficiently to keep risks under control at various levels.

In 2022, CDB maintained its prudent risk appetite in response to the complexities, risks and challenges at home and abroad. It made a special effort
to strengthen its risk management system to create a clear governance structure and fully-developed procedures, modernize the toolkit and carry
out effective monitoring. It refined its risk management system, processes, and tools, and effectively handled various sources of risks. A group-wide
exercise was carried out to identify, evaluate, and categorize risks and determine responses. A CDB group risk appetite statement was prepared and
multi-layered risk appetite management framework established for improved risk appetite breakdown and implementation. It continued to improve
and iterate the client management system of the group, and kept enhancing the customer management performance and efficiency through tiered
management, implementation of rules, management process, collaboration of the head office and branches, risk control, and system building. It
continued to improve the system of consolidated statement management, and upgraded the risk management mechanism of subsidiaries in all
respects. Risk awareness of the entire staff was strengthened to enhance CDB's risk management capacity and promote a risk culture.

4 ERXEE

CREDIT RISK

2022%F , R{TH—FIMRBEAITREE, MUREEXFTFAERIFRTENBRIFEL W EHITRER, FREBEFH
PN EFRETUER T, BITE P ERITRERANREALIBRIENE, FRVIEIFEEINEEMRERIRNE
SUITFRER MEAFEEREKRES], BPHE2TERLSEERER. EROD. NERERSHEXER KNEFERKRE
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In 2022, CDB further refined credit rating management, improved credit rating methods for central SOEs and credit rating models for technology
innovation-oriented enterprises, and developed special rating methods for specialized and sophisticated SMEs. It revised operational procedures
for handling major risk incidents in client credit rating, and formulated differentiated rating policies to support strengthening infrastructure
development in all respects. Annual credit policy guidelines were circulated to clarify the overall objectives, priorities, risk control and other
requirements of the Bank’s credit business. Special green and low-carbon credit policies were issued to support the development of key green
and low-carbon areas. The Bank refined the early warning and management mechanism for credit risk, and put into use the early warning and
management system for credit risk, enabling the digital and intelligent transformation of early risk warning and monitoring. CDB intensified risk
management in key areas, carried out quarterly reviews in branches, and monitored clients in high-risk areas on a monthly basis, making its risk
management more forward-looking and targeted. Risk exposure and response were strengthened, key risky clients were put on a special list, and
plans were tailor-made to enable proactive measures. Under the guidance of the CPC CDB Committee, the Bank achieved breakthroughs in key
areas by adopting the accountability system, defining the responsibilities at all levels for risk resolution. With challenges overcome, the progress
was efficient and effective. The Bank refined the risk management toolkit, adhered to the principle of “quality over speed, and compensation over
completion”, and formulated schemes for tackling each NPL. It improved the performance of risk mitigation and loss recovery by closely combining
such efforts with off-balance sheet disposal. It resolutely disposed of major project risks, and continued to improve the risk management capacity.

5, WIHRER

MARKET RISK

2022%F , AT R B RFER. ENERMTZLEN, FEMBRULSFEEMHA, ELXIRHHH. GEminE LS
MIHRERR, EPEREEA—ARUTZNRERE. FERUHESRE, TEDHNRIZFER, 2UTZXEEEK
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EHE . MRRBIE R R X ERSIEF, BRXKRAKFEHETAZHRER.

In 2022, CDB kept a sharp eye on the developments in international and domestic financial markets, continued to observe and analyse
the macroeconomic landscape, and focused on the risk conditions in the monetary market, bond market and other business areas, and
coordinated the integrated market risk management across the group. It continued to refine the rules and procedures, improved the market risk
control system, and strengthened the long-acting mechanism for market risk management to promote the steady development of business. It
strengthened the group’s overall management of exchange rate risks, adhered to the risk-neutral concept, and continued to refine the mechanism

for controlling exchange rate risk appetite and limit. It also took measures to carry out interest rate risk mitigation and control, to ensure that the
risk level is kept within the tolerable limit.

- O EN XS

LIQUIDITY RISK

2022%F , KITHRAREHENRNMXNKGEREREN, IMAB~RAHRLE. R #HENRIFEMSEFE, HIRELS
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RTE2LERE, RESITRIERS.

In 2022, CDB consistently followed a prudent approach to liquidity risk management which maintains total amount, maturity and progress
matching between assets and liabilities and structural balance and constantly updates strategies in light of business growth and market changes.
CDB continuously improved its liquidity risk management mechanisms to enhance its emergency response capacity to liquidity risk, taking into
account the sources of funding and purposes of financial services of a DFI. Leveraging multiple tools to monitor liquidity risks, CDB maintained

the liquidity reserves at an appropriate level and established a management framework covering the whole spectrum of its services, including the
upper, middle, and lower streams, to ensure liquidity safety.
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4 BRIEXEE

OPERATIONAL RISK

2022%F , RITHEMUBIENKRHERRMEELR, RABEXNRSIRITRIZKE. B TS REXNKR S BiFbE
RRR, W72 N 2T HRENK X BIERARER, FRBEZ 1410 LS ELENRIEXNKR SRS B4 TIE. TR
BENKEEBERAKIETS . EMNERE. WS ERENARENK S TE, STTREBEREN . RIEXKRZRE
EERFRUBRIE MBLEAXBKIZRERMNIZNIEL, TEXKXSEANEE RUXEIGEEARE, BT
KEZSEENE TN TRXEXZ RERKNEARE RATFRBRNNXEKRZ ZEME B EEL, iz
XER P EG L EXIZ1T B IRERRESEASTREC A EIE. HIEN XK ERRNIZIFEIEIR, BN KRR RS,
FRERINE X

In 2022, CDB continued to improve its institutional system and tools for managing operational risk and promote IT-based management of
operational risk. A self-assessment index system for operational risk and control has been established and improved. It rechecked the 25 key
indicators of bank-wide operational risk in seven fields, and organized self-assessment of operational risk and control covering 14 business lines.
It completed data migration, basic environment setting, monitoring import, index monitoring, and report test of the operation risk management
system, enabling systematic operation in key index monitoring and quarterly operational risk reporting. The Bank carried out group-wide training
of the new rules on the supervision of related-party transactions and strengthened their implementation; promoted group-wide management
of related-party transactions and set up a management office in charge of related-party transactions; revised the management measures for
related-party transactions, and submitted the first regulatory statements on related-party transactions under the new regulations. It launched a
self-inspection and rectification campaign for regulating equity and related-party transactions, promoted the launch and operation of the new
generation system for core related-party transactions, and timely submitted data of related parties to the EAST of the CBIRC. It developed the
internal control evaluation indicators for the outsourcing risk management, established a warning mechanism, and carried out outsourcing risk
assessment.

4 SRS
COMPLIANGE RISK

202248, RITLUABESE LR R BE R Z R AT L, RIREH  WEREMKEV S ZIEE" SMES, PIXLEERFLS
AEEGHEENXEDTAMESRSTYT, BAGNE SMESEKE ILLMTFRARESKSBRMIMNIFEE L I o) RE
B RBAREN B R KEEXNM S ELER, BERARAE BEANTE FERNERBEELHN. BEES
REE5NEMAX, REFRADITREEMEENENANEIR.

In 2022, CDB focused on implementing the rectification requirements of the central inspection team, implemented the tasks in the Year of Long-
acting Internal Control Mechanism, identified the key links and weak points of internal control and compliance system for credit business, and
improved the management in key areas of compliance. It went all out to rectify problems identified in notifications and on-site inspections by the
CBIRC; solve problems on a case by case basis and summarized the lessons to ensure good results in a long run; addressed both the symptoms

and root causes, focused more on a permanent solution, and continued to sustain the effect of root cause rectification. A compliance culture was
fostered that encouraged all to strengthen law-based and compliant operation and increase awareness in this regard.

= —
- EENXE
REPUTATIONAL RISK

2022%F , RfTH— D REFENKERE . ESUEE. TEFEXKRFRNE, BITEFEXNKEENE, BRSEED
EEOREEAFESHHERRIT RABBLMERY, BUEBEN, TEFESHRERE, HTHEBNNME,
MBI, RETERNY, ITEFEEE MEFFEXNKAEEE, BUEERNRHEENNES, FRFEXKE
DM, ALAFERNKEIZ)IMNEEKRS.

In 2022, CDB further improved the whole-procedure management of reputational risk and made it a regular exercise. It improved the mechanism
for preventing and controlling reputational risk, revised the rules on reputational risk management, and defined the duties of senior management
in reporting major reputation incidents to the Board of Directors. Responses to public opinions were made more effective as a result of better
monitoring, streamlined reporting path of reputation-related events. The Bank formulated response plans for public opinion, strengthened

evaluation and analysis, took a multi-pronged approach, and laid stress on reputation restoration. CDB improved daily management of
reputational risks, strengthened examination and emergency drills, conducted stress tests and organized training and checkups.

-
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A ElBIXEE

COUNTRY RISK

2022%F , AT H LR EE N NEME RIS XEERER, BV BENFEREN ERBUSEFHH TN, R EN . 247,
REMRSEEANRNEMERLSREES, FEREBVEFINKEFEEESNRDEER, 2EEIE XK REFFHR
KREERE FREANKREBRONNZEHNH, RORKENGEIENERWYSERIIEDS | SMIFREER.

In 2022, CDB kept improving the system for managing country risk and risks in international business; closely monitored and took effective
measures to respond to changes in the international political and economic landscapes; timely monitored and analysed incidents with country
risk and risks in international business for early warning and reporting, and strengthened country risk concentration management, and total risk

control; fully executed strategies for country risk appetite and management; and conducted special studies and quarterly reviews on major risks.
Strong country risk management provided support, incentive, and guarantee for the growth of CDB's international business.

A EREE XS

STRATEGIC RISK

2022%F , RITMMMBERLRABAAL, EXARRITEREBLREKE+OA"HHIVSLERAL, Z2HRE
I, REIHFIW, ROZKEFRMESEER, MANEMZE. RZQFMNHELLREERIAEEZRBMADE. N
RIS AR SEIERN S N, RAE BB AREBEXE =4

In 2022, CDB supported national development strategies and plans, put into practice the high quality development strategy of the Bank and its
business development plan for the 14th Five-year Plan period, focused on its mandate, and gave full play to its role as a DFI. It increased loans in

priority areas such as infrastructure, technological innovation and manufacturing. It strengthened the dynamic monitoring of the implementation of
strategies and plans, seeing no major strategic risk incidents.

EE
n

R

4 ERREMXEE

IT RISK

2022%F , ATHEREEEMENREREAR, EGEERENKREEEMEEERE. BITEERENEEEFN,
REBRMENKIFHEMEEZEERART TG A —TRAGERKNEENEREROBESE. ARENLE YN, &
EMAIR S o

In 2022, CDB continued to strengthen its IT risk management system and improve the defence structure and management procedures. It revised

the IT risk management manual and launched a campaign to evaluate IT risk and the operation of important information systems. A more future-
oriented, effective and comprehensive system of T risk monitoring indicators was in place to enhance regular monitoring and reporting.

o RERIE

INTERNAL CONTROL

2022%F , RATH AR A ARIZ I E IR MU T ERNEIERN, B2 X3RN SFEZAORNE RG], FR DA
EARNNS AR T TEEUZAEERER TE, MERIINREELIER, B2z AEAXRBEITTIE, K
BEERIUIRIZEMHTEFENER, §IETENR, BHESGEEEORATFR A NA AT, BE2RITIFEERE
R, MUABREREERS XU NER, TUMRBEHS ML TBLVZEENG 2B S FETS N EHIENER, 4
L[IFRATIZHBRMEITMN . RFEATAMLEZHERREAPIAZER, REPARLINAZEZEERRGFEERGREE, NEE
EHS2AER HUNBEFRENEI, K172 REBUEN B 6.
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In 2022, CDB continuously strengthened internal control management. The structure for authorization management and mechanism for
differentiated authorization and dynamic adjustments were strengthened, and dynamic adjustments of basic authorization in branches were
carried out. It launched a campaign to strengthen the internal control compliance of credit business, and addressed the problems found in internal
and external inspection. It adopted the scenario-based defect analysis method, identified problems of internal control compliance regarding
credit, formulated the work plan, and defined the improvement measures. In-depth internal control evaluation was carried out in all branches to
improve the internal control evaluation index system and enhance the rating and scoring model of internal control efficiency, with a full coverage
of all branches and major business activities. CDB further improved its internal control evaluation system and carried out evaluations. According
to the assessment, no major defect was discovered in the internal control system during the reporting period, pointing to effective work in this
area; improvements were made where necessary.

SHa crlay
- RAEHE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

/]

AITRAEEURSEREE . HERLAREER  XNEERARERBENER, RORERZEAYRITISREZE.

5| SFREIER .

20224, RATREBRAFMMNEAE RN, NERAANERREM, FIBAHHNREMINALITS001ZTT Z R, BARLEHZ
RERE, RRRBEIH— SRS ATEREERNAAEHEES B ELEAN X RBEARAE. HERE R
ARRBREAZOHIBERARYS, BUEARASETRRERIT, EVERANBREART 2IFEMRAERIFHA " JOFE”
RER GEZEEARAEEMNNEEENRATEREE T BV ENEARAATERR, REREF R AEERY,
AEEHEREGNERNEN, NEHTRARESRETAZIE.,

BRBRERES( B WIRTERSENE (R17) EEXANEITE, #E 2022F K, AMTHEORKRAZEN18,345.1912 7T,
—RRAREE15,090.19127, O—REXZREI5,077. 11270, RAREEN1.37%, —RRATEEI.34%, 2L —%
RAEFEBEIIBY; RTHATEAORRRRIN7,961.81127T, MO — R AKX LBIN— KA A LE14,826.03127T, &
AFREEI.27T%, ZO—REARATRERM—REEATEERI.27%o

The purpose of CDB’s capital management is to promote national development strategies, comply with capital management regulations, and

b

preserve and increase the value of state assets. CDB manages its capital in a way that supports, directs and guarantees the growth of its
business.

In 2022, in line with the principle of preserving asset value and seeking modest returns, CDB strengthened its capacity to independently generate
capital, and successfully issued RMB50 billion secondary bonds through market-based channels. With its capital structure remaining stable, the
Bank saw an increase in its total capital stock. Following its capital management philosophy, it laid equal stress on regulatory compliance and
guarantee of development. The capital restraint mechanism centered on capital adequacy ratio was enhanced; the top level design for capital
management was improved, which saw the creation of a “double-assessment” system of internal capital adequacy assessment process and
capital management assessment, a three-year capital management plan, a management plan for capital adequacy ratio, and a capital budgetary
system. Capital management continued to perform better, providing capital support for fulfiling the development tasks while meeting the
regulatory requirements.

As calculated in accordance with the Rules on Capital Management for Commercial Banks and other relevant regulations, as of the end of 2022,
the Bank, on a consolidated basis, had a total capital of RMB1,834.519 billion, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,509.019 billion, total Common Equity
Tier 1 capital RMB1,507.711 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.37%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.34%, and Common Equity Tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio 9.33%. As for the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,796.181 billion, both total Tier 1 capital and total Common
Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,482.603 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.27%, and both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio 9.27%.

-
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l HEREEE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

2022, ATHEG " 1B2E N NERL"HED, REETHIW, RAOKEES
WEAHIER, ERSMBANMRMEFRLRER. ENSREBLRIOSIES, R
ABRTERIENBANE. ARM, #MA KV aMtasan, RERRME.
BFUARAPO BEEELR. BEQUHEKDN. BIEFEASEAMEHLE R
FiTohem, "ERERREXBEAMEZWOLESEXIRRHRETRA LM
ERNE, NEHREIREREN. MNRELEXSE2030F O HF L RIIZR Mt
BEH .

RITHBEM(ERFARRIT2022THLELRRE ), WERTEITHETE. B
NEMTFHFELROER S LK

In 2022, as mandated by its mission to support national development and deliver a better
life for the people, CDB brought into full play its counter-cyclical role as a DFI, promoted
and integrated its business into the new development paradigm, and supported high quality
development. In the process, it made its financial services more politically-oriented and
people-centered and created both economic and social benefits. It remained committed to
development as a priority, a people-centered approach, inclusiveness and benefits for all,
innovation-driven development, harmony between human and nature, and results-oriented
actions. Through the provision of development finance, it contributed to building China into
a great modern socialist country that is prosperous, strong, democratic, culturally advanced,
harmonious, and beautiful, and supported the Global Development Initiative (GDI) and the
implementation of UN 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

The CDB Sustainability Report 2022 shall be released to communicate the Bank’s approaches
and practices in performing corporate social responsibility and boosting sustainable
development.
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FES®IM — HONORS AND AWARDS —

People.cn

ARGUHEFER —FEALE

SRIRTIR

People’s Social Responsibility Award — Enterprise of the Year

Financial News

PEESHIAESERE SR —FERERSSEMBEAM
RIEZRRT

PEHKZRESS (NEBA ' PEINEARESR")

Bank of the Year for Infrastructure Development

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation (now renamed China Foundation
for Rural Development)

B N IR R BB AR STk

FERGTUIMEEZEEREIVERS

Outstanding Contribution Award for Poverty Alleviation

Green Credit Special Committee of China Banking Association

SERTITNEHEM

EEZUE. ANFERER. BRMESF

Role Model of Green Bank Evaluation

National Afforestation Commission, Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security, and National Forestry and Grassland Administration

EEZMNTHER

K& E £ IREZL P E MK

National Afforestation Role Model

UN Global Compact Network China

IR EA R BAr bl & ESE:
—HmRIARTRELR
THERRR AR R

T RF 4SRN HS (ADFIAP)

Best Practices Awards by Companies on Sustainable Development Goals:
Sustainable Development along the Belt and Road
Eradicating Poverty and Promoting Prosperity

Association of Development Financing Institutions in Asia and the Pacific
(ADFIAP)

2022F KRB LRINE K :
LELRENHEMELR
RN R RERFR

(RERITRIEIRY

Development Awards 2022:
Winner of Financial Inclusion
Merit Award of SME Development

China Banking and Insurance News

i PES R MEERT — F R REERRE

(ERBFI) REH

Jinnuo « Exemplary Case of Finance Communications (case of
new media communications of CDB student loans)

Periodical Office of Financial Computerizing

2022F £ MW EERERBRRETUE

RHFEAT

Outstanding Contribution Award for Information Security Development of the
Finance Industry 2022

Bond Connect Company Limited

EmBRFLITA

Outstanding Northbound Issuer



e

52 ERFA4$RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

IBDOZ

EL IR F[2023]52A30128S

ERFRBTERES :

[== 0 =3
BEERS $1+l§\lj_lb
BN\ TERFRRITOMSIRE, S1F2022F12A31BNEHRRITASARE, 2022FENEHRRITFER. SHRRITMBENGZLENE.
AR ERTUSRERURBXY SREM T
ROV, EHRHMSREEMBERTBZBLEVSITENMAERS, ARRMTERFRRIT2022F12831BHEH RIRITM SRR AR 2022F
ENEHARBRITEERRNASRE.

- =]
Z. EREIERNEM

HEOZBHREEMSITIHERIDENNRERT TEITLE. EHREN MM SREFITNTE B E—LEARTHRNEXLEN TR
1Fo ZBEARESGEMSIHHIRVEZTN, RNBZFERALRT, FETTRIVEZEFENEME(E. HMBE RNRANWEHEHERRS. X
B, ARFRETELRME T EiM.

=, XEBHITE

REEITEMRRORERUHE, AANEHRVSREFHRNEENET. XLEETHLY AT SREBER TR HEREHAEANER, A
X LEEFRHEIRE XN

HNEFITPIRAEHRERITEILE2WT ¢

(=) ZREEFNBR. RIKENVSEREEHOTAERIRKITE

(Z)  SEWEERNEH



(=) RRESERAER. HRRENMSEREFORBERRKITE
ERFLBRITEHARFARKPURRAR T EBORREARMBRZHMAARD
144,702.13127T, HRFIANTUMEBIREESEAARTE6,192.0325T ; WHIKIE
Y SERERESMAARDSI7,288.52127T, HWEBANTITARKARIARD
283.61127T0 2022F EAHABR PN R MERAMBR . FHUKENY S ER
BREAREREEMAITAART,104.52{25T.
BAMERNBRTPERRLES. RIRBENVSEREBIOTARRARRTE
RAZRTEER(UTHR EER" MRB(LUSITENSE2S - SR T AR
ATEYNME, RBMBERRAEE, EMSREBNMBERREMENRE
flito
EERBIFEAMERMNBR. RHRKENVSERERBNOEANKEBNBIIASE
RERERN, EA=MERAEEITEMHBEABRL. ITURRRATEBHRK
HRAMBR. URSHRAXKENMYSEREE, ERREANELEERZIAAEE
AR, BAREER, FANKRBBMNNEEXRSUNNLSBIRE KT HIRE
o
MBERIRRITEREMESHNERERRHMMBREEE60ME
(1) KEBEUEAREFSLENLSUAR-—NMEE, EFRLAHITERE, Hil
ETBAXMXBSH
() ERRKREZHEN. EHFMELEERBENFEIRE
() BTFREMTENEFER. SFERERANENRME ;
(4) B=MEREAMERMBRERRAS RN
ERFRZRITAMIERRKIT BRI T X EAIRRZFIRHIE
ERFLARITOABERRK TR, EETERNRE, ZHTRENSLNKIE,
BTRERRFEEMTTARENER, PREXERRHHNRIR. ELENH
EENKEEITED.
AXREBESAMSREMEND. 7, MOER. 1, MEE/N\ 6, ME/\. 25, HiE/\.
ABRMPEF . 20

#Hitike — INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT — 53

FANFNAMIL T SLMEAFRMBR . FHFENM SEBREFAOABERIRKITE

EXROABEHRITRIBTOERE, TB0E

(1) SRETTECHEE. FHENA, URERRFSERNEAAXHREBES

(2) SHEEUMAMMEITME. BEEEEE, SKET. FRANKREEEMN. 9
MEREGRRBEHET, DURATRE MK X T AR E E 3R i 09 8 28
HABK IR ERIRE |

(8) SRETEERPXBEIBERANCEREMNZTREEABXO RIS ;

(4) SREZMREAMEFMBRORRASATONAIETEEXORERIZE

(6) SHEEHBHEXNEERARIE.

NPT RMERF, TE28E

(1) EMNEXRTMPERREBETEHEE, YEEUS. BERE. XES
B, EAHEMNEROAEESET 7RG ROBMHEIETRENEZE, N
HITBEERRRYMRRT ERRRESORETTERL.

(2) BETFERANMBSMEVSESREMINDERENERERE, RONBETMET
EEENERNKEERN. SAMNEREGHRERRHMATENLB RS
o

(B) MFREMITE, RNERTERRERNLFIER. SFIIRNENEL
DIER, WHET EF BRI ENSEE.

(4) HMNHHLETRIANTEMEBOXBEIRORAN, BEALEITEALR
E, LOPEEERENZEM. ROUXBREECRETBRASIENELR
SR EEOEB AN TR TR IE, DISIEEER M.

(6) MTFE=MEREEMEARMBR, HNEREL, KETEERETHERAM
BRANMSER. REEDHRITENE. HtaERtRERSERE
BERBENTITRRALRERFTAEMITHNRL LS.

(Z) EMeEGENEH
ERFLARTHEMUTERIZAELT. RE. EERRANESESUR. &
FEETNRESS, F20225128318, AHMSRRPFZANRAEGIECEN
EMUEARPRFARMERALRTLT. REREENRHANEIHEENEML
FRBEF=NESF)NART146.001ZTHART1,626.68127T ; tboh, ERFLR
TRAVBEMIERT. REREENRANSIEENSWLEIARNKENER
ARM200.401Z27T,
ERARBITELIFEUT @AM EREMUTARREFTENNEGHUSIRRTE
:

o WHEMUTERAEHEIN ;

o  BESS5HEMUTARNBXFNMEZENITEER ;

o BRENEANEMUIEMNNZMERFRBTERSAMOITFEER.
ERFRBITEMUEIERNESTER, EEENEMUIEEHINITE, TREXH
W, B, ROVBEMUTERMEIHENXBEHITER.

MAXEBES NI, 29, MBER. 2MMHE/\. 47,

HNNAREENEMRU TR, TRIEHEFEEEALE

(1) LTRSS T 893 B AR € 49 0 3R 42 6 B9 IR THRE 7 A0 B SO AT 348
it ;

(2) BIERGEIFMETARRSEN T OGRS URERFRRITHE
MU EREIRT ;

() ZHRZMTTERSFMNE, TRERBEERRFEAR~EEARR
SNHWRENAE. BEORRKE, URRENEMUETERRETRIMES
FHRHEMSS

@) DEMTFHEERFARBROINEMUEEREREEE. FETEEARRSI
WABMRBHOREKTE. REEEMEAEEPHEMNEHABTREIRN
RELUREMS ST HENTRERF, DA ERFLRITESEUEERR
SHEEREBAZRIEZEREANAEE.

-



"

54 ERF%4RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

. Hi 58

EEEMNAMEEAR. AMERERERFRRIT0FEFERETEENER, EALEUSREMNRNNFITRE.

NNV S REARNENRARNEZEMES, RNECAYEMERAREALANEIESEL.

SZAEEMNYMBSRENOE T, HNPFTERMZEMES, AtERES, ERAMEERESUSRRAXNERITIRT TRINBERFEERAL—H
FEUFEFEERER.

ETFERNENTHIE, URBRNHEEMESFEEAER, HNELAREZEL. £AXHE, RNTETERFTERS.

N = =

h. EEEMAEENMFZRRNFE

EFERATERAUSIHENNAERHIMSRE, EEIARRRBR, Hi&iT. ATHLEPLBORIEG, LEMSREFFEHTEERBRSH
HEXRER.

ERFIVSREN, EERARITHEERFARRITOFEELEH), RESHLLEAXNET(WER ), AEABLLERE, KRIFTWHITESR.
L IEEERH T HMILAER

BERAREERRFRRITNUSREIRE.

— N A\ [ IS ==

75 GEMRIHIN M S REREITHEE
HMNHUBERRNVSBREEAREAFERTHESERSBNEAERRNEERE, FHAQSEITREANEITRE. SERIRSKFHNRF/IE, €
HAEREZBEIDENUATHRHER - EXERFENSHELN. GRYEATHEEIERSH, NRAEMHERPIRFCESERTEZLMY SR
FRERAEREVSREELOEFRE, WBBANERREAN.

ERBRERIDENHITEITTENDRESR, RIEARLHAE, FHRSFRVRE. B, ROBRTUTIE:

(=) RAMIFAHFEERBRSBNMSREERERNL ;| BHHZEEIHEF UMY XLERE, FHRINES . ELMHITER, (FARKHEITE
REEM. ATFERITRILREE. HE. HEERE. EREAEZETAREHZ L, RELNATEESBNERERONKLS FRELNA
FHRSBHERERAINK .

THRSHEITAXORFIES, LURHASHEITER.

M ERRERSITBEROEIMEE ST RBXIRENSEN.

MEERERFEZLERRMEIANBLEEL. B, RERADNWENEE, SUTESENERFRROFEEERNTAEETERRENERNSRER
REGFAEEATHERFHEL. NRENSHLAOANEFEERARIHEN, FITENERBNERHREPRBEV/EEAZIEM SREPHHE
KB MREBEARSD, HNNIARZELTREEL. HNPERETEEFITREDTRBHERS . A, RERNEIRERTESHERF
RIRITRBERBREE,

MM SIREROSETIR( BEKE ). SRS, HTNUSREREARRBRBXZZNEDT.
RERFRRITPLERIN S EFHOMSESRIMES . BENEIDEE, UHMSRELEREFFTEL. ENATES. BENRTERARIT, 7
MEITERAEBEERE.

HNSBEEHRTHWOEITEE. NEZHNERRHTRASEIOHITAE, SEABHNERITHIRFHESOIHNIBIZHRE.

KNS ET SR MBXNRIERERERERRMER, HFSEERMBIYRKSEANZMENMIENMEXRMEMER, LIREXNOH
SEETE (20EM o

MNERERABINETF, RNBEBLERY APV SREFHTRAZTE, EMUEXEEITER. RNERHREPREAXLER, BRIFEREN
BUEATHEEXLED, FERVEERT, NRGEMPERHRETABESTTEANABEREBIAEAARN BT E~ENEL, RIBERLER
IHREPBBEIZET.

IERTI

B

VAR IE PECEMSITID : RES
(FHEBEK) (MBAA)
hEeLE

PEEMSITID : D58

—OZ=F#mBZ+tH FESEMRITN - FR



1538 % — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 55 ‘

BHRIRITR™ A

2022¢E12831H (BRBHEEHAN, &HBENHYIARTEIIT)

A EEH T

N& RFHRFRBITHRIM 1 113,860 92,565 113,314 92,011
FRE LRI 2 113,326 195,044 146,482 221,139
FEARS 3 471,537 371,086 476,496 371,086
PTEERE~ 4 11,093 16,978 10,269 16,901
ENBESRA > 5 404,823 495,214 404,823 488,334
RILGER AR 6 13,899,107 12,791,666 13,391,556 12,640,761
SRRA

R HUSRE = 7 931,128 1,005,966 696,949 839,684

AR # 8 935,357 1,146,917 933,716 1,145,265

HARGAUIR 9 1,022,499 766,562 989,327 746,090

Hihila TREHR 10 5,354 6,060 2,042 2,055
KEARRAN % 72 11 458 443 530,630 101,730
& A 12 121,427 108,126 14,768 15,948
EEIRE 1,581 1,405 1,534 1,361
ERHE™ 13 1,696 1,940 1,368 1,587
WE 14 712 707 - -
BEEHRE 15 174,366 138,127 158,311 121,800
Hith s = 16 34,759 29,135 13,951 9,639

BrEBIT 18,243,083 17,167,941 17,885,536 16,815,391
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BHRRITETAGE - &

2022FE12A31H

(BAEEIRAN, STAMHIARTEL )

AER oy
Bk % H Ath & @A FER I 17 2,536,074 2,395,514 2,545,846 2,395,617
= BUF A1 H fth & R fE K 18 572,862 448,961 329,012 216,028
N 19 38,869 69,680 24,689 55,790
T 5 EE R 20 2,495 2,085 = -
PTEE R AR 4 18,351 9,359 18,339 8,801
S EIMS R R K 21 15,392 21,205 = 3,152
B 775k 22 1,167,724 1,079,196 1,289,644 1,188,693
Rz A+ BR T3 23 3,352 3,270 2,605 2,619
N 24 55,865 27,539 54,000 26,533
it sz 25 23,999 17,981 23,756 17,894
ERTTHRFIESH 26 12,125,956 11,480,377 12,078,952 11,433,372
i JE AT L 1 B 15 8,136 8,274 - -
HAth R 27 68,427 66,220 36,090 35,610
ARET 16,637,502 15,629,661 16,402,933 15,384,109

KU FE A 28 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
BRARNTR 29 182,650 182,650 182,195 182,195
Hhz Al 30 (13,098) (14,988) 1,314 3,473
BEAR 31 214,825 201,134 214,825 201,134
— BB AEE 32 260,425 258,519 255,123 253,382
KOEFE 33 513,776 465,883 407,898 369,850
HETHEASIFBEENAAT 1,579,826 1,514,446 1,482,603 1,431,282
DEBE RN S 34 25,755 23,834 = -
FEENEETT 1,605,581 1,538,280 1,482,603 1,431,282
SR AEENE BT 18,243,083 17,167,941 17,885,536 16,815,391
JE MM SRR M E AR M S IRFNEREBS .
AMEH/RFEATIARTAZE .
BEK T FEMEEITE &R A
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AHRBITFIAR
2022 (BRAFEWIN, SMEMNHAIARTER T)
AEH 17
—. BlREAN 239,530 195,019 206,642 157,014
BRI ON 35 170,310 143,632 158,178 135,236
F BB 633,280 601,133 613,333 584,279
F B (462,970) (457,501) (455,155) (449,043)
FEHERAERBEAN 36 1,504 1,443 611 869
FHBERBEBN 2,410 2,373 1,212 1,462
FEHERASIE (906) (930) (601) (593)
REWE 37 21,717 26,680 14,912 20,157
He . WEREMSGELWHRARR 345 650 = -
B R AT BN SMA L EHBIATE 2 102 B B
s 28
ARMEEH R 38 (14,184) 18,228 (12,040) 9,077
CHMRzE 39 43,734 (10,230) 42,601 (10,147)
HAbd A 40 14,108 13,460 135 230
HAthU s 2,341 1,806 2,245 1,592
Z.BELREH (142,392) (101,911) (127,436) (88,661)
Bi & XMt A0 41 (4,421) (4,335) (4,088) (4,106)
VS REER 42 (13,064) (12,837) (10,885) (10,658)
ERBERK 43 (115,426) (76,642) (112,461) (73,895)
HthE = RIE R K (3,031) (1,069) (1) @)
Hthlr 55 A 44 (6,450) (7,028) ©) -
=, BlFE 97,138 93,108 79,206 68,353
o E SN 86 168 63 60
b= (77) (194) (72) (165)
. g SE 97,147 93,082 79,197 68,248
" FTEELER A 45 (12,807) (12,288) (6,479) (4,055)
. O&EFE 84,340 80,794 72,718 64,193
REFEASRAENEFE 82,728 78,960 72,718 64,193
DEBRERES 1,612 1,834 = -
N, Htvg S W EmH RS 30 3,307 2,575 (1,657) 2,541
AEFHATFREENEMEERENEEEM 2,392 2,424 (1,657) 2,541
(—) MEAREESXH#RANEBE SRR (94) 997 514 146
1LEHITEREZHITYED 22 116 22 116
2HMME TERANANELS (116) 881 492 30
(Z) ERES R #ERENEMEERS 2,486 1,427 (2,171) 2,395
1 H MG E AR NMEES (2,623) 2,162 (2,417) 2,382
2 HM AU R EARAES 164 165 (6) 13
3R SIRRITEZM 4,204 (1,392) 237 -
4.HAh 74 492 14 -
AETF OB R H AL &I TR %R 915 151 = -
t. GElkmEEaH 87,647 83,369 71,061 66,734
HEFEASIMBEENGERESM 85,120 81,384 71,061 66,734
BFEFLHERENEZEWE S 2,527 1,985 = -

Ja BT SRR DT DAY SRR A AR .

-
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BHREENRENER

20226 (BRBHEEMIN, SHBAHHARTEI )
HEFBARREENS
—. 202241 H1E &% 421248 182,650  (14,988) 201,134 258519 465883 1514446 23,834 1,538,280
Z. AERETHER
(=) %% - - - - - 82,728 82,728 1,612 84,340
(Z) Efhiz el 30 = = 2,392 = = = 2,392 915 3,307
SHEBHERM - - 2,392 - - 82728 85120 2,527 87,647
(=) FRELERD - - - - ®) 8 - (73) (73)
() #5858
1 RBBERAR 31 = = - 13,691 ~ (13,691) = = =
2 RER— ARG A & 32 - - - - 1,914 (1,914) - . _
3B ENAE 33 = = = = — (19,740)  (19,740) (533) (20,273
(R) HAfte - - (502) - - 502 - - -
=. 202251231 H&H 421,248 182,650  (13,098) 214,825 260,425 513,776 1,579,826 _ 25,755 1,605,581
—. 20211 1R 421248 182,650  (17,412) 185631 248,966 434,686 1,455,769 24,823 1,480,592
Z. AEREEHEH
(—) %7058 - - - - - 78960 78,960 1,834 80,794
(Z) Eealkas 30 - - 2,424 - - - 2,424 151 2,575
SHlELHM - - 2,424 - - 78960 81,384 1,985 83,369
(Z) FAIRERD - - - - - - - (2,490) (2,490)
(M) 85 E
1TRBEEAR 31 - - - 15,503 - (15,508) - - -
2R — MRS & 32 - - - - 9,553 (9,553) - - -
3B HEMHE 33 - - - - - (22,707)  (22,707) (484)  (23,191)
=. 2021512831 A&H 421,248 182,650  (14,988) 201,134 258519 465883 1,514,446 _ 23,834 1,538,280

IS B Y 55 1R AR BHE DAY SR R A AR D
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WITHEEN LR

2022 E  (BRAFEIMNH, SWREMIYHARTET )

—. 202251 B1ARE 421,248 182,195 3473 201,134 253382 369,850 1,431,282
=, MEEETHEH
(—) %% = = - - - 72,718 72,718
(Z) Hfbiralas 30 = = (1,657) = = = (1,657)
SZAEKE B = = (1,657) = = 72,718 71,061
(=) FanE
1TRBRERAR 31 = - - 13,691 - (13,691) -
2RR—BRE A 32 = = = = 1,741 (1,741) -
SXFEENDE 33 - - - - - (19,740) (19,740)
(1) Hfth - - (502) = = 502 =
=. 2022412831 H4&HR 421,248 182,195 1,314 214,825 255123 407,898 1,482,603
—. 202141 1B 45 421,248 182,195 932 185,631 244,206 353,043 1,387,255
=, FEREBTHEH
(=) %FAE - - - - - 64,193 64,193
(Z) Hft ek 30 - - 2,541 - - - 2,541
SEKHRDEM - - 2,541 - - 64,193 66,734
(=) FEE
1RBAERAR 31 - - - 15,503 - (15,503) -
2RI — MRS A & 32 - - - - 9,176 (9,176) -
3XMHENDE 33 - - - - - (22,707) (22,707)
=, 2021F12A31 B %% 421,248 182,195 3,473 201,134 253,382 369,850 1,431,282

JE BT S5 4R AR MTE A A SR FRABA RIS .
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BHERRITHUERER

2022FE  (BRABIWI, HMBEMIINARDTEATT)

AEH 1T
i pEIAN 20224 20214 20224 20214
—. ZEFEHFENRAERE .
FFI R SRR AT E] Al SR IR % R D BT 39,773 161,883 39,054 179,960
& P TER A E) b 1F R I 4 3 N AT 212,623 - 234,565 -
5 H b S RN R £ 415 I - 6,779 = -
WBFE, FEERBENIAS 605,237 589,297 572,714 559,815
KB HMSREEFNEXNUSE 284,081 130,625 263,827 113,260
ZEFRHAETNNT 1,141,714 888,584 1,110,160 853,035
KIS RFR AN TS IE AR (1,118,929) (448,448) (767,188) (424,770)
EES IRk PN G D R (27,393) - (32,926) (33,129)
1m H At & RAALAGHR H R £ %18 N5 (86,772) (55,071) (91,672) (55,071)
TR ESRAE L F RIS R D A - (563,183) = (555,502)
TAFE. FEHERBLHNE (86,289) (91,544) (79,000) (86,158)
IHGRIEART AN E (7,851) (7,256) (6,625) (6,088)
FATHI BT 2R (60,590) (43,780) (53,016) (35,844)
IMEMEZLEFNHEXNRS (88,384) (115,811) (9,768) (107,074)
ZEEHASTHNT (1,476,208) (1,325,093) (1,040,195) (1,308,636)
ZEENFENNERE S 46(1) (334,494) (436,509) 69,965 (450,601)
Z. BEABRDHFENRERE .
W EHR R R 2 1,005,027 1,147,849 962,884 1,109,092
BERARGEREINIE 65,374 61,632 70,537 69,918
WEFATREAME B AR &5 E 280 - = -
BEI R SRABDHEXNAE 6,416 6,685 162 336
BHREHA RN DT 1,077,097 1,216,166 1,033,583 1,179,346
BAXMNRE (1,042,373) (1,129,687) (1,417,302) (1,104,269)
gl?;%?i’ﬁﬁ TR = FHH M KR =X (14.974) (25.247) (591) (680)
Ve
BEEDHUETH /T (1,057,347) (1,154,934) (1,417,893) (1,104,949)
BREHEENIERE RN 19,750 61,232 (384,310) 74,397
=, BRFHFENRERE .
R B I € - 564 = -
Heip . FAIRKDBERREEREIHAE - 564 = -
RITHRSIEHF WA S 2,631,402 2,640,976 2,607,488 2,629,757
EEFE G SR ERKEINAE 72,297 54,025 72,092 49,821
KRB HAM SEREHEELNINE 533 - = -
ERBEHRMETN DI 2,704,232 2,695,565 2,679,580 2,679,578
BEEREZANRNE (2,098,725) (2,023,570) (2,069,793) (1,996,329)
SERHM. FASEATEXANIE (393,597) (390,383) (391,965) (375,889)
HEoh . FRASXAMGEDHBEERRT . 708 (437) (223) = -
XA HMEERENEROAS (1,998) (3,328) = -
EREHMETE T (2,494,320) (2,417,281) (2,461,758) (2,372,218)
EREHENRERE R 209,912 278,284 217,822 307,360
M, CEEHHAERAS SN 14,834 (5,632) 11,525 (4,972)
. RERAEENWRRE DT (89,998) (102,625) (84,998) (73,816)
m. EMRERASENIERD 756,381 859,006 789,198 863,014
N, ERRNERMEENMRET 46(2) 666,383 756,381 704,200 789,198

B SRR DT A A SRR AR .



W 5 4R SR

20226 (RABEWIN, &FBMYHARTEAT)

—. BEXBER

ERAXRBRIT (ATERART NS AR F1994F3517
BMERBRMESRIYE. RESRHE BRAKRITF2008
FI2R B BASH AERRARBRITRMDERAS, AHEAR
HMEMBE (AT ER MBS RAFRFTEL
F(UTER CeAsa" ) HELXREE.

ZHERTRELEEEEZAS (R FERTILEBEEZR
S5 hERRLEBEEZAS AIFARMMR, MTHEHR " H®
RESHMERE. IFTHEENARETEEID, T20174
4198 BERALXRITRMBERAT BHREEN " BRFX
RIT HARRBEBENERLITEAERTELAS . HFEIER
THZEBEER (R IARTIRTREER R LS —
& {EFHAE11100000000184548S sk AEWHE, T
201756 B 13H &R R B S % A 4G0001H1110000015 4 Fl
WOl EESENFAGTEETNRFFARBHXESHEZ N,
TEBILE ATRETRERAERTBRBERLAITLHRE
o REFEE,

AORTASE (UTER AKA N BREN AERE™ A
iy, REESRSEREFERTRKARRER KETKH
RRANGESRRSILY, EETSHETS IHEMK
M. BE U RZAES L ARRSTNEEFEFHS LR,
MEWRNL. By — R RRENER RO, £5~ WikR
FEMERRE, DETERR. SREEHEFRAEBRE
NG REMREIR KRAFR BFER LELHER
HARBAATE, B XU AXZREFERRBEHFEZHN
H, W RR BERSEAENMRESEAE. Bk
ERER. BRAR. PRV ELHE FERGERE. &
EXARFEMEREFSRBAENBXNE, FEERLRESL
I B 5% S ) Y H A UL

TR PERANINMRATERAZMEZHT A
A TEANAE R ERESN AR E D ERNEANE LT
NEVFEIRA T FIMIAE.

—. WSHR SRS A

AR5 iR TR R BERT2006 28 150 X MUF S8 M 46 A9 ( &
W& AN -BEACEN) I TMEES AN I SRR
EEMBXAE (UTER SUSITHAEN" ) HH.

A ERFINIFE2E HEMREH,
=. BEEWS AN SR
AMEHREFELUSITTANNER, AL ZEBHRBRT AE
F R AT F2022F12A31HM A F R BT E RN L R20224F
ENEARRTELERRENNERE.
M. EESITBERESHET
1. SitEE
AEANSTEESABIBIBREI2A3IHL,
2. iEAALH
AEAERVBIEKACTAART, EIMIBREBRE

EMANEREFRERERCIKALT. KREABH AN
SREMXAMNEHAART.
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3. ICMKERLFNIT =
FERASTBENRF LA DCHREM, RRESUTA
DA S4B TR B A 72008 48 AR 4 1 250 3 B T A4 8 P 4R U I
I E N EASS, A 5B R UD L ARA &
B, B ORE A, W% B XA E AR 0 R
#.

4. Shmdk SIS RIRRITE

(1) shmdlss
SHEPEMEBNGRAX SR EBOMITENE. F
AP ffRE, ShH RN A R AR BT EAE IS
WA . B %AW E S BTN BT — A R
R BMPTERRET = QT HER, REBERR AR
KRR Z MO H ALK R H = £ M HZFOT AR LR
Bl I LB,

AP SE AT ERISNHIEE R I B BINZ 7R 4 B RN
CEMEMERALTERMITE NARNMET 2RI THIE
BEHMIE . XAAANEREBNRECERTE, EEHN
LERAMTH &S RIEMAM T EHMAEH, T UARMN
EFEAELTHITAEMEERENEREA ™ FHIANEML
SalE STUAANETEEETHITARBNSE
FREMAE, Wt ARE.

(2) MR FFHE

ARG EIFRBITMESRE, BIINEEMIINT M SRFTIZIN
TIHEFEAARTRE.

- AFMEERPIFHASMOGRRERBAS RGERE
RIECRBTIE

- FEENEDBRARDEMBIE S, ZEERAIRHT
RHfHE.

- FEFRPMEEI A &RRFED R EFATE %R
REHMPALCETHE,

- MERAFEMESHGRERBNFAAEENGELTNES
TEHHZE, WINAINTREFTEZN. IR A HMEGS
Wz

- SRS REUEEIMIMNANSRENE, XANE
MEREHNNPCERTE. LXEHNALEALS
NEH, fRSRERT YU CERHNAL RN
SEMYNT I BMFIT.

5. ME&ERMEZEN
NeRNLENYRIEELGNS . THREBTAHER, I
REAHMEESERABI=ABN. AsMER. 5 TRENE
MEWNE RNETHRBRRNGET A=,

6. RRMERE=ZTEX
AAMBERTHSEEFLETETHF (HXHEETETHN,
ERENTHT) AHBRARENAEFRZ T WEASF
BERERFEEL - HEMEXMONE. FELRTHH
ERIE, UERTHHHNRNBEEAANE, A FEER
THNERIR XAGERABEEAANE, HERAE
BEEMBHSE5EREHTHAEFX ST EANONE. AL
MENIE INENELREMTHSE5EE ANGER
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PNANETERTAANENGANENTARERNRIZF
BMAENAANMETTEECNERS, FUIA=PEX.

F-RARAANEREITEREBHENHERA R ARER
R AR EFBIRD,

BE_BRRBNERBRE-—BRRGNEMIXE R ARER
CALE= R RYE-J:NEPNIER

BZRRANERBEXA I AGN T TRNERAE.

. EMIAR

HAERABASRIAARERTH—TN, BIAMERHN S
MA~H SN

(1) ERA~HSHE

AEAREEESRASNLSREANEHA~NERAE
MERL, BERASUWD AMUT =2,

(1) MRERRATENSRES. ARAFFHNHERRA
TENSRAFIRERERTRRORI. FREL
RO IFHES. IANBRESRA > MR AITEN
R . GAUER A H A R kT

@) MaramETBEERHITARMBESRENSMA
AEAFEHUAANETEAETHITAEMES
ENERMATTIRCRAMRNRARAMNETAER

prd
A

Q) MAAMETEAEENTALHRRENESHA. &
FHAFEHNAANETEEETIMTALSPRENS
RMAFTREREXFUESRAS TESRASRUL
AMETEBHRBERRER.

VHEERRRT AEAMFAEESBRASN~ERER. 4
BR, ARANERENIUBREHASNERASRE,
EEREMNBRERASRENERINEESRE~HE
PR MR ERAERBRER (121, MXHHBENFES
RAET), MAZANSRASHWSERX N " HA ok
AR ANETEERTH AL RS, AEAEHE—
ALpASVESBRANEENER RS DTN REZE
BEEMRER OZARTHLSENETEIF LIRS <RER
AR R EMERE, MRV SERA R KGRI
=,

MRV EHEXABRERALRE, AEFURERALR
BMEESRATHONERN, AREAK T HESREA~19I
ERBEBRANEKEMURENES ST AEMBOTEX
., EFEN, ARANTESBESRATARISRENN
BRHEEPRELENERERHETIVE, WREREH
ELRAEGRANEREBFANER. EARFRTBELAS
RANEREBHALNER WEXERASDEIURXRNE
HTEBEHEZRHMITALSHRANSHA~.
HTERARTELRANERA” EHEARAERER
BRARESF BHOIAN, REEEA—NBEDIT.
AERANFESFTEMNETIANTEDT
BmEIR
BEIAREMNRTHARESFTHEEHABREXN IR
(BRETEERNBEXERDIRANETRNFRERT
). flmBER BEGRSMASRS. i IENAESRE
SUEBRRT. NAEAEEZASNL SRR RQ)IZA
FRRERERIL.

BETFRXERZ AEEABERS TRYD AUT =Mt 2£5.

(1) MUHERRATE MREBEZESMASZNERE RN
EREHNER EZERMAFHNARASREBNANE
EMURBN AL ST ARRNTBNZM, BHIFR
BEZERAS HIUARNMETEEETINITALEHR
i, BAZR - ZRERRATE.

@) UrAMETEEETHIT AR MG A E. MRER
ZERAFHLESEXEUEMERAESRENBIRX
MEEZEMATAER BZERASFNERAER
EBENAMNASHMURBEFAS ST AERNF SN,
BB I RIEEZERA = AU AANETTEREZFIT
NEHHRE, BAZAFZRUAANETEEE S
TTAEMLR S,

Q) ManrMETEEETHITALTHRE. FHE MR
MATENERASTUAANETEEEEHITAR
ez RERENSREAS REEDEINARNE
TEABHEZHIT AL SR,

EVEHIAN, MREBGERIEZ RO UERE, 2%H
T ERATEEI U ANETEEETHITA LR
. ZEBE—EME, FEREE.

WHE TR
NEIRZENRTTAEMMTENAEEXHN IR (R
BRENTAERNBREX EBRILANETANERERT
) A EAENHNERXSAEZTERTASRS MR R
KM TR, flanEk.

AEF I T RRA A AN ETR B EEHA LB
# EEEEEHBHRTHEEE A AN ETEARED
HARMGA KRR, AREGET KRS E
TR R KIRE X H NG TRRAIEE DML R
HETEEE TN ARG AU,

(2) SRAFHES %
AEAATHEESMAS WU SERE B HFEZHM
MEXSBAFHESEN X BEEHLARRAARE S
SERFRXSITNE, FENUTESBANFE. Rk (8
ERERASAG) R LS TERBE, EHXE, RIES
HAKANSHMASBTEN RN U SERREEERNE
MREBENE—R.

(3) SRS %

REF IS 0 MR A A RSB R FERBA
AP ETEEREDHHALBREMSMARE, UL ANE
HREAETH AL PRANSMAFOETESBAE,
3 5 M SR I BAEE S DA A BT BB R BT Y
HAIRE F E A S LR

(4) MEmINSItE
AEANERAT RIS HESRA TRHEHTHIA,
XA, BIEAKRAXKEIASZHERA~ELH.

VIETINESR T TR R A6, MARNMETE. ¥ TUAR
METEAHEEMNITALHRENSREA SN SRAE A
KUXZHMEETANLEHREGE, W FHMENOSRE >
HERN G, WX P HEAITAYETHIASTL

ERRFIAN, FHE T Z AN SR AGRT UEEA XA RN
EEEHETMTALHRENSHAR: (NEBERIEE
RAOSIEER: QRBELRPEXHHBNARANKEEESR
RAKE, MAANMEARMY ERAGAGHERMA~TE
R BT BT EIRAN W SN, FFE AR E AR UL o B At
mXREEANRRE . ZIEE—LME TEEE.



HTERAFBIULAFELLERAZFEMPAIAN SR AE,
AERABRSWINREB SRA ™ BE, BRI AN HHIA
A—MEMAE AREARRBRBERERESHA M
AWM EJLFRANNE MR, B3I RRFNZERA =
HE, NEZERBESES NMEBSRASNEERAERS
BT, HIAER A SRR,

(5) REtE

SRIRNRLITEBIURTHD .

a. MRRAATENESRESMER NG
NTEMASREHATORKAR, EEZSASR
EROGEHVEFHIASTETIEBENERFE. (1)K
EEENAEAS: QMR ERBRENREFIZIBETIA
WS EH B ST 8 fZHH T ET R R REET
QBRI RNREER (REATEREA™) . AEHAX
ALFRAREZTEZFR S MAGRHISBRARN S H,
FABFITRA FRRN B HMEZE",

KhEAE RESSHAS AR ARETTFEHNMEI
KEAERE WA AZSR A~ IKE R (BIMBRIE A
& ZBTAIMER A ) SZ S5 GRS AR AR AR ot
ENAEEMBERREL BEEEXSHM ENIITNH. )L
BIATS R 69 B T SRR R A AR A9 T

NTRERMAEREERRENSRA ™ KEFAREZ
SRIAFOMAREA (MERKAHRA) HTEZERBERHL
RAME FEEGITRKIASREMNEMAEBRENZ W
HNEIE,

WFEMEERA S SOFNMEERAE, URRTHH
REHMNRERENEHELERTLGRFE, WRF
REMASFINNERERAGOVEHASTETEH
ANBHEFEEHESH, WRRINEARANEHRE R
SN ZA TR AR KENE S EERZ 0,

HEARAN TR RARFAAE T RATELN, SRA~
H e N RNKENERRE LN ARASRENR
KRRFIRFIMRNERAITIHE, BT ARA.

AEFARBELHAT KA RTRMULENRTERHEN UK
N, BTFIERERSN

(1) ¥TWASRENCREFARENSRAS. BVE
WIAE, BRZEMASNOREREANEERAENS
FRA R E#E H TSN

@ NTMASRENRREFRARE. BEFLEHAEMN
EREFEARENSRES BRRIZERME ™ HMERK
A (B R AN BRI B R R & 2 R RS E) A1k
FRHEFTEBEEMNSBRN. B2 TRAERFSHE
REFEHAREERAEMABFERFHRE, FEX—
HEEENLITENAEAMEZREENE —E41
KR NERIEFHEEZESA S KARIKITE
HWEM BN,

b. MAAMETEBEEZINITARLMGERENSRE ™
RmEIR

S5ZE&mAFMARMARRNBERESINE. AEBBRAR
SMCH BRI A S IR BRIk =50, IENMER LY
TTARMEE S,

ZERASLLEFHIAN, AKANESRINNSNUERE

BUAEMGEERENAANERH R IR MO EZH, it
UNEEEEN
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MHFEITHR

A IR T RIS 0 A A A B AR Z T
ARG AREHSBAT K, ZSRAFHAANEZD
ERMSERBPATHA, BEETEESLEMS (8
FRALERY) . {5 2% RO Y 2 b T 5 7
WA AL BRI (N ARARRBAGRACERE,
() SBABEMZFHERTERNAEE, OBRNHSH
TR R

o. DlARHHAT BER TN L BRI N EBA>

#5 IR

MTEENARANMETEERLTHITANLHRAFEFET
EHXABOARSRAFTENNEIRE LR~ HH
BREHLFEIT A LR,

NEILR

UraAMETEEERHTASPRENNE TRRANN
MBS IIREIT AL ERE,

d MNAANEITEEETDNIT AL RGNS AR
WFHEEAMAANEITEEEZNITARAN S AR,
HAnrMERSTIRT B SERXE R TNH LR
HlaE, HRBOUTARE BMRERTRE~4HT K&
TR, BLRTESEAREH A AMERSBITARE.

BIREANARAMETTEERETHITALHRAN SR A HR
ZIEFIAN, ZAITARMBGAREN R ERIRES S
NEMGEREPEY TAEFRE.

(6) &M T EHEE

N F R RAITTERM A AN ETEBETIHNIT AL
AREMNGESIERSE MREFRENMSIBRER, &%
A& SRIEMEEHRAT T MBERREAITH. AEAEESD
& BHFIAEX IR REE,

AEANTHERAREOTERRT U TEHER.

(1) BN —R I T8RS R HE L REEINRTEY
9.

(2) BEHEENE:

Q) ERFNEERELF N ERDEMNTIMLASE B AT
KEMNE RS EET. GADRT R AR KREFRZITN
MEEEERENES.

NFHAMBPEARKITENSHIRE ARAWEEXS
RIENEANKEAENEHINGREEEZEEM A" =
e REERES T EHREES . WIATHERRE.

F R MRZEMIENFEANEBIRFIAEFRE
FEM ARAZRBAY TZE& T REKRKI12D B RTHEE
RREMNSTIEERLES,

BEIMBR MRZEMIANEANKEBNHERIAGERE
HBn FERBHANEREGERARE AEEZREST
ZERIARNESANMBEARENSTEERLE
&

BRI TEREGFHARENSHRIR AKARRHEY
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MENMER KBRS NHERESERINBERERAS
RBEMEH MR,

—RIBERTBEE N M EFIRINERBRERSH . BX
TOINE N =R, AR R T EEIG AR TR
ANMEFHNABRABTOR. FIAEXH R ERSH A
oo, SEEMYRFRIMERN, UERSEAZL LS.
REN WA SR E MBS 8 (HTHIN=IR)
MZZPFENRTL AR VIEFHINEXNEREER.
AFPHINERHBEEPREH A~ AE.

AEAWHINSFAT. BELWREES VIR TR
BENMER~ENBERERAR. REREHEBES
ANMEREEOMNE, MAZENEZFAETMARRKR
TRASEE, S T5FAS] KELLRESESWRAERX
MMM ENMER AFHENUERETMAHRER
RO, ARKRBRUERSHARMMT|MMENHEZRH
AT SHN, AERATRINBEMSHA,

THRENGERD, N TREMSHRASMELEMEHR AR, R
EHEIE , F R 48 X 5 7~ SUF 218 X R 18 69
BEABRERITE. RSERITARMGAREHMEENEN
RHMEMBERN L AR SRNBEMSBITARLMES
HHMEENGE MRV~ ENBEMSTIAREE
K EMMES, RS HRERMBETEMSH A ARkaET
NEHBRE.

TARFNREE AEE XS ERSH A~ HIKE N EHET
S WRRKRBUELERS BB AT ATSHA MK
MEEMEHRASHNHE, NRICEERSRA~NOKE N
B ERUERSEBHORLATRASIN  BRICHSIT M
=8

(3) FTiSHLHYIR I

WA SAPEENEENT, ARENSFEELBME R
FOBBENRENETN ASBALHMEHRAS REHME
B R ARS8 5 A0S SR

BN AREELHMSRAT REHRSRAGRIEE
A, EBERERA~RBERERARE S5 E—HRBAE
BRI E—HREEERAEREARIEZ S REHH
BMEGHEX EAERRE-—REEENNBEERERAS R
MEREEAHER, FEROARTIEBENSTEE ST
BRAFMOGREZRAHRESH” BREAGN AEEBE
PRSHLEE 7™ R 38 5 P15 # 0 1% DURSE = 895 519k

FER—EH TR &
SE5EFNAEVEAFNETRA—FRIERNS HRAR
. A TR LA,

B IF R AAE LT 0 BUS W 3277 B9 12 AR T AT RS 7
REFABIMHEMRTHANEE TR ARNE. WETT
ALV EHEENTIT ERRS FHEERERNHANR
HERMARHEM, TRENITA SRS,

VAL 75FE & F PTG I LT I A HIA S AR T HHA R
FORBRERHAEAREBNEZE N ARNETE. SHEAKRT
AIFRBREHEEETT THUXETHINEE =2 ANERS
BEH, EA— AT FINN B E I B AT AT E.
WEFERNFELESITYSIRE D RMIIR, HFIRBHR
AMNGRITREEEENSHITE.

26.

27.

28.

29.
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R % 97 B
MAFHEENRNRH, EZERARGATEERME
B8 PO AR SR L R AR AT 7 T S5 4R R A FR £

HAERGR

FHENRRET EFERNEENS EFEAEJUET Rk
AERAFRTENTHEETMHRERARETMIER., HFH
MHEBTREE-—NATEERNSEORFIANIAN XS,
AHRTEASSBEFHHRLFIZMX S HE WS TR
BEUEITE. ARANZFXETERIA XEMSRENT
TIRERA AR, BB A ENFIARE ARESESE
AT R,

ZEWS

AERABFEAETEAN IREAEZRI ST AT AHEM
EEAS RELETHSRNRFFETAER Bt RS
EEARAR = RERT,

FEABZEZRERL S REZARKEE, ARHAED
FAABRBERABENERN R, Bk, €8 FIRRER
THEFRERALARR . AEANTLHIFREZERETK,
FREHORSBEER BRREBEERAM LN
MG EARRERERARRASTELEAA~ N HERTD
ik,

BFHM S RRABETTE
BFMERENEICEENRALEM T URE, BFERT
REHTFATDURKTEANEHUER, —BEXELH
BRNEUSHEHEXSRNEXERRET T, &%
E 1T E R IRAG .

MBETFASNERENNRZBE AEATBEEANE
HEE MNeEAEFEEFHINRZARELHNEGIERE. WFE
SHBIER—ZFH T EFBANTAS, HEBWXA
ENEEAREIIERECELEBRESHABRMEGHIAE
MEBRT. AEATRASAEFNRA M THMES NS
BFATANGIEE.

ST, RIEEFIM E ARG TIR, RORA AT
FEEHRERNRITEERMHNREERR (FIMFTRNRS
THEEESMAX) HEE, TSZIFELEINEKELS
EEREIVE Sz N

FrERENG. S RBEREARATABET AT
WBENBIDAENDERENE. PERFRERARET
PEBRENGARASHESHMSRETHBEENR. F
MARGERE SHMT LATR.

BHAHMEREN, TRAAVSATRANSITERIARIT
HEFA—8n, RREATHSITBERILSITHEN 725
SREATLENFE,

SERERET. XHEAZAFBESH M SRR BN
FRURSE, REBRZK TR T H = BIE R KR E R A
RIRIBEF THE.

ERFEREFNOERLT B L E X T2 56K
R AEGHMESRET, LENRSLEKHARNR A BN
NEBTASBMIBREGIFAFRFEITEN SR TN
ZENEFHERANR, BAARTEARDN . HEBRF
s




e
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FA B R A R EHMFEE LT WRE T2 EHN
B, MRBRNZREARAEFNANARNERTERT
B ABERNREHNN SHRBRNAANEZIN, RERR
FRILPIHENZFRTASBEMIBFBFEITEN SR
FHOBZEMER T ARREFRE PR RS B
HREE, SRETASRMNRARXMNEME SRS Ak
KBS 0 KR A .

0.2 HIREE
Tk T R A 7 A0 £ Mk v N R RE B T 202248 38
BSAEANBERX.

(1) (ST ENRESE15S)

W BUARF2021 12 330H & T v £t AN BHE15
SHIY&[2021]355, T E MR BEEISS"), i "X
TSIRERHE RAEB2022F1 B1HERTT.

BEFISSHRA T LU AHMERESHNTRE RN FTE
BH BITZERMNRA KRN SREETERNEERAK

(EBEAL EEMES) NE5ETEREEBXNEMR
AUNHET (ATECERNBEER~NWINERRI S
HE).

MTBBREISSRNEARARKITHY SIRAMEERR ™
EEREM.

(2) (Al iHEMNFEREE16S)

T BUAR T2022F 11 B30 R T £ AN B H 516
SHIY=[2022]315, U ERBEFI6S"), K. "X
TERGAAEIMBETENER TRAXKMN M EHRE E
IRITAE ARB AT Z RERTT.

BRFIGCSHUENTORAMATLE, BREXRA T HER
BB RARAEEDVABERBRANBRNSTE, £
N BTN B, FIASRFBXRAMEBENE, 3z
RET £ ETHANEFEN X HHEMMH TR B ITL
ERE-BONTX BRANAERZMITASPRESIME
ENHWME (FEMGERETE).

MTBBEI6S RN EREARKITHY SRAMEERR™
EERPM,

B) MITCXTERA<FEMAREBHEEAEEBILSITIE
FUTE > HH 3% o] AT I8 %0 )

T IEERF2022FE5 B19B &7 7 < T1& A <# e i & 1548
FESRMILSITRIEM E > B X BB (M£[2022]13
), B2022E5827HENK T, W THFEMARBEERE
R AHASHHAARUEAEEREMNASRE L. T4
TAEMRSEIL, BILENEAESNREBILITRDHEAR
T ApAAREMNEERERIAEHENHMERME
HLXEXRETHN, W F202266 8308 2 /5 N & £ 50
UL RFAAMEB AT MNHEEBERAEALAZHRHTS
bR,

AONEMEERFEFMNEEERC EMERERXAEL
TERHTRIUTRE. UTZAERNRREAR KT SR
AMEERRTEERTW,

BOEASTEBRPAMAERA BN TG

AT R AKX BRI RER R
ARAEERKGENARE NS HBELES, BTEEEHN
ENFWENE, ARAREN TR ARIHEQRETEHKEN
TSN (AT RIBIR . X B0 AR R T EE RN
EMFHLER, FEXERMAREEQER LR, RFH
SRS ARANGHFELR,

AREAX R AT AT MRRESSLENEM LHTERE
B, S ETHEERENEET LN EZHRERELHT
MBiA B EELSHANFMAKRAEN, AFMEAELTEY
AR SR EA ) T IXHBIA.

THRENHERE, ARATBXYMFSIREZTE STt THET. ST
MREEGFESSEASMARNKENELERKI2DAHI
EXNREMNEZENRHXRBIHET

1. BERRENITE
M U R AT BRAANETBAREHIT AL
s RRA . MR BRRERM SEREE. KR
AR 15 B AT 5 AR R OT A

MEERRE, BREENREBANNE AINENSMTRE
ABRERIMBFI9E. ERREA. BRIEAKREARRBRLGFMNE
FHH. REEGREENME SRS RE S THKIE PT
FUeREZENEDR. DR SEROIAE. K ¥ T
FEAMIFFENEREFHRENSRAS . NERZ
SRA A RIEEN LR R,

FEERREER TP EXRBEX . SHMRENELNE
HEZ, BN RRHENEFERMERANE BT HH
it (i, FABANTRERBRRE) . SIEBBR
KNI EFETZERAMY, §10.

s BEEBEXRMUGEANKESEMNLSUAR-IMES, BF
RERITERE FHETTEBEXNXESL

c ERRKREEEM FAMEREFEARENFHMNTE,
c ATHEMITENSFER 2FERRANENXA,
° FMBRMRMERMBRARKISTIN .,

2. BHRLEFNEH
HARAEAEHUIETHNASEBRAREARAAN,
AEABERECEFZEMUIEIFBEINEIEEN
MEERHM, AEATETXZEMTHERNATXSE
MBS EMUTEERT, DTN T EMUEFETE
Bk, BREFRTIEN A~ EEEIRSNBOREOTE
BRARATEESR BENRRKE MERENEMEE
FRET R ZFREMZE, L REAELEHEIE
RHpPEFEIEREAERZEREANABEHTT AN, &
BEAMAITRE T NEMUTERENGEE. RIBEEA~E
BENRESVMRAE = EERS MRBHRMKTE. A
BEWE AP HE AN AE T TR AR R H A
S5 T EFRSRBUERA,

3. EMIAARME
WRERBRZSTHNERMTIA AEAEABERARE
HAANME. REFERATZGHASRFTIE 2E>
E. TR TR ERES. ARANERIANANEN
HEEBR TR ERTUENTHEIE, B —L9=, o
REAMZ N FHE RN IR FRARA . kLEIEK
R Omstim 2EE mHILA S EHFHEXRE. W
FEEEERNHEATMHT. REAXBRENZTAET ST
BHARMES LR,

4. SRR EBRILIERIA
AEAEERSEFDTBIRATRES  AFESL. =
BB NS SR AL SRMAT . EREHBHEMA
FREEBLBAFBI/LLBANTRS ARABEE
P NE L

AN

+ A

= AL
Zn=]
==

N
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HEARAREEMURZEBLRASERRENIE, ARADMTPESHERENLEZ BN XRZELRRAAEANFIK
B SERAAERRMNmHHETEIE.

AEAFTENMEERMASEBEXNERASTNANNL S MNIKRIENTHEHEELS SRS L ERINEG.
- REEBERERIASRONT SUERECCHE ITF NBEREBRMIE=T7,
- THEERAS AN ELNRETRMEBER

- EHARARRFEBOLERBERASMENLILFRAENREMRN ARAXLESMIEEAEARESRREN SRA
FRES, DERAEHAREHE S NS EILNSRE™,

5. FrEHt
EEEMBEEHHR BAXPNETNRLBREYNEERBEN, EHTHSAEN, KAEATTEHE AW, MR LD
SERHBLNCHERERYGETNESTEELEE ZESBH L FRBLAANEHEANFERST -+ Em,

6. EEMETRIE

AEAEHRNESRASHTRETE MBERAFTRELHARE THERTEKANE. MREAETASHNIKENETHE
TEEMEE, AXRAFESWHERE, FANFIARERE,

AEAEGITRET AR ENFENASREBIEN, SERRASREHTTHIT, FEATHRANMNAXATITEIRE.
E B
. eV FREH

RIFBCPEARKFE S W AAERUR), KEFARANBE M T EH NFLE H25%, K& FAEIMIADIE IR L 7 L gm
NV ERBHL.

W PR FR AT AT BRI B 32 RE R B XERIT.

2. HEER/K

REARHRS . ERRASHBSREEREILVSBRNERGER. HEH6%. HRSHE . RRBUEHEREITELA
IEH,

REVBESHERESAR(ETRRSR. BHEFR. XAHSIRERBENBEM) (MH[2016]11408) (X TFRE~ Rl
Eﬁ’ﬁa&lﬂmﬁﬂ’l%fﬁiu»(mﬂﬁ [2017]28) ME( (T AE = RIBERE X BB ME[2017]562) T, RE~ HEE
ANEEREFRITRPREMBEREHTY, 201851810 (&) £, SEREH I E, RBI%H IR RIS EH
3. WHHEINEIRH
A 82 B B35 PR LA S 1 %7 % B T A 4P R
4. HEZHMM
A 2 1 58 PR LA 2B {5 9 3% 5% 4B B B B
. ERFARSEHER
MASFEEGHTEFATRAERIIFOT.

= 2k

EAF<mARITELSD EHESp N BEAE R AR 81,967 100%HiEHE
R — EISNES N 2N o e
EFLXRESHRAT o E A B &ﬁﬁi a3 AR 50,000 100%H 5%
FELARESHFRAT o E A B ESRARERE ARM32,548 84.99%[8)iE35H
ERERAERMERAT i E A B s ART12,642 64.40% HiEHEE
EFF ISR ERA S B KB % AR™9,500 B0%EERH
ERERAFRAT PEES BEER HE1,584 100% EEEFH
EF R RS HRAT o E A B S A AR 730,000 100% 8 457

BAEE KA

REANFARMNFRILARZFERAULHA T ARAEERREL . Hf, BFRMRERESHRA S AKRTF2022F7A21HF &
MHERTRE, F022FEM021EH, AEARFAEFERAEAR ~FEREANRATANERRH.
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I\ W ERFREZTEME
1. e RFHHRBITHI
AEH AT
| 2022f12A31H  2021%12A310 | 2022512A31H  2021412A31H
EHRIE 3 3 3 3
B HRBITHRIM 113,857 92,562 113,311 92,008
&it 113,860 92,565 113,314 92,011
2. TFHE R
A EEH 1T
_ 20214128318 _ 20214128310
FRE R EHMERT 60,318 109,191 106,659 150,161
BEREANERT SR 13,417 12,480 13,348 12,379
BFRIRINEAMRTT 39,455 73,088 26,475 58,385
FRIRIMER TR 56 - - .
Ait 113,246 194,759 146,482 220,925
R iHF S 80 294 = 223
B 113,326 195,053 146,482 221,148
B RS
Hip E—MR = © = (C)
B 113,326 195,044 146,482 221,139

Fo022F 128318, AEFAEFEMBE VR ARSI MERHART182.701Z7T (2021F12831H. ARM187.95(Z27T) . T EXHEFME
RITATHEERBRNERATINMRIES.

3. IfHHEE
AREEH AT
| 2022%12H31H  2021412F31H 20214128310
FRIEAEAMRT 371,284 294,833 371,284 294,833
HFIIEAERTERIA 14,001 18,900
HRIRINEAMIRT 85,537 75,828 85,537 75,828
&1t 470,822 370,661 475,721 370,661
FitHE 772 585 832 585
REn 471,594 371,246 476,553 371,246
B RS
Hi E—HR (52) (131) (52) (131)
BMRR (5) (29) (6) (29)
b3 471,537 371,086 476,496 371,086

4. ITEEMHATRAMK
(1) fTEEmMTA
PAESRMIANER/EXETTUNE~ AREAFRIANNE ~HARHAANERGBILREM, EFF—ERFIZIRNRKIA
EREBFLUFAANE, A —ERRRAKAMARNERRESTHRL. FTESRTANARNEBESESAEREX
NHHHEMINOCRE R BRI RA, BN AKRARKTEANSIRFINE M, XLEZ T EAE TR ERRNE.
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TFARFNUERE, ARAFENTEERIENGR/BXEHREARMET RO T -

ANEH 2022%12H31H

CRLGETHR
RMEHK (BFEIXEHHAERR) 687,294 7,667 (15,376)
SMCIZERF ST HAR 3,607 23 (4)
it 7,690 (15,380)
FEETETR
FEE#H 420,050 3,403 (2,971)
F ZHAAX 6,011 = =
N7 3,403 (2,971)
&t 11,093 (18,351)

2021412H31H

CEETHETR

K ER (BRI XEHHEER) 686,502 9,561 (2,820)

SMCIEEAF SN HAMX 3,632 48 7)
It 9,609 (2,827)
FEETETR

F R H 557,243 7,256 (6,419)

F ZHAAX 6,383 113 (113)
N 7,369 (6,532)
ait 16,978 (9,359)
&7 20224£12H31H

CERETETR
BHER (BREEXETHMEER) 679,893 7,624 (15,349)
ST ERFN SN EIR 3,747 24 (4)
N 7,648 (15,353)
FIEETETR
FEEH#H 403,847 2,621 (2,986)
F AR 6,011 = =
it 2,621 (2,986)
&1t 10,269 (18,339)

20214128310

CEETHETR
KHEGR (BRI XEHHEER) 684,311 9,544 (2,813)
SMTITEAF ST HA 285 7 7)
N 9,551 (2,820)

FEETETR
FIZEE # 531,983 7,237 (5,868)
F R EI 6,383 113 (113)
It 7,350 (5,981)
)

At 16,901 (8,801
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(2) EfsU

iy 2AMNEES

AEAMBAEERERTHEZNSBHAANELTNHTELRRE, HEPMBAAEARTHARTHILEHHEE, Jx
FHR&AfRE REER P, T2022F12831HMNEX AL HART82.82{25T (2021F12A31H: ARM75.23127¢),
AEAEHTENLAANMETCNHERT B BEHRE RS RENL2ANMETNRNEFRIANERTLR D = £ MRS
HAREK.

(i) WEREEH
AEAFMAHEEREENFEENSHNALRELNHTENRE, REHNE AAEAFREELSHEEBRITHRAN
B MAXXBTHELRGANAECEENSENASAELTNHTENARE HEHPMB AT TETFASIERESH
HAERNERATELTHGES. Ho AXEHREHIE FT2022F12A831 AN X AE N ART173.96{Z7 (2021£12831H .
ARM260.24127T), T XK MR EHREL W & T2022F12B31HEXHRM (202112831 HB/XAEHARTS.751Z7T).

F2022£12H31H X20215F12831H, ARHAE LIt ARMGENANASREEN TELAANMETH ~ENRITRAMNKE
HEME D =AM ZEREX,

5. INREERE™
AEH 1T
| 2022412A31H  2021%12A31R 20214128310
HIBRMFIR
% 404,935 494,383 404,707 488,162
Hith 1,322 2,963 = -
&it 406,257 497,346 404,707 488,162
Rz itF S 116 174 116 172
It 406,373 497,520 404,823 488,334
B AR
Hip E—HE - - - -
EME = - - -
E=MER (1,550) (2,306) - -
INGE (1,550) (2,306) = -
R 404,823 495,214 404,823 488,334
AEATFTENRERXZPRBINIERVENRT+—. SIEERYHBHKE.
6. RMETRFIER
(1) AMSERMBERSHHFERNT:
A EH AT
| 2022f12A31H  2021%12A31H | 2022%12A31H  2021412A31H
PSR AR AT B H(a) 13,851,010 12,746,593 13,343,459 12,595,688
MA M EITE BEEHIT AL B D) 48,097 45,073 48,097 45,073
At 13,899,107 12,791,666 13,391,556 12,640,761
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(a) MRERARATEMERERMERDAMT .

IR EEH AT
| mS0RSIE | 012AYIA | 202F12A3A 2021F12A01H

E-Y N CET 14,222,605 13,020,110 13,897,307 13,047,509
N R R AR R H M 204,533 199,479 = -
NG 14,427,138 13,219,589 13,897,307 13,047,509
RitFIR 43,075 30,902 41,381 29,967
B 14,470,213 13,250,491 13,938,688 13,077,476
Hi E—ME 12,892,388 11,915,177 12,402,611 11,767,411

EMER 1,344,107 1,205,460 1,304,921 1,182,445

EZMER 233,718 129,854 231,156 127,620
AR EEE
Hi B (209,408) (192,457) (199,604) (185,832)

EMER (254,675) (229,513) (242,949) (215,214)

B=MER (155,120) (81,928) (152,676) (80,742)
N (619,203) (503,898) (595,229) (481,788)
BN 13,851,010 12,746,593 13,343,459 12,595,688

(b) UARMETEEETNTA LIRS NEMERMBER S TET
AREH AT
| %xFRASIE 2021F12A31A | 202F12A31A 2021F12A%1H

ERRRMBERES 47,786 42,909 47,786 42,909
NRAMEET 311 2,164 311 2,164
&it 48,097 45,073 48,097 45,073

AEARERMYOREEENRRENT+—. SEERYPIKE.
(2) RSB TREEEEE
M

20224E1B1H 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898
B 5 7 .

BEE—NEK 8,489 (8,489) = -
BEENER (18,017) 28,073 (10,056) =
BERE=HE (8) (57,215) 57,223 =
wig 44,932 19,506 4 64,442
EHitE() 3,076 48,743 40,845 92,664
F| Ak i Bl (22,645) (13,259) (16,918) (52,822)
ZEEEE N - (148) (9,612 (9,760)
W B 2 4% 56 TR - - 6,255 6,255
BRI E K - - (848) (848)
SNHITEZER 1,124 7,951 6,299 15,374

2022128 31H 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203
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"

20211 B1H 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258
B 575

BEE—MR 17,706 (17,706) - -
BREETHMER (20,124) 23,255 (3,131) -
BRE=MER - (8,590) 8,590 -
iz 28,013 23 9 28,045
EFITE() 61,204 14,177 22,981 98,362
e (17,761) (22,158) (12,464) (52,383)
2 - - (10,494) (10,494)
W@ E 5 Bk - - 5,976 5,976
BAEEE T E K - - (643) (643)
SN EZER (792) (4,142) (1,289) (6,223)
20214E12831H 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898
T

20224E1 B 1H 185,832 215,214 80,742 481,788
R 75 .

BEE-MER 6,593 (6,593) = -
BEEMER (17,704) 27,732 (10,028) =
BRE=MER - (56,581) 56,581 =
i 41,313 18,509 = 59,822
EFitEQ) 3,836 48,656 39,922 92,414
E|#AS 45 [E] (21,336) (11,923) (16,839) (50,098)
ZE R - - (9,407) (9,407)
W E AR 5 Bk - - 6,255 6,255
BEEETIEK - - (848) (848)
SMHITEZER 1,070 7,935 6,298 15,303
20224124 31H 199,604 242,949 152,676 595,229
20211 B 1H 121,023 208,974 71,003 421,000
B ER$: 75 .

BEE MK 16,799 (16,799) - -
BEEMER (20,052) 23,183 (3,131) -
BEENER - (8,291) 8,291 -
i 26,854 - - 26,854
EHITE(Q) 59,029 12,926 22,791 94,746
Bk 4 Bl (17,038) (20,641) (11,858) (49,537)
2R W - - (10,401) (10,401)
Y Bl 2 & SE BT K - - 5,976 5,976
REEEFIEER - - (643) (643)
IR EZER (783) (4,138) (1,286) (6,207)

20218E12831H 185,832 215,214 80,742 481,788
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(a) BERESHMNEMEN (LNBARE sAREAXNER)  BTEARRXNERNEANEEE RS, iSBEFARK
MBEREE-MR. E-MR. E=MRZBREED, NERBAESBRAAENITEEMRA12D B MENFLHTIERBR
RZERIER.

(i) 2022, HAKHAMKEFRENRAZMHNEARARNERESRH TR O

FUMBE— KRR ARFER G EERRRAANERSTMN0%, MIEENBRKFTEARFEMR—RMERMERKE £
B FT I 296% P S

FYNR KA IR ER G BELRRAMERSHMN%, HNR—FEBENMR-_NEAS EMR-FNAREN1%;

FUMBR=EMARAMER S BERARKINERSHA%, ANR - BEBENR=NAS EMR-FNARLN1%, 2022
FRBR=ZABERNER RS ERRZE SR L EVRALN20% ., HEIBD A RERSBEREESHEM.

(i) 2022, ARRBRERALTREER (RSBRARL LRIV MSBHEXRRRREEANRZEBENER -, HMR=
MR ZE IR ERKEEATEK,

(3) EEABFRFNBE IR T -

MRGFERASFSEE, MIZERESLAEIAFR S TFUP BRI RNBENERAER, WRBo o HAFELH, U
ZRERE R L AEE TN
A EEHF 8
| ShAMA SMAEIE EsE oEME A&¥
2022%412H31H
FEAER 10,671 9,323 14,220 626 34,840
RIUETERK 3,982 2,175 491 730 7,378
EELSZRAE
— MR B 22,873 1,396 18,721 16,049 59,039
- B 26,825 2,194 5,198 5,021 39,238
&it 64,351 15,088 38,630 22,426 140,495
2021412H31H
(R 6,042 782 13,296 508 20,628
RIETTRK 815 328 7,028 - 8,171
GEELSYIE
— ALK 11,236 9,742 35,863 6,362 63,203
— B TERR 4,265 1,145 6,565 3,457 15,432
ait 22,358 11,997 62,752 10,327 107,434
4T A
| SMAMA SMAEIE EsE aEME Ai
2022412H31H
(B EN 10,671 9,323 14,062 626 34,682
RIEGEK 3,982 2,175 491 730 7,378
W B4R FE 3R
— IR 12,295 1,396 17,413 15,739 46,843
— FIR R 26,825 2,194 5,198 5,021 39,238
&it 53,773 15,088 37,164 22,116 128,141
2021412H31H
B 6,042 623 13,296 508 20,469
FRAE 523K 815 328 7,028 - 8,171
GEELSZRAE
— IR 4,255 9,383 35,564 6,125 55,327
- R 4,265 1,145 6,565 3,457 15,432

&t 15,377 11,479 62,453 10,090 99,399
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7. EMRE-XHEEMAET

& &1T
_ 20214128310 20214128310

MEZZENFENERATREMBUARNETE
BHEEZMITASPHRENSHAS

BURF B BUR LS T35 4,241 11,861 4,228 11,801
SRVEHESE 60,308 49,646 58,822 47,305
NSRS 17,024 17,358 15,788 14,318
=S - - - 378
B fFE 68,507 171,243 68,507 171,243
BEEERT 368 391 = -
BERESHE 16,568 16,425 = -
fth4T % TR IR = 3,450 4,542 = -
W@ETR 760,072 733,860 549,014 593,999
INF 930,538 1,005,326 696,359 839,044
BEMARMETERRETIMTA LIRS
SRt g
NERE 576 573 576 573
=S - 51 = 51
BRI 14 16 14 16
INF 590 640 590 640
Ait 931,128 1,005,966 696,949 839,684

ARFAEEAMUAANETBAEEHITALHRANERAT T RARKA019FEUAFREARTEWRFEEES.
BATHRESEHRNFEA™.

8. SRR T-HAURLHE

& &7
_ 20214128310 20214128310

BUR B OEBUR LA 35 826,566 1,038,916 826,566 1,038,916
SR E RS 500 500 500 500
AEFEFH 103,989 95,348 103,773 95,348
BRI R H A 3,220 3,208 = -
NIt 934,275 1,137,972 930,839 1,134,764
R itF & 13,097 15,949 13,065 15,923
B 947,372 1,153,921 943,904 1,150,687
He . E—E& 945,348 1,151,761 943,904 1,150,332
B - - - -
E=MER 2,024 2,160 - 355

AR EEE
Hi B (10,209) (5,214) (10,188) (5,191)
EINER - - - -
BE=ZMR (1,806) (1,790) - (231)
NIt (12,015) (7,004) (10,188) (5,422)

271 935,357 1,146,917 933,716 1,145,265
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(1) AR BEESETH
AEEHE 20224

20224E1B1H 5,214 = 1,790 7,004
B R %75

EFitEQ) 4,451 - 25 4,476
B Ak 4 Bl (52) - - (52)
BN (hBFEE) - - (11) (11)
SMEITEZER 596 - 2 598
20224E12831H 10,209 = 1,806 12,015

20214

20211818 5,216 5 2,874 8,095
R TS .

MNEZMBEBEE=MR - (5) 5 -
i 86 - - 86
EHITE(@) 71 - 20 91

B E (47) - (574) (621)
B - - (537) (537)
ST EER (112) - 2 (110)
20214E12831H 5214 - 1,790 7,004

T 20224

20224E1 B 1R 5,191 = 231 5,422

EHitE() 4,452 - - 4,452

BHs s E (61) = = (61)

WEHH = = (231) (231)

SNRITEZER 596 - - 596

2022#12831R8 10,188 = = 10,188
20214

20214181H 5,162 - 231 5,393
i 86 - - 86
EHiTE() 72 - - 72
Bk Bl (17) - - (7
SNRITEZER (112) - - (112)
20214E12H31H 5,191 - 231 5,422

(a) EFHTETIEREBAREX BARKXSFSHNEN . ANREBITR/BRNEARELEE,
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9. EMIRF-HMEARRE

AEH T
| .xFRASIE 2021F2A3A | 202F12A3E 2021412A01E
BUR ROEBUR LG (R 55 429,534 223,971 412,679 219,137
SRV GRS 6,797 9,345 5,987 8,788
AFRE 162,708 81,474 151,622 68,059
=S 285 281 = -
B e 414,787 446,527 411,071 445,556
it 1,014,111 761,598 981,359 741,540
NITH S 8,388 4,964 7,968 4,550
Ait 1,022,499 766,562 989,327 746,090
Hep B 1,022,466 766,460 989,327 746,090
1424 - - - -
BE=ZMER 33 102 = -

TFR022FE ER2021FEH, ARARATEMENRAESMBREREEZBNEMAEK,
(1) EfbEAUuE mREEZTD
A 20224

2022¢£1 B 1A 117 = 1,034 1,151
BB

NE—BEREBEE=ME ©) - 9 =
i 56 - - 56
EHitEQ 9 - 281 290
FHAs e B (46) - - (46)
SNHITEEE 1 - - 1
2022128311 128 - 1,324 1,452

20214

202151818 74 - 726 800
Hig 51 - - 51

EFitE() 23 - 323 346
E #Ask 4% [E] (31) - (15) (46)
20214 12831H 117 — 1,034 1,151

&1T 20224

2022 1A 1H 76 - - 76
i 56 - - 56
E g {C) 8 = = 8
B EEedel (46) = = (46)
SNEITEZE 1 = = 1

2022 12A31H 95 = = 95
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20214

202141810 48 - 15 63
i 51 - - 51
EHitE(a) 8 - - 8
ZIHAs (31) - (1%) (46)
20214E12831H 76 - - 76

(@) BEMITREIEQFESAME. SARKEESHNEY . RRBREBIHYBRNERAEES.
10. & @R F-H AR TR H

&M x1T
EBEAR 3,354 4,060 42 55
3E_ETTREAR 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
&it 5,354 6,060 2,042 2,055

AEABEXHUNATERAFTHELEENUAANETEEETMITARBEARENSRE ™. ELEN, ZFNA
IARARMTARMBGARENAANELN ISR ED LB RA.

T ARHARR AR 37

ZEEH T
| oxERASIE 201F12A3IA | 202F2A3IA  2021412AS1E
PO RVACTL: B Ay - - 549,583 120,683
WEKEMEE L LHRRE 458 443 = -
At 458 443 549,583 120,683
R EEE = - (18,953) (18,953)
R 458 443 530,630 101,730

F2022F12831H R2021F12B31H, ARBANKEMSELCYARALTRE, KON FAINRTRELESRFARLEL.
ATEBTRABRNELAGFR . BAMEL. ARANBEENSECUMRASTREK.

12.EE &=
AREEH AT
B1E(a) 161,038 136,540 24,898 23,941
RitiflA(a) (33,776) (25,987) (10,810) (9,403)
RAEAEE () (6,537) (3,049) = -
B E %A 702 622 680 1,410

&it 121,427 108,126 14,768 15,948

-
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(@) BIEH~RE. RIFIRRBEEESEITOT:

|
i
=]

RiE

20214128318 22,323 3,413 28,401 82,403 136,540
20224E12H31H 22,898 3,588 34,895 99,657 161,038
Rit#rIA

20214E12H31H (7,422) (2,736) (1,872) (13,957) (25,987)
2022£E12H31H (8,624) (2,797) (3,623) (18,732) (33,776)
BEAE

202146128310 (67) (15) (325) (2,642) (3,049)
20224E12H31H (72) (17) (575) (5,873) (6,537)
KEME

202146128311 14,834 662 26,204 65,804 107,504
20224E12H31H 14,202 774 30,697 75,052 120,725
1T

BfE
20214F12831H 21,059 2,776 106 23,941
20224128310 21,687 3,106 105 24,898
Fit#lA
20214128318 (7,065) (2,244) (94) (9,403)
20224128310 (8,220) (2,496) (94) (10,810)
WEHHE
20214128310 13,994 532 12 14,538
20224128310 13,467 610 11 14,088
13. k&=
FRAERERE. RIHHESEIROT .
*EH
e T
BfE
20214128310 1,432 2,140 3,672
20224128310 1,289 2,269 3,558
Bit e
20214128310 (356) (1,276) (1,632)
20224128312 (390) (1,472) (1,862)
WEHHE
20214128318 1,076 864 1,940
20224F12831H 899 797 1,696

FIKPSHER (F) 23-38 1-10
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1T
BE
202141283180 1,080 1,865 2,945
20224128 31H 930 1,992 2,922
RiTHisH
202141283180 (272) (1,086) (1,358)
20224128 31H (296) (1,258) (1,554)
WEMME
2021#12831H 808 779 1,587
2022412831H 634 734 1,368
FIRPESHERR (£) 23-38 1-10

14. 5 9%

‘
i
|

TE &R 1,246 1,241
OB (534) (534)
WENE 712 707

REFTERFENTRE ST, XA T EEEMESTN BB T RERESRTN, KAEBAX BN LG KEFET
WiRERPFEATON, T RAFTHRERNRRSEXE~EE XOEERRE.

F20224120310  ARAWBHEFEAE. RESTHARTE.34MZT (20214128318 . ART5.34Z7T).
S.BEMBEHAT KAk

AEH x1T
BEFERE™ 174,366 138,127 158,311 121,800
BB AR (8,136) (8,274) = -
) 166,230 129,853 158,311 121,800

(1) BEMREHROEHERITOT:

20221811 129,853 121,800
TENIRE (HE/N. 45) 36,783 36,812
TTAEMEGE B (HE/\. 30) 678 785
Hity (1,084) (1,086)
20224E12831H 166,230 158,311
2021E181H 119,526 109,027
TEAIRE (HEE/N. 45) 11,228 13,577
TTAHM LA ES (BHE/N. 30) (947) (804)
Hith 46 —

2021F12831H 129,853 121,800

-
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(2) EARATHLSBERT SR AT RA GRS EERITHT:

AER 2022412H31H 2021412H31H
BIEFTEH R

REREEE 628,362 157,090 515,195 128,799
SRIERANANMEL 60,542 15,219 56,078 13,971
it R 23,118 5,779 17,106 4,277
HAth 2,237 470 1,580 358
It 714,259 178,558 589,959 147,405
BRI TR SR

SRERAANMEES (42,934) (10,733) (61,835) (15,458)
Hitb (8,729) (1,595) (15,582) (2,094)
NIt (51,663) (12,328) (77,417) (17,552)
R 662,596 166,230 512,542 129,853
AT

BBEFER R

ArREEE 606,617 151,654 491,859 122,965
SRR AAANEZS 18,399 4,600 13,262 3,315
it fufk 23,118 5,780 17,106 4,277
N 648,134 162,034 522,227 130,557
BRIEFTEH AR

SRR AANEELS (14,892) (3,723) (35,028) (8,757)
1 633,242 158,311 487,199 121,800

REERANT TR 3R B R E A RGN T AT SR
16. Hfth 33 7

AEH AT
| conKRASIE 02FRASIE | 202F12A31A 2021F12A3E
AN REINASE /I 11,889 12,263 307 276
R B 7,824 3,301 7,786 3,147
RF M 1,876 2,428 = -
5 FARUA = 991 943 842 1,085
KA EA 859 751 266 203
EEXHEEENS 260 261 = -
BREFIEH UGS NE = - - - 299
Hith 13,050 11,854 4,771 4,678
A 36,749 31,801 13,972 9,688
R B
e gIF S (15) (154) = -
HAth (1,975) (2,512) (21) (49)
It (1,990) (2,666) 1) (49)
i 34,759 29,135 13,951 9,639
17.Ek R H At & B 77 BRI
P v T
| .xFRASIE 2021F12A%A | 202FRANE 2021512A01H
BRHMET 2,472,383 2,337,622 2,472,383 2,337,622
BERIERTESRNM 31,552 20,719 33,678 20,822
SN M RTT 29,854 30,093 29,854 30,093
BEOMERITERNM 103 4,916 7,701 4,916
INF 2,533,892 2,393,350 2,543,616 2,393,453
RHFE 2,182 2,164 2,230 2,164

&it 2,636,074 2,395,614 2,545,846 2,395,617
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18.[E B AT E Ath & B A4 fE =X

AEH T
| conkRASIE | 22ERASIH | 202F12A31A 2021F12A3E
RAEMRTRIERTSAVEER 485,154 370,163 295,235 190,976
BN AMRTRIFRTESRIBERK 55,733 56,288 2,959 3,620
SMNEBUF AR 28,941 20,777 28,941 20,777
N 569,828 447,228 327,135 215,373
RitH 8 3,034 1,733 1,877 655
&it 572,862 448,961 329,012 216,028

AEARTEBUFME SR ERR 2 RURYERNE+—. SERYPIRE.

19.5FNEE
AEH KT
EREMBITHRA 14,161 55,426 = 41,548
WINEMBRITIHRA 24,471 14,218 24,471 14,218
N 38,632 69,644 24,471 55,766
NitHE 237 36 218 24
&it 38,869 69,680 24,689 55,790
20. 2 S ERAGR

F2022612831HKX2021512831H, AXRAX SH UM AREEAREA BN IEFENNER.
21.EHEMERE =K

ZEEH KT
| oxFRASIE 20F12A3IA | 202F12A31A  20214512A%1H

BIBRYFIR

iR 14,937 21,188 - 3,150

ERZES 430 - = -
it 15,367 21,188 = 3,150
RNITF 8 25 17 - 2
At 15,392 21,205 = 3,152

AER AT RHEMZ S ORRAYENET— SBRYPRE.
22. R FF

R EEH PNy
| oxFRASIE 2021F12A31A | 202F12A31A  2021412A%1H
A SEEIFR 949,186 854,627 1,052,467 940,551
1 E B FE R 110,442 118,332 128,911 141,837
W RIESFR 1,426 2,903 1,426 2,903
REeJ i EHFE 104,665 101,401 104,665 101,401
N7 1,165,719 1,077,263 1,287,469 1,186,692
NitH 2 2,005 1,933 2,175 2,001
At 1,167,724 1,079,196 1,289,644 1,188,693

REFA M TR AR 5 R DT +—. SEERYTINE.
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23. Bz FER T#r A

&M

TH. Ee EWEMAG 1,282 5,793 (5,560) 1,515
IR T taf % - 241 (241) =
BATEF 1,044 5 (44) 1,005
HEREFH R FTRE 242 1,245 (1,481) 6
FEERTR 1 393 (393) 1
ISEBEMRIHELH 700 248 (123) 825
Hith 1 27 (28) =
Ait 3,270 7,952 (7,870) 3,352
20214

TH. e EIEFAE 975 5,500 (5,193) 1,282
BR T 5@ % %% - 226 (226) -
BARIEF 1,240 (136) (60) 1,044
HEREHRRITRE 244 1,229 (1,231) 242
FEERTR 1 369 (369) 1
ISEHMRIBEE R 589 229 (118) 700
Hith 1 60 (60) 1
Ait 3,050 7,477 (7,257) 3,270
T 20224

TR K& EIEFMIMG 786 4,768 (4,638) 916
RIEF % - 201 (201) =
BIREF 1,042 (14) (41) 987
HRRE | RI TR 184 1,071 (1,267) (12)
FERTR 1 345 (345) 1

ISEHBMRIKEEHR 606 211 (104) 713
Hith - 25 (25) -
&it 2,619 6,607 (6,621) 2,605

20214

IR e ZIEFIE 634 4,490 (4,338) 786
T %aH % - 177 (177) -
BIRIEF 1,223 (142) (39) 1,042
HEREREDTRE 198 1,034 (1,048) 184
FEEARE 1 321 (321) 1
ISEHBMRILELEH 505 198 (97) 606
Hith - 56 (56) -
&it 2,561 6,134 (6,076) 2,619

F2022412H31H R20215F12H31H,

AEFA LAY FRIFMRBATH LB TER M RAORE,
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24. FIR R

‘
i
=

SR 17,445 49,738 (23,749) 43,434
BER 8,823 33,836 (31,609) 11,050
KRNRYEMB & 74 891 (883) 82
HAth 1,197 4,451 (4,349) 1,299
&it 27,539 88,916 (60,590) 55,865
AT
SR 16,623 43,291 (17,810) 42,104
HER 8,679 32,373 (30,369) 10,683
KRIMNRYPEMB & 66 717 (714) 69
Hith 1,165 4,102 (4,123) 1,144
&t 26,533 80,483 (53,016) 54,000
25.%iit faf&
AEH by
GEROKIE (1) 23,090 16,918 23,091 16,919
M 45-484% (1) 271 275 27 187
SRMFHERREIMESIRIE 638 788 638 788
&it 23,999 17,981 23,756 17,894

(1) BFFRERMEERATE
AEH 20224

20224E1 B 1R 4,019 12,930 244 17,193
%%,

MNE—MBEBREE MR (5,079) 5,079 = -
MNEZMBEBEE MR 879 (879) = -
EHiTE() 6,910 4,175 = 11,085
wig 3,008 - - 3,008
BHs s E (1,888) (6,600) = (8,488)
SMHHTE ZR 31 532 - 563
202241283118 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

20214

2021E181H 2,596 12,564 550 15,710
%%,

MNE—NBHEBEE MR (168) 168 - -
EHiTE(@Q) 354 (1) 2 355
Wi 1,943 2,085 - 4,028
F| HAsk 4% B (694) (1,753) (304) (2,751)
SNRITE EM (12) (133) (4) (149)

20215 12831H 4,019 12,930 244 17,193
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&1T 20224

202241 81H 4,176 12,930 = 17,106
.

MNE—MREBEE MR (5,079) 5,079 = =
MNEZMREBEZE—NER 879 (879) - -
EHITE() 6,754 4175 = 10,929
Wi 3,008 - - 3,008
E#AS A (1,888) (6,600) - (8,488)
SNRITEZER 31 532 - 563
2022412831H 7,881 15,237 = 23,118

20214

202141518 2,721 12,564 304 15,589
®H.

MNE—MREBEE MR (168) 168 - -
EHITE() 386 (1) 4 389
g 1,943 2,085 - 4,028
E| sy # [l (694) (1,753) (304) (2,751)
SNHITEZER (12) (133) (4) (149)
20214128 31H 4176 12,930 — 17,106

() BRERAESHMNENEFLMBAME SAORAXNER. ATRHRKERYSEREAREEEEMKLEEHREE. T
SERFABREMESEREE MR FZMER. F=NRZEAXEEY . DEARSBRAE&NITEEMEIDANED
FEHNTUREBRA Z 8 MR,

26.BER{TIRFIES

REH AT
| conFRASIE | 202512ASIE | 202F12A31H 2021F12A31H
R AY & BR RS (1) 11,730,446 11,142,456 11,688,618 11,100,173
R AR R 2 30,010 30,010 30,010 30,010
R ZREARR (3) 134,665 84,222 129,837 79,807
INF 11,895,121 11,256,688 11,848,465 11,209,990
NITFE 230,835 223,689 230,487 223,382
&it 12,125,956 11,480,377 12,078,952 11,433,372

FT2022F12R31 HR2021F12A31H ARFARATETHHRFIEF XA HIER LS. FSHBRE AT ELIER.
(1) R &R

AEEF R AT 2022412 H31H
o meEE HEEE O EEAE%  R#E
BARXTARTEREGES 2002-2022 2023-2065 1.65-5.90 10,488,749
BAXTARTEIHES 2015-2021 2023-2037 2.76-4.27 1,063,885
BRXRITING SR RE 2021-2022 2023 0.80-2.80 10,445
BSNRT AR T &R HES 2012-2022 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 17,284
BANKATING SRS 2016-2022 2023-2037 0.00-5.47 108,255
BATR T & B RERE 11,688,618
FRERIRITHIINT Z 2014-2022 2023-2027 1.20-5.30 31,145
FRAIARARITHAR RS 2018-2022 2023-2027 2.65-4.50 14,477
FRIAEIRITHARTEIE 2022 2023-2024 3.05-3.40 899
B RERTEEHENASEARTHRS (4,693)

AERRNFEMEFRET 11,730,446
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2021412H31H

o wn®R HMER O EEAZ% #@
BERNATART SR HRE 2002-2021 2022-2065 1.86-5.90 9,758,861
BERETART TN HRE 2015-2021 2022-2037 3.01-4.27 1,173,317
RRARTHINT@RES 2021 2022-2023 0.38-0.80 19,123
BINRTART&RKGHE 2012-2021 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 14,782
BIMNRITHINT RS 2016-2021 2022-2037 0.00-4.00 134,090
TR ERRSE R 11,100,173
FRABFEINKITHISNG R B 2012-2021 2022-2027 0.80-3.75 40,361
FRAIARENKITHAR T HRE 2017-2018 2022-2023 4.50-4.70 9,989
FRAEFIRTHARTRE 2019 2022 3.58 269
- ERANEHENAEARTHRS (8,336)
A& H R &R RSF R 11,142,456

(2) RLfhkiss

AEAREIT 2022412H31H
AEARATENETARTRARERS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
2021412H31H

AEARATERNETARTRARRS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
AFETHRBEEFYHEAGFRTIRBREMNER., EAEKRE BPERTRTERBNA, GRENZRAREIFAE,
(3) Mt —REKRE

RER R AT 2022412H31H

AFENEFART ZREAE 2018-2022 2028-2037 2.85-4.45 129,837

FRAEBIIRITERZRRAER 2020 2030 2.88 4,828

AEARTZREARRAIT 134,665
2021412A31H

ATERNEGTART ZRERGR 2018-2020 2028-2030 3.88-4.45 79,807

FRABIRITETZRBRARR 2020 2030 2.88 4,415

AERAET-RAERKRALT 84,222

AREFH DB TF20184F . 2020FF M2022F 177 —RA KRS, WABEFRRSE, ARHERESIMERBRLT XM HLAEN
BEZANELT, ARAENEFTFAREHRERAEANATREENRE—H. REE—RHERI XS BEEZERS.
MAERARTTEREN, FEAREFTE,

ERBRFREFRALTRNRCHE SEERTXHFATHEEREEHN, AEAFTNBHEERSFNASHTEIRIC.
EEIERLAHRREAHNEIERBELA.

27 Hipfafx

AR AT
| .xERASIE 2021F12A3IA | 202E12A31A 2021512A31A
4R B F RN ME S 23,721 26,840 23,721 26,840
TR IR 10,116 6,694 4,467 2,500
NAEHEMEEEEMIEFTERT 9,328 13,454 - -
HERIES 7,242 7,221 = -
FH &% 6% 6,501 3,519 936 1,103
HfEwEEs 2,344 1,604 = -
RIPFLSZIEHK 71 45 = -
FERAFIEH LRSS N\ RHR = - - 299
Hit 9,104 6,843 6,966 4,868

At 68,427 66,220 36,090 35,610

-
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20224 % 2021412 H31H
%
T BUED 153,908 36.54
C&AE 146,092 34.68
BRI AL EFRTELT 114,537 27.19
cEHEREESEES 6,711 1.59
Ait 421,248 100.00

20224 R2021 4 E, AT REFBATR & LR R E XA,
PRR 0 YN

HER 20224 ;20214
O O
BACE N 182,650 - - 182,650

o 20224 K 20214
T
BRAH N 182,195 - - 182,195

30. Hft R & Wz

(1) MiERPEMEESRHHRERED:

B
i
=]
7
1

FREE D R Ha M R MRS

EFMTERER ST A ORISR~ NED 22 116 22 116
HRETERFEAANEEZS (119) 891 489 40
e P E R 3 (10) 3 (10)
INF (94) 997 514 146
BEENXFRBENEMEERE
WEZET I ERBENEMBEERE - (261) = -
HMFRIRELAANEE (3,620) 2,903 (3,252) 3,177
B AT ARG SRS SRS (7) 5 30 (1)
H R ARG RREES 300 300 18 13
SMHIRFTEZR 4,509 (1,445) 237 -
Hith 1,544 1,013 14 -
o PSR 675 (937) 782 (794)
It 3,401 1,578 (2,171) 2,395
A1t 3,307 2,575 (1,657) 2,541

(2) BEFEAERTIEMEESYE:
FER

20211818 (193) (21,399) 6,105 539 (1,684) (780) (17,412)
AR 2 T 116 881 2,162 165 (1,392) 492 2,424
20214 12H31 8 @7) (20,518) 8,267 704 (3,076) (288) (14,988)
RER T 22 (618) (2,623) 164 4,204 741 1,890

2022128318 (55) (21,136) 5,644 868 1,128 453 (13,098)
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(1) TEEHIALREEHNFRRY.

&7

202141 B1H (193) (66) 1,156 63 (26) @) 932
AR A Fh 116 30 2,382 13 - - 2,541
20214E12831H 7) (36) 3,538 76 (26) @) 3,473
AEEBRER 22 (10) (2,417) (5) 237 14 (2,159)
20224E12831H (55) (46) 1,121 71 211 12 1,314

31 .&/s/A /E{

RFEROBREZRIE, KTARRBEVSTHENTA2FRRBI0%EAEERR AR, ERTEERRARAUTT AR
KR HERES0%E, T UABRER, REESHE ATRBMNZZERRARTATRIARTH SRR ELERTIRAR, ¥i1g
KBARE. MBHFHEERRAMRATDTAITIRARN25%. A5 ATELEFIHARBRERRRLAR

32. —RXBE HE&

AEH Py
| 2022f12H31H  2021412A31H  2022412F31H  2021%12A31H
A4F(1) 255,123 253,382 256,123 253,382
FnE@) 5,302 5,137 - -
it 260,425 258,519 255,123 253,382

(1) RATEMESHSaO I ESSITREEMEN M £[2012]205 ) WIE, AEREASREESHEME BT —RRRES
FBABRANRAT 8 ARIR B B9 5 KBS B M8 X BB E T B4R Ok . IR b — AR BURG  # R AR T MR 3 7 SE R AR89 1.6%.

(@) BEXRLENE, AT TASERDEIEFRERR—ESTEA—RARESE,

33.5k 4 B F i
EH AT

o e oz | ek 2ozt
FEXHT 465,883 434,686 369,850 353,043
. BREFEASREENEFE 82,728 78,960 72,718 64,193
B RBUEERRAT() (7,272) (6,420) (7,272) (6,420)
REERRBALTRQ)3) (6,419) (9,083) (6,419) (9,083)
FRER— AR RS A (2) (i) (1,914) (9,553) (1,741) (9,176)
BRI 4 B2 (2) (iii) (19,740) (22,707) (19,740) (22,707)

Hith 510 - 502
FRFH 513,776 465,883 407,898 369,850

(1) 2022F EFIEHER

RITIN2022F A FIE AR, RECEER R ARARM72. 722 THIT N2022F F , 2022 FF EAFH D EL T R FEF LMK,
(2) 2021F EFIE 5B

EFELT2022F 12 A 20 #AARTT2021 FEFENE T RMOT

() RERERRELRARM6E4.191Z7T,

(i) RE—BIEEZEARTI7.411Z5T.

(ill) A EIMEBEFART197.40125T. LLFES BT N2022F &,

F2022F12A31H , BrEF2021F L 4FUERBMMNZEER R ATRARM64.20{CTETT AN2021 FEW &FIRFS, ERFIESEE
TTA2022F EM iRk, LRANEBRFIE FRE.

(3) T2022£F12A31H R2021F12A31H, AKAR D EAERATEE T AIRBFABATEZENBRLARRIITART
85291 T K AR M67.301ZT.
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34. DHRF M m
REE D BBRETIRIOT

EFemARIELS 10,252 9,805
EREmBERRNAERAT 12,205 10,718
EFESROGERAS 3,298 3,311
Ait 25,755 23,834
35. 5 2N
AREH AT
N
FBIAN
RIEER TR 553,119 524,409 534,625 509,299
RETREREN) 60,841 57,881 59,962 56,787
FHASEREINBRESME >~ 17,185 13,124 17,228 13,058
FRRRBITRAFHE LRI 2,134 5,716 1,518 5,135
Hifth 1 3 = -
Nt 633,280 601,133 613,333 584,279
FEXH
ERfTREIES (376,594) (365,994) (375,017) (364,185)
Bk K Hfth < Bh AL A9 17 IR T (65,531) (74,296) (65,657) (74,313)
R U 3R (7,804) (7,335) (8,463) (7,774)
B BRI H &R R (11,915) (8,865) (5,317) (2,281)
Hith (1,126) (1,011) (701) (490)
NG (462,970) (457,501) (455,155) (449,043)
FEBBEA 170,310 143,632 158,178 135,236

(1) RS IAERANSBABRENRE . A AR AN SR,

6. FLEHBERAEFBAN
AEH 1T

FEHERMEBRAN

SFHRUVSEERSH 906 1,225 674 809

R RHET 280 330 280 330

ERXRER 83 70 83 70

JE5 [a] 0 & 18 2% 535 91 3 6

RIEZLSZIEH IV SBAN 1 2 = -

Hith 605 655 172 247
it 2,410 2,373 1,212 1,462
FHEHERBEIH (906) (930) (601) (593)
FEFRMEEBAN 1,504 1,443 611 869

7.8 B W
AEH 1T

X5 mE 21,526 23,312 7,683 6,914
tTTESmMIR 149 189 145 289
AR 32 102 = -
H b s % 159 16 29 1
HtiNZETAER 129 68 2 1
KRR 573 558 7,863 10,517
Hith (851) 2,435 (810) 2,435

&1t 21,717 26,680 14,912 20,157
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3B.ARMEEBNIR T

AEH Fi ey
XoHMtemIR (11,993) 17,690 (9,836) 8,553
TSI A (395) (89) (408) (103)
R GE R IR (1,796) 627 (1,796) 627
&it (14,184) 18,228 (12,040) 9,077
39. LR
LR GZTEZEGFBIINMREIMEMARITESE0RE, MERINCETESm TR~ £ MH5RA.
40. E Atk g N
AEH Fi ey
FAEUWA 12,490 11,666 101 119
Hith 1,618 1,794 34 111
&it 14,108 13,460 135 230
41. %5 & K Bt m
AEH piy
WA E R 2,203 2,235 2,110 2,142
BEHHM 1,612 1,638 1,545 1,569
Hith 606 462 433 395
&it 4,421 4,335 4,088 4,106
2 EREEE
AEH 4T
RIZHHA 7,974 7,593 6,629 6,250
Hep TH. & EEFAIG 5,793 5,500 4,768 4,490
Vv&#EA 2,918 3,343 2,250 2,716
T8 k5 2% A 2,172 1,901 2,006 1,692
At 13,064 12837 10,885 10,658
43. 5 AR ER%
&M &1T
R GEERANEER 104,284 74,024 102,138 72,063
IR 4,424 (444) 4,401 141
HAh s & 300 351 18 13
BRRRE 6,172 1,486 6,172 1,486
MEIBRER (4) (3) (160) 31
Hith 250 1,228 (108) 161
At 115,426 76,642 112,461 73,895
44 E Al & A
&M &1T
ZEMEBERHIH 5,260 4,317 - -
Hith 1,190 2,711 1 -

&t 6,450 7,028 1 -
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45. A8 8% A
&R Py
LEAFF SR %A 49,590 23,516 43,291 17,632
BRI A (36,783) (11,228) (36,812) (13,577)
&1t 12,807 12,288 6,479 4,055
AEARKTIHRERERSSTFENBEDTRAT .
AEH 1T
FliERE 97,147 93,082 79,197 68,248
R ERR25%IT E M5 % B 24,287 23,270 19,799 17,062
FATRARRF K= £ /5010 27 (550) = -
R N A (12,632) (11,596) (13,751) (13,788)
REIATTIRINE B 14 2= R AT 00 544 17 = -
TEHENE 2 A R H AR AT 581 1,147 431 781
FRrEfiEA 12,807 12,288 6,479 4,055
46.MEMEBRI T HH
(1) BEAFATAZLEETHUERE
REH 1T
#FE 84,340 80,794 72,718 64,193
. fERRERSK 115,426 76,642 112,461 73,895
HEMHE &~ ER K 3,031 1,069 1 2
T I8 FRE A 7,432 6,218 2,006 1,692
BEAETIRER (848) (643) (848) (643)
REBEEER™. TRAFMEMKIAE~ORE (595) (804) = (109)
NRMEEHNRE 14,184 (18,228) 12,040 (9,077)
ELEFEN = ENF SRR 327,668 312,000 320,372 309,680
‘AW (1,678) (639) (7,894) (10,519)
TR (50,158) 31,037 (45,254) 29,536
BIEFRERER (36,783) (11,228) (36,812) (13,577)
Z75 MR IO B /Y% AR (1,119,627) (270,023) (702,131) (223,396)
KB AT E 89755 D& 323,114 (642,704) 343,306 (672,278)
AREFENTENNSRESRT (334,494) (436,509) 69,965 (450,601)
(2 FIRTFURERERFHUSELAEENYEIE.
ZAEH AT
FR A R BITHE LRI 141,569 160,878 179,386 193,695
BREEAABE =/ A0.
INBRESRA = 404,707 488,162 404,707 488,162
HEES 118,323 105,391 118,323 105,391
BT RS 1,784 1,950 1,784 1,950
&1t 666,383 756,381 704,200 789,198
47 FELE L E R R

(1) MNGHERERI SR E R

AEART REREENAANG I EENEMUTIAEREASAREER - ESHLSRE=ZFTERADVRINBFEENE
B ARALEREERFEETWERES. ATAKRANBEEMNUEIEMAEN BISE5RXEHZFTLER. HEAFRE
NERMNEMUEENRNZWETREIR, B AREAN I RER U EEFEERES.

T20225F12R31H, ERPANE I CEMEBUIFNA MR AART146.001Z5T (2021128310 . ARM2068.87{Z7T).
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(2) RMNGHEEMEBULERE

(a) AEALTT K2R EEMNEMULIHE

AEARLRIFERABNNENUIE, BRASIFIES. AFEETUNESS ARAFRMASEERS . AEHAX
RANBIEEMNERL T AL FREY SR EMIFTFIT.

T2022F12A31H AKRBARERIMREHNEMULEHBA MR HART1,626.68{27T (2021F12831H . AR T 1,346.03
27t) AERR BT REEMEETENTNKENESNART84.91125T (20215128318 . ARM75.33{27T), LRT S EHR
RTAEBANXLEEBLEENRANEHO,

(o) HE=ANBEETHEERNEWUETE

AEAFBEFDBE=ZTTVMRTRNEENEMLEENE, BINAZZMEERA -~ MEMENIRA. T2022F127831H, ¥F
ZERMABISEENEML TGRSR, TAFTRESHTHAR.

F2022F12H318 , ARAFHEHMVMEITHEN L EENRARTAART200.401Z7T (20215128310 ARM229.611Z
T B FRSMERESTBNBERLMANART197.55(Z7T (2021£12831H . ARM226.40127%) : FHEILEFIIRAEK
RERF(2021F128318: ARM0.91Zx) , FEMBEIIEEIIRNEERTAART2.85(27T (20215128318 ARM2.30
1z7t) .

A8. B RLE T
EHEXSGT, AEABERAFTHEAEMUEINR, BHEMNLERARESATESIIES. REHHEM. 7(8)MHHER.
ARHIMTIR A ARASEBREMBHMNREBEEREERE T EH, S HMESL EFINMEXEREA.

F2022F12R31H, EHILERPHER A~ RERKEREANIART1.48/27T (2021F1273315H . ARMS 11{Z7T) . AEH
INARE THEREWETEILFEAHREE TR, SO HRE LRI,

F2022F12A31H , AERA LA E S NNZIULERASNFELLRHAEKHNERILERE~RI.
. SERE
AERBEILTHEFDBIREFTUEITINHRERBENDE., HEEERRBEREAANBEENRE - BN ARNETIIR.
DEEZ PIR—ME WL FRKEK AT, ABFILENS BT HHEREE, FETEFEHLSURR R,
AEAFERUT IS0 EBFEITIR:
FAT b5
ZAMEIEERATIRTLES RTHRFLVEEFES LS. AIRTUVLSEFETMBERA TR, FHRS. RERS. Mo 556K S.

NEEERS CHRMNEERS  AERSERERBSE. RORFLSHARNEFTLESIRASKE. A2V FSEEETTHRS.
SMCTHIAR S RETHR S REIMNCXZETERGEAFNREHE.

B AL B3l 55
AN EBBIFERAIR RN F .
HELE
ANEIEFEAEAEALHANREHAEVSREAERE NS,
EH A
APHBFBIEFNELLE. BELVESRIEFRHE IS,
AEH
20224
Fl BUN 623,239 766 10,758 1,128 (2,611) 633,280
F 2 F (454,946) (1,903) (8,207) (531) 2,617 (462,970)
F BN EER 168,293 (1,137) 2,551 597 6 170,310
E . XN ZFE RN FET 167,271 (64) 2,726 377 = 170,310
2 EBIE TS UL 2B 1,022 (1,073) (175) 220 6 =
FEHRMEFBRA 609 592 (51) 373 (19) 1,504
R X5 F L8 RIFEFHRN 559 592 (10) 363 = 1,504
7 EB1E] F £ R MG F KN 50 - (41) 10 (19) -
HMEWARRN/ (ZH) 47,413 6,042 14,296 676 (711) 67,716
Bl X (128,631) (724) (11,836) (1,098) (103) (142,392)
B SN %R 2 2 2 7 = 9

FiiE B Em 87,686 4,775 4,958 555 (827) 97,147
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I EH

20224£12H31H

ERR = 17,651,016 226,772 352,886 43,714 (205,671) 18,068,717
KROBEH™ 174,366
BRE™ 18,243,083
S E TR 16,322,299 62,195 318,893 28,126 (102,147) 16,629,366
RAEC R 8,136
Bk 16,637,502
Hith:
7 1B ARk 5 2,006 (137) 5,381 60 122 7,432
HARM I H 647 315 14,059 9 - 15,030
ERRERSK 113,425 4 1,227 548 222 115,426
HAbF = ER K 1 - 3,030 - - 3,031
FHxRIE 3,737,608 244 - - (9,000) 3,728,852
20214
FlE WA 591,113 746 10,131 1,257 (2,114) 601,133
B X (448,833) (2,021) (8,088) (715) 2,156 (457,501)
Fl RN %R 142,280 (1,275) 2,043 542 42 143,632
B X GFERNRE 141,120 87 2,123 302 - 143,632
5 BB IE] 7 BN 5 5T 1,160 (1,362) (80) 240 42 -
FEHERBEFBEAN 868 301 (82) 351 5 1,443
B XWX GFEHERMLBRN 810 301 (13) 345 - 1,443
7 B8] FEL# R AT B WA 58 - (69) 6 5 -
HnE s 17,755 19,916 13,185 175 (1,087) 49,944
Bl X (88,917) (2,284) (9,607) (850) (253) (101,911)
ERIRIN SR 2 1 77) (14) ©) 68 - (26)
FE B 71,909 16,644 5,536 286 (1,293) 93,082
2021412H31H
AT = 16,619,924 217,855 340,163 41,540 (189,668) 17,029,814
RAER™ 138,127
BR™ 17,167,941
HEB TR 15,458,288 64,002 309,909 26,082 (236,894) 15,621,387
o EE 8,274
BfE 15,629,661
Hit:
HrIRFRE S 1,692 231 4,349 68 (122) 6,218
RAE S 593 1 24,551 16 - 25,161
ERBER K 74,037 (504) 2,443 270 396 76,642
HME = RERK 2 - 1,067 - - 1,069

EREE 3,555,880 244 — — (19,376) 3,536,748
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T. XEAXRERRZS

1. MEBER
MEBEESRNARE], F2022E 128318 E20214 128318 , #9354 4 1736.54% H AL .

AEASHWEMHTHEFLSXFRETHILERET, TREFELAATIMIRZLILVEBLTHERS. THRS fRE
H. ZFXZHMERERNT .

EREREH 56,248 80,734
Fi E X 8] (%) 1.99-4.42 0-4.68

FlEUN 2,137 2,294
B Al & 74 45
2. iC&RT

LR RTERAARFEADVNEHATAS EMBIPELR IMAAXIARTS,282.09Z5T. L&A EEF TN,
X EE SN ITRE, FNEEMF L HEERESN. LA RERPEBRMRETENRTHRMX S, T2022F12
A31AR20214F12A331H , L&A S119FH K1734.68%AI AN .

FHREMUERERD, ARAFBENLLARNRITNGES TREAHRBERE S EBREMT .

oA~ 1,706 2,992
HAh i & 83,106 49,833
F) 2 X [8] (%) 2.15-4.23 2.15-4.38

II-C ' ON 2,240 1,647
BRI 78 96

AEASLEATNRERFHRLARBFHAASHTHEE LSS BREFERLERET.

. BRAREEFEFRIEL
BIRRRATAERFELD (UTHR ERNLE ) RERMNLERRLARIMN— AFRFLAD, 2EEENHEMINA
BN, 10, £ WBHEH. A RRAEE. RALGE (RAAEHANTE, GHEABHERHTAREEEN).

F2022FE K 20215128318, {BHEAHA S FHFE AT727.19% 98X .
AEASERMAIREEH EAFBEFINATHTHEZELERS REEH W ERIHET.

. 5FLANES
AORFARENEFHEEE5FRAIXSGHNIKENET RET.

w

H

-

HEAES 4,959 -
BT SRR~ 1 19
R GER AR 41,406 42,175
HARARIRH - 126
HhH ™ 22 4
ffs

B b & S RRANLA 7 BRI 9,771 103
ETE SRR ER 15 -
R AR 121,920 109,497
ERTREIUES 4,569 8,269
HAth R 6 22

F2022128318, 5F A SHEANBRFRBERFHRERIBREATAHART0.00{Z27T (2021F12H31H . ARM193.76127t).




98 ERFALRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

AOFERNEFEESTRASNRETRIROT .

U ON 1,816 1,685
FlEXH (1,003) (693)
FEHERASEAN 60 70
FHEBFRAE IS (10) (11)
BHE W 7,863 10,517

AOETREZENXZIER—REWERMERS L SEFHT.

5. ERFEMEENTRINKZS
AEFASHEENAEATZ NS N— BT SNEIENER BT SRV LT, T2022E R20214E, AEFAK SEEM
SENDREBREBEIRS ERUEERLES R,

6. XEEEAR
E@BEWARRIEANIE AT BB HAEFFHHA R, FR022EK20214, BERRMFMI AR SXREEA
RMZHEMATEX.

7. DU EFESE

BRIEH B fERSN, T2022F R20214F , AEHARAT SR ITRINFESHURREERRKTZ 5.

T—. HBEFELRKIE

1. EBIFL
Fo022412A31 8, AEEARATEEETARFAFR. ATEREANZEARRRNRARASERT RN ARARKTH
WM& RRREE AR EEATM,

2. BAMRIE
AEH AT
BEENRRIT
— BEAE 47,833 38,440 = -
- BER/E 38,001 37,911 669 648
&1t 85,834 76,351 669 648

AEANBEERFRAKBER NI AEAEER~HRAMRXE. T2022612A3310, ARABIEERBECH~HZEAME
AEEHMAARM373.32127T (202146128310 . ARM372.02{Z7T) .

3. fE5T&E

R EE M AT
| oxFRASIA 20F12A3A | 202F12A3H 2021512A01H
TERKIE 3,716,738 3,515,207 3,725,739 3,528,207
FFHRERER 3,703 9,262 3,458 15,394
RITEHLCE 6,375 8,700 6,375 8,700
FrHE AIE 2,036 3,579 2,036 3,579
Ait 3,728,852 3,536,748 3,737,608 3,555,880

Fo02212A31H, BHAET AR BHEE—FUHNNESTMAARMTS07.93127T (2021F12831H0 . ARM542.94127t), &
RERESREHESE—FMU L.

. LA ERE
FREAGRERE, ST AHEE SABRMT.

H

‘
i
=

RAAEARSH 28,014 30,184

F2022F % 2021F12331H, AEAMRA BT KIEI A —FUA,
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5. B{RY)
(1) fEHBRYIE
BERERE, RS E M R A~ RENMEN T .

AR EH

_ 20214£12H31H
% 18,611 22,792
ELFE 500 -
AT

_ 2021412H31H
% = 3,219

F2022612A318 , ARASZHEMESRE=RAESHARMTI53.67(Z7T, AfTERHEMER A =RAS K (2021512531
B: 23 AART211.88{ZT R ART31.50127T) . Fr A B IAHMX I AR5 F R B,

F2022% 128318, AEFAMBA R KRR ARER. LEHENE” . GENERATEFANORAEYEKENESITAART
1,5689.521Z5¢ (202141283180 : ART714.06127T) .

F2022F128 318, REFARSHHATREFRNREFYKENESITAART20.01Z5x.

(2) WEIpERY
AEREINEE VS FERTIESEARAIRY . F2022F12831H R2021F12831H, RAEATLWE 69T U H EHHF K =
SMEARRYIE SRR .

T=. KNEEE

1. SRR EIE RS
AEANEETIERSMERNL AEAELEIET NI LSRN REAGHTIR . 2. BENRE, AZEEE
R SRR, TR SOAT@#EMEIREERNE. Bt AEEAR BIRE/RERREMERGFE. FRTERDREE
B SIS RERTIZ 0.

AEAFENRGABBRMNBEENRIINHRGHEER S, FBRLEAT WE X" PRPMBEZRURENZE. K
SEAREESAFNHREERTREBRBENRETHEFHAFNERATBLRTAR GO GRSE, RYEBEIKE S A RIEM
A3,

ANKEEERNEFARE, ARA#TT " LEANEENTESHTIARS, BERTEZH . BHMNARERMFEZTRANE,

AERAMREEEBRRE T E LN RERAMES FR, BT TEMENNESRGRENREMRFHTER, BRIR
AR ENE AEAETHHFANEEEZBRRNRG, RNRERRTS . ~R0OTAL, FINREIEUANTENGEIE,
AEFEIENERSRNE RIS FANE . TR MR,

2. ERKE
FEFAMERNEAREZEEAALZHFNSARFEATRTENEEREORE. FARKEAEALSERNRES
R, AR EREMEARNEERERERE. GARRTEFETERARS MEMGHRANGTESAS LS. RIEMTA
Bl S ERERMERKEBEEREARRE.

FEAZRRRESEATORDBTEERBREERS £F64AKALSHERLTERTRGR SFTETE RE. 1.
HIERE. TXRBRGE. ZBERAZHERATRER NEFINE BARENE A ERTFETITEHE A EUERMBR AR
BERIUE TR, BN, AT RIEIFRAERSEE, E6HE T BRFR. TR RITHMTVITRFENRE.

(1) ERARKEHEE

AEANBRERFFEEEMAR. REFEFL. IHFEFZ. REEETIARAREESHINERLSEREXTIEHER &
WEHEICEERRERE BARIAES . TREE FEFilt. AXEENREEES2REEE RS NRERNR, MRA
RARUBRBRLE HHAFREEREHARIEFTFREDENARANFEARE EEKFE.

HAEANT T AL ENRFREMIAATESERH TR A~ NBEER -0, WG E#TRHE. R\LESERY
JREIFRIMATER B (1)RFRTELLE, QFAKANKEITERXBHLEBRR, ENTHERANNELEESEHA
5

TN o

BRERAFSHARATREANRN, S TALEELS ARAEEREFAZELEAKINISZNF. FHEANK SHA
KHEE GESERMBERTIRES. 2ERE FAENNIEEERAGHERARREHES IR MRLEELENER
REE#HTERE. b, AEAIFFRERIIMNYSEREETRARELS ALFAEZT A BAMBTARARBE A AROTE
M FEBSERARE AN, B AR X b2 5508 S 5T 5518 S RS 2 2 i R BUR SR PR RIZ 15 AR .
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(2) mEEY
AERAFET —RIEARRERNBERNER, RALTBXAN, BRREFNEERERERARERAAEY. AEEAN R G
FERMAN TR MREANRERREESE T RIEES, FFEH R MR HEER.

MR TR ANH R B R, FmkEN . St~ D HEAN NERIES . WS FRUENMEE. BRBERMBR Z MY
Htb S RATHIMAIRY BT AAXSHMIRE. BEELT. KUSH T AAARMEAIFNASIFMISHEMUS
BIEN, G BRMEMESEERERIEER, F2022F128310, AEARFTHEERNMHER~.

() ERIT%

AEAXARBE A EATRARRENZT SN FHFEARRITEER AEXNTRENNZZN FRXATEORBITFRIRE, E5X
ABRFERER (B0 ERAEERATITLD %) BEANTRIRE ERERAMBEEEANTEL. IS, TOEERER
R EEA R T Z AU T O 8RB E M RRE R RANE AR,

(4) BHAERmEAITE
T UEREATEMNAANETEEETNTARMGERENGES TRESRMAS . AASNRRFRENYSERE
B ARRHZA HAERRARE MR EAE. AEAHTSRA S TG BRERENIK K T 7E D e S HERE,

MFHATHEARRITENSH TR ARATHEXSRTIANGANEEVEHINEREEREEM EA =ZNKR AE
REGFITEHREEE . WIAIBERBRXK.

M. BVERIANEERRRREZBNNSRIRE RANEIDAE MK,
FHER BVRFIAEEARREZZNNSRTIE EHREEAIEREFARENSRIR RENRYUDSHEZNR.
F=HE N TEREGFRARENSRIR RANBRYD AE=HEK.

F-EREMIARBRELYTZESRIARKRLPARTHEARANSTIHTBERIES E-MBENE=MEREMITAZR
BETZEm T ABNFEPRATHERARENSTIIEHREES.

WASREE R EFEARENSRESRIEEVERIANDFEERRENSRA > LR~ 1RERE D BN FEANTH
fERA%K%.

AERALSENERFTHAGERREITE, THREARANITETEAT EANERNRR. IEEBNRZSRRROE
MEFIEAMERANE R (Fln, BREANTEERBERE)  KREARES AN ZRETHEBRE T FE
AT A R, 81,

- RUMERANEAE YD

- FHERRKITENSH RERMETRA

- AR R E BN H W iR

- BRAEGERBENHERE

- BATHBEMITENEFER. EFERRANENXA
- BEREABERTERRBORKILS RN
KEMERRREEED

FEFAKEBLOREHALNM AT E. EHTOEAN, KRAZET ERALE FUEF ERA% BROEBEERER.

HBREGEARKEDEND TR,

T ERRAIT BN RRRMETTRA

REEANEEERERERMURREEREGEARE AEANFRNE DA U120 B ENFLANMBIERRXITE

RBEEE. HHEARATENXRSHER/REARE . ZORKTMBEINIEH O . KK NS R EEAE RN EBITRE

RAEM RFECVSIDENER, ZRHLGEITEE (UXSHHFITE BERAXRREMYELS . ERTREF) NEEN TR

BIEMER, BYBAME SAMERRBANGHAEE,

HAREXMT

- BEABMXRERSAERRNOASEBNMHRESH DERTEEMXNSHTEN. ARANSAMRURIITRIZE
GRABUMHATHEE MATERES MRREFTEANEFHETHRS AN RBEAME,

- BARIXZEAEANBANKEEERXEREREHHOTES, REZXZNFHOXE BROTIMLER MEERRHN
AR, BARIEBERAE. BAREENBAREN NG HARENE DL

- EBEANKRBAORE EEOREN, REANEESHSH.

AEAXAABEATIRRENZ N FHEABRITEER, ENFRALINNOZHNFRXATRHABMITRETR, ERKH

ENRENERARBERREEHRANTRRE, AEAEHERFECTHAEARKITERXNRER SREHRTHE

APERIBROMENZNERL.

T2022F K it RAH X BBRERREERL K.



W58 % — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 101

15 ARG 2 2 3G A0 A H B Ao

AEAEBI A NRREATEEXERIENEARKEVIEHIAGEEEC EEEM. AEARTERA S RN RS M
ENEERREGANEESGHIEZL AN EMEEEAKENER ERITENES. ARAMNENSr T AN EM Bt
REMIAERMRRARESFANNRSEVRBIABRESANNE, MRESRTATHFEARNEESTANKEHNEL
B,

AEFABEREER. ENMAENANSRTANGANKEMNEHINEREREEZEN, HHFATEGERS ASAHEX
L. FERREDERATUNEEMERAGEARNEEZZMAEL. £ SR TAENERANKEBYIEHINEES S EBMA,
AEARBEH LW SIHEN X TEHBE0RAFEANEZZBMARE. IREREEERIAEHRENEFREFEAR
b, AERAREZEMIANEARKEBVEFHIANRFAREZEN MREVTEAFRMAEANE ARAEEHAREFRE
MENRFBEEGRANERNS BEBETXSENTHERBEALF N LEFORTLAMER. WIZERmTRFEA AR
AREEARE.

MEBRBESRERERE ARARBFAENTHROZRBEZWAERARFENEEHAERGTRNERTH. T LALE
AR BTN, REARFIRMERE W, SAEEERALEREN . BHRENNIRBEZWELNTL, ITHEXS
RIANGEARKRBVMHEFHIAEREEEEM.

E R E1E FRE A9 B iofE

EHERMIAAENTAMERETREGCAREN, ARAMFXANFRERE, SRR NAX SR TR NE XKL EEBRRE
—H. EANEEREE. EHIER. ARATERSAZEREGHRENR, TBEZEUTEER.

- RAAEGEFAREERNY SR

- BREABERER WEAHNEHIASEANBHANEAEANEATRS. 2R MNEHREAN LD FEFEHEBILOX

- BERAETERSAMSERGRNEFAGEAER. BTREAEEAEMEL TR MEEILE .

- WEARTEB~HHTHMBSEES,

- ROTIESFAMSEAESEZERASIERTIREX.

- MURERFMMEIERE -SRI, ZITINRRT REFHRKAMNES,

ERASRECHRE ETERSNEMHNHARERME, RS2 TRMIRFNEGTE.

RATRIEMITENEFER. @FESREANENRA

ERNE 2 ZZNATERIEERRANITES S REIEMER. AREBTHTH LEIRED 47, RAE 10 &0 5K EE M
REERMERRENXBETF IR MENEFRUEH. U ESEH. BEEEEE. RELFEFN EARRNE LR
REMPW, SRR WSEBEMAR . AEASEEERIMPEEF R DTHEZLLFERSTARTMNEARETZ
B RER, AR X LELFERETITETN, FRHERROREGET, FEHRNITHER.
AEAEARITATERRBERN. BERENER THEFINEANE. AEANSHEREFINSRETRRENE
EBERRETRREFANIAHNEMEZNTRER ARAITEFHET FTRBESNONE, ARAEANEMIINES T
Hfhip sz M., AEEAMMRMN 12D BWHBERRE (F-MR) INNNBENEEATRERRE (EZMREE=ZNR)ITE
BXROMEER . LR MAEBRERBEITN —RI T REMNE R EN TRV MRS,

IHERRARREM TR BN ERNTHAERREOZN, TUSREFHANTAEAREONMNST—RS TRRAEE
BRUEGHNER, T20220 K, AEAXR T FARNEUETER SEFEBRFSEESRENEFRREBHNTZ M, X
RMEFIEFAETREERION . i, BT AT MERRRIHERN L™ S E(CGDP) HFF LB RA2023F MR HER TN
SEEE 53.4%6.6%.

BRIBERLRBEFIET L FH TI210%, RERT20226812331 BiHE MR EAE KT L LG FBE5%,
RIEBERNELEZMEHN

BENERHRMANFTHERET A — REFWBEHHNEEZN0%. MEABLANERL10%, HERZENBELHNESG
M10%, MBEABEHONERD10%, AEFAF20224:12831 A RAAEAE RO LN LA FiBIL5%.

B R SRR B A AR SR £ R U

AEAEGINEN KT SEREERRERSBXNORKREHASRN FRR-—ENMARFAEME, RER~ KK
ERANIE.

.
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102 EZRFXLIRIT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
(5) A& B BIRY o H it 5 A 1SR 3E e A S K15 L XURE: it O
FHREAGRRE RAERREHRANGERNT.
AR EH AT

| 2022412H31H  2021%12H31H 20214128318
FRNIRE
FRR R BITHI 113,857 92,562 113,311 92,008
FRE LRI 113,326 195,044 146,482 221,139
RERS 471,537 371,086 476,496 371,086
PTEERAE~ 11,093 16,978 10,269 16,901
ENEESRE™ 404,823 495,214 404,823 488,334
RILGEFR MR 13,899,107 12,791,666 13,391,556 12,640,761
oM ERE 756,510 829,888 680,068 819,892
R B 935,357 1,146,917 933,716 1,145,265
H AR 1,022,499 766,562 989,327 746,090
Hith 11,571 6,097 5,238 3,798
it 17,739,680 16,712,014 17,151,286 16,545,274
FIMRE
BEROR A 3,716,738 3,515,207 3,725,738 3,528,207
FFHARE 3,703 9,262 3,458 15,394
RITERFILCE 6,375 8,700 6,376 8,700
FFHEAIE 2,036 3,579 2,036 3,579
it 3,728,852 3,536,748 3,737,608 3,555,880
Bit 21,468,532 20,248,762 20,888,894 20,101,154

ERDHFITT T2022F %2021 F12A31 0, AEFARKTERAFERTHEBREED . BRE AR S H b
ERBEERNEANEHRA. S THSNHERIE LR ERANKEBRAET R ™ A GERKESEST.

(6) TEMBMERARKH AN

AERXBARMERNERAEFEX D ERAR". " FRE" M sAE". B EEXANERRRKPRE, BAED
FREENRNEFRANERUNZW, PR EERABSLERARE BINSMEENELERTE—EF MW, £E5F
THHSARKESEEMN. SRR EERABSEEHNTRAEE, ABEEMMEZTNBNELITESEEEY,
BANERAK.,

WNBEEEEN SR TAREMATRIMERREIMEITOT, RIEFIRE, F-—MRAKIDBMPERARL £
EE=MBEARENFEHEMBERRK.

R FER
2022651231 S mMER mSwe sEmR Al
ER%ER
AEH
R 12,866,087 - = 12,866,087
R - 1,338,103 = 1,338,103
[SP - - 222,948 222,948
&1t 12,866,087 1,338,103 222,948 14,427,138
B ERREAS (209,408) (254,675) (155,120) (619,203)
HER 12,656,679 1,083,428 67,828 13,807,935
T
1R BE 12,377,702 = = 12,377,702
B - 1,299,219 - 1,299,219
S - - 220,386 220,386
&it 12,377,702 1,299,219 220,386 13,897,307
B ERREEE (199,604) (242,949) (152,676) (595,229)

AN 12,178,098 1,056,270 67,710 13,302,078
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ERER
R
RR B 11,892,965 - - 11,892,965
RS - 1,197,129 - 1,197,129
= R - - 129,495 129,495
&it 11,892,965 1,197,129 129,495 13,219,589
wERREES (192,457) (229,513) (81,928) (503,898)
R 11,700,508 967,616 47,567 12,715,691
&7
R XUB 11,746,075 - - 11,746,075
R - 1,174,169 - 1,174,169
S - - 127,265 127,265
&it 11,746,075 1,174,169 127,265 13,047,509
e ERREEE (185,832) (215,214) (80,742) (481,788)
R 11,560,243 958,955 46,523 12,565,721
RBR R

wmEzABE L E-WBR #=hR #=me &t
ERER
AEH
RREE 945,348 - - 945,348
R - - - -
= R - - 2,024 2,024
&it 945,348 - 2,024 947,372
W ERREEE (10,209) - (1,808) (12,015)
R 935,139 - 218 935,357
AT
R 943,904 - - 943,904
R - - = =
= K = = - -
&it 943,904 - - 943,904
W ERREEE (10,188) - = (10,188)
R 933,716 = = 933,716

ERER

&R

R XUBe 1,151,761 - - 1,151,761
RS - - - -
= R - - 2,160 2,160
&it 1,151,761 - 2,160 1,153,921
B ERREES (5,214) - (1,790) (7,004)
R 1,146,547 - 370 1,146,917
1T

B 1,150,332 - - 1,150,332
R - - - -
= M - - 355 355
&it 1,150,332 - 355 1,150,687
B ERAREEE (5,191) - (231) (6,422)
X1 1,145,141 - 124 1,145,265

-
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H A A &
wpERARE #oWBR #SRR ®=mR A
ER%E%
AER
i 1,022,466 = = 1,022,466
RS - - - -
=R - - 33 33
&it 1,022,466 = 33 1,022,499
ERREE® (128) = (1,324) (1,452)
4T
RS 989,327 = = 989,327
Doy - - - -
S8 - - - -
&t 989,327 = = 989,327
ERREE® (95) - - (95)
efErAIE #-WR #ThR s=mR &t
ERE%
AER
KRB 766,460 - - 766,460
R - - - -
S - - 102 102
&it 766,460 - 102 766,562
ERREREE (117) - (1,034) (1,151)
AT
KBS 746,090 - - 746,090
2oy - - - -
=R - - - -
it 746,090 - - 746,090
ERRERE® (76) - - (76)
FRRE
CwpERASE #-WR #TRR ®=me A
ERER
&M
TR 3,568,268 = = 3,568,268
R - 160,340 - 160,340
= XU - - 244 244
&1t 3,568,268 160,340 244 3,728,852
4T
KRS 3,577,268 - = 3,577,268
R - 160,340 = 160,340
(S - - - -

&1t 3,577,268 160,340 = 3,737,608
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ER%ER
AEH
XU 3,414,777 - - 3,414,777
RS - 121,727 - 121,727
= X - - 244 244
&t 3,414,777 121,727 244 3,536,748
T
1R AR 3,434,153 - - 3,434,153
R - 121,727 - 121,727
= R - - - -
At 3,434,153 121,727 — 3,555,880
it ff
wpERARE #—WR #THR ®=mR At
ERE%
A EEH
KRB 7,880 = = 7,880
RS - 15,237 - 15,237
=X - - 244 244
At 7,880 15,237 244 23,361
T
1R AR 7,881 - = 7,881
XU - 15,237 - 15,237
= RS = = = =
At 7,881 15,237 = 23,118
exgrRASIE %WB #THR ®=me At
ER%E%
AREH
R 4,807 - - 4,807
AR - 12,930 - 12,930
S - - 244 244
At 4,807 12,930 244 17,981
47
1M 4,964 - - 4,964
RS - 12,930 - 12,930
= M - - - -
At 4,964 12,930 — 17,894
ER B EAMEAIBR

AEABVEREREEARENSRASNEMNERS BAARTHMERS, KEFANEMEEREBREATRBXLBR
MIOTEMER, EREEARENSRAS MEABKELEERETEENERLNEI TNT:

[

BREFRBEN RS

KRR 233,718 (155,120) 78,598 58,653
RER & 2,024 (1,806) 218 =
H b s & 33 (1,324) 33 =
AR 235,775 (158,250) 78,849 58,653
AT

BREERABENE™

RINGER AR 231,156 (152,676) 78,480 58,653

b7 231,156 (152,676) 78,480 58,653
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IR EE ]
BREEABENES
R GEFR AR 129,854 (81,928) 47,926 60,253
R B 2,160 (1,790) 370 -
H A AR E 102 (1,034) 102 -
R 132,116 (84,752) 48,398 60,253
AT
BREERBENR™
R GEFR AR 127,620 (80,742) 46,878 60,253
AU H 355 (231) 124 -
HER 127,975 (80,973) 47,002 60,253

ERIEIY A AMEEST, UWHBROE—ERMIRMBTKE BN A HR,

F2022512R8318 , AERBRATERYAERAEENNERLERE LWL,

(7) EHSERFIEBER

AMRANERRTIZGEAACHREIEBRARNSHELOT
AR

e imsE sEME AR
2022412H31H
ERRR 546,288 1,381,515 2,229,330 4157133
{RIE TR 110,219 241,722 829,154 1,181,095
AR GERK 57,517 169,704 1,637,374 1,864,595
FBHRTERR 13,096 48,844 7,210,161 7,272,101
At 727,120 1,841,785 11,906,019 14,474,924
2021412H31H
ERER 411,358 1,002,629 1,904,140 3,318,127
RIETER 102,432 222,029 664,318 988,779
HEHR TR 77,593 157,008 1,482,030 1,716,631
R 15,142 53,730 7,170,089 7,238,961
At 606,525 1,435,396 11,220,577 13,262,498
17
e imsE sERE AR

2022412H31H
ERER 545,969 1,380,937 1,981,165 3,908,071
RIETER 110,217 241,503 765,477 1,117,197
RGN 17,793 57,457 1,580,432 1,655,682
FRIRTEER 13,096 48,259 7,202,788 7,264,143
A1t 687,075 1,728,156 11,529,862 13,945,093
20214£12H31H
ERRR 411,068 1,005,221 1,931,651 3,347,940
RIETERK 102,431 222,252 661,934 986,617
R GERK 25,375 46,037 1,446,698 1,518,110
TG 14,967 53,444 7,169,340 7,237,751

&it 553,841 1,326,954 11,209,623 13,090,418
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ERERNEFIEEANTLAFERAT.

A EEHE 20224£12H31H 2021412H31H

P X BE 2,791,908 19 2,924,303 22
R E R 2,629,214 18 2,451,616 18
IKF) BB RIPFIA IR EIE 1,503,640 10 1,236,152 9
B R EKAE =R 1,436,376 10 1,289,544 10
PRERIE fr 1,096,774 8 945,765 7
b A ] 1,062,034 7 956,820 7
g 1,015,403 7 833,559 6
Al AkFLT 570,021 4 566,233 4
Hithizfm W 511,028 4 392,847 3
XH 322,431 2 310,443 2
HE 281,996 2 253,652 2
Sabl 149,456 1 212,995 2
BEMEME R ERRS L 75,979 1 83,118 1
Hith 1,028,664 7 805,451 7
At 14,474,924 100 13,262,498 100
4T 2022412 H31H 2021412H31H
WA X s 2,791,545 20 2,923,863 22
EiKzm 2,602,595 19 2,451,146 19
KF FRIBRIPFI A IR EEIR 1,397,214 10 1,233,323 9
B R RKNE = FER 1,376,201 10 1,256,685 10
WHAHZE 995,284 7 930,029 7
g 983,843 7 831,115 6
FRERIE far 927,462 7 887,146 7
rap: =L 570,006 4 566,211 4
Hithiz gl 458,223 3 384,705 3
P2 322,333 2 310,443 2
HE 281,996 2 253,652 2
SEl 180,684 1 197,965 2
BEMEMERSEHARS L 72,637 1 82,716 1
Hith 985,070 7 781,419 6
&it 13,945,093 100 13,090,418 100
BAFRFEZK
BURAEBEBRARMSRIVECUBE A ZRBERAERERNERLT AEANATEBRAETTBEERERNE

. EEERRNEIER M ERARTRALESR D IHRML A, XEEETRERRFEMEN, T202261283180, K&H

MATEARZSHAARMT699.39127T (20214E12831H . ART478.70127T).

-
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(8) AN H
TRIFT AEARATEAREREREMER T %8I T OERITRIEHNERTRDERER.

A=A

BURF B R BUR LS iR 35 85,528 2,666 10 - 1,190,006 - 1,278,210
EfFE(1) 441,779 - 31,978 9,576 - - 483,333
AEMRSE 271,008 2,646 717 262 - 3,571 278,204
SRAEFESE 77,448 728 3,364 2,727 - - 84,267
ITRITRIER Y = & = = - - - 3,450 3,450
EHIT i X H At = - - - - 1,316 1,316
g = - - - - 382 382
B =R FFIES 257 32 = = = = 289
Ait 876,020 6,072 36,069 12,565 1,190,006 8,719 2,129,451

BUF XA BUF NSRS 98,097 817 10 - 1,194,808 - 1,293,732
SRV G 64,408 987 4,846 3,885 - - 74,126
GG 182,518 4,269 - 2,759 - 2,757 192,303
RS 247 128 - - . . 375
B FE (1) 592,210 - 13,891 10,715 - - 616,816
AT RITHER = & - - - - - 4,542 4,542
FHRIT R E A - - - - - 960 960
H g - - - - - 407 407
&it 937,480 6,201 18,747 17,359 1,194,808 8,666 2,183,261
T

BUFREB NGRS 78,331 2,666 10 = 1,180,189 - 1,261,196
B 7FE# (1) 438,045 = 31,978 9,576 = = 479,599
UNGIRGE 264,202 419 = 251 = 434 265,306
SRV GRS 76,508 - 3,155 2,306 - - 81,969
g = = - - - 14 14
&it 857,086 3,085 35,143 12,133 1,180,189 448 2,088,084

BRERABRGGES 98,097 817 10 - 1,189,858 - 1,288,782
SRV GRS 63,059 - 4,656 2,531 - - 70,246
UNGIRGE 173,255 410 - 1,187 - - 174,852
RIS - 51 - - - 378 429
EFE(1) 592,210 - 13,891 10,715 - - 616,816
= EEIT - - - - - 16 16
&it 926,621 1,278 18,557 14,433 1,189,858 394 2,151,141

(1) BFRTAFEI R LFBEARE,
(2) RTRBFEAEBRNMESHETARRETERFREBRNIM, MVEE. PEARRT. C2A S MBKMERT.
(3) RIFEHEMBNMRABERE A SREMR. BEMRRA S AFEETY . HURTRAEY~RFERITVE,



(9) ERMAFREPNEIS T
RGBS H A SR FE =
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A&

2022412H31H

B RBITRI 113,857 - = 113,857
FHE AL R - 113,326 - 113,326
HEHE - 471,537 - 471,537
ETESRRA 4,107 6,986 = 11,093
ENEBEEERE ™ - 404,823 - 404,823
THMERE 4,741 149,231 602,538 756,510
IR R 838,377 514 96,466 935,357
H R A 435,092 421,954 165,453 1,022,499
Hih&r&H ™ 3,467 2,138 5,966 11,571
&it 1,399,641 1,570,509 870,423 3,840,573
2021412H31H

B RBITRI 92,562 - - 92,562
U LRI - 195,044 - 195,044
e HES - 371,086 - 371,086
LT SRR~ 5,417 9,377 2,184 16,978
ENBESRE ™ - 494,557 657 495,214
ZHMEmE 177,260 239,334 413,294 829,888
AR R 1,054,245 513 92,159 1,146,917
Ht AR % 227,122 455,944 83,496 766,562
HAith &m0 EE ™ 2,102 1,495 2,500 6,097
&it 1,558,708 1,767,350 594,290 3,920,348
AT

B RBITHRI 113,311 = = 113,311
FIE LRI - 146,482 = 146,482
HEEE - 476,496 - 476,496
PTHE SRR 4,107 6,162 - 10,269
TNIRE SRR = - 404,823 = 404,823
X5 SR 4,728 143,935 531,405 680,068
AR 838,377 514 94,825 933,716
HFR i 418,092 417,118 154,117 989,327
Ht &% ™ 3,467 701 1,070 5,238
&it 1,382,082 1,596,231 781,417 3,759,730
20214£12H31H

B RBITRI 92,008 - - 92,008
FIE LRI - 221,139 - 221,139
HEES - 371,086 - 371,086
TTESMA~ 5,417 9,300 2,184 16,901
ENBESRE ™ - 488,334 - 488,334
ZHMESTE = 177,200 232,523 410,169 819,892
AR H 1,054,245 513 90,507 1,145,265
H A% 202,232 454,405 69,453 746,090
HAeth & Fh = 2,102 1,176 520 3,798
Ait 1,553,204 1,778,476 572,833 3,904,513

-
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3.

ERF%4RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

ik

T RERIEERTHNE (FR LR RENENFRNE) OEHMERARARRAMRMLSRERMNONE . ARAHIE Y
THREETBREEBTKES T HKENNE SCENE.

AEATHRREENEGEBIRI BN THNRERER . THIRG ERITE FEENMERENZZNERZ LSS
NHHRRE . BRTHREEHNERARATEZHAEEN . KIR b UK /9T,

FEARREFLRAMBZRSENNNERIREETHRE . AR EETKALASEEREAT NG, BdEHETEW
FHEANREEERE BREMTHNENEREE.

ZEWESRITHERIRIS

AEFARENTZRE T EFETRXZKESRITKESH.

ZHWERIEAXZ BN ARMBIMEANETFENTNEAZ NS TANFRLT. ROTKERENEZ S BHHE
B RAMNTERYANZGWENRABERLFHA.

R ZMWEMBITWER T Z NG ARG EEBRNL SERBESBNRITVEE AR TERENER. £ NREERAQEHE
EOTmHRE. FRGEERSXZUSHT AR, L SRRBIATAS UHEREEREAAR], P EHETLRNEMR
PSR A BB B3R, T HA 4R ) 4R A7 TS 2 B AL R R b IR R

TR T ERARTE R %

THNEBIRAEIE. TEEM. AMDHT. RODHT. GUEMERETRETRE,

MR ZKE, AEEAR B ORFZS, EIRRIES . SURMERFAEHEFREHSERRRR.
AEAZETHNRHZRREE T WEEREEFRFREER A NEEEBARXZWESETH R ARG it
2 LEfRs.

SRITIK

MERTME, AT T BRI CERE  FIRN G QSR 2EEETHRERR. Ed, REEERBLITEER. A0
HEARNBREEETKALASRENRITEER LSERBEBSIFHRO . GUREDIT. O F T7 AT KBS T KBS
TAERIRA TR,

B SR R AT R BE AR AT AL, FEL3(N) AR RS R 3(2) TR N ( BIFERITIKENZ ZHMKE ).

(1) FZEREE

RITKEFI R ZIEFRKF  PREMERRLERFIENSBREOKERFRSMEFNEEZREONE.
AEAETERMBRAZTNVSENRIENLFEAMARRTETERAZN. TEARBTNARTEEFREL T H
E, AESRINMREFLERENE THERRFIZOKE, —RTS, B—HH. ARARGESE ™GSR HONEKRERZ.

BOKBANRXNEERTEMNRBTNZFNERDNARITNHNEZANEENT W, S ARODHT. KBS S FSRANE
WEF BIXHARASAREMENARZFTREATROTMEN T NEER. XHWEOMN KRG 2B LM KRR
BRI HH AR AT TR SO mETER.

EIEMEENERN A E, ARAEHITENTEENRAD . AREER, ITHERRMERER (RIURE) 787 SBRATE
THEX F R E ) A9 BUR M,

EEMNGRODH
RERNEXEENAMIAEFREEN L ARASTEMA T KSR O EA KRG M A 25 UKE N ET =T -

IREEH]

2022412H31H

EREZE

M4 K AFH P R FTERIR 109,410 = - = = 4,450 113,860
TR LRI 101,591 3,311 - - - 8,424 113,326
FEAES 155,609 264,786 50,370 - - 772 471,537
T SRE = - - - - - 11,093 11,093
ENEE ST~ 404,707 - - - - 116 404,823

KIRGTRI R 4,350,965 8,185,972 261,212 229,094 828,789 43,075 13,899,107
X5

= g 31,555 53,997 25,827 50,321 78,016 691,412 931,128
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&M
IR 28,523 300,221 536,703 56,813 = 13,097 935,357
H A AR %R 195,035 350,580 297,364 102,073 69,059 8,388 1,022,499
HthiE TRER - - - - - 5,354 5,354
At 270 = - = = 11,301 11,571
ERA~AIT 5,377,665 9,158,867 1,171,476 438,301 975,864 797,482 17,919 655
ERHR:
&b R H b & REAN A9 1 IR IR 503,720 2,021,081 = = - 11,273 2,536,074
1) AT O H th & B AN A9 B 3K 247,924 281,013 22,963 17,928 = 3,034 572,862
HAEE 22,850 13,339 1,785 92 566 237 38,869
THH LR AR - - - - - 2,495 2,495
LTE SRR = - - - - 18,351 18,351
52 (61 1 € Rl 7T = 5K 15,208 159 = = = 25 15,392
R U 73R 1,066,631 78,877 12,033 4,074 2,110 3,999 1,167,724
ERTESITES 921,232 987,506 5,022,845 4,263,996 699,542 230,835 12,125,956
Hith 104 2 14 50 = 17,954 18,124
ERLARATT 2,777,669 3,381,977 5,059,640 4,286,140 702,218 288,203 16,495,847
FEREHEMEEO ST 2,599,996 5,776,890  (3,888,164)  (3,847,839) 273,646 509,279 1,423,808
ERERMNEXEEMBNEHHTIREEN L, AEASNESRMAE =R S5 A AT Z XS MO 2 H MUKENES ROT .

AEH

3MAMA 3E124°A 1ZE54 5Z 104 105 E EER &it
20214128311
SRR
M & REFHF RBITHRIN 85,786 - - - - 6,779 92,565
FRE M 3R IR 132,486 43,223 - - - 19,335 195,044
HHES 162,345 169,818 38,338 - - 585 371,086
TTHEESRA~ - - - - - 16,978 16,978
INBRESHE 494,383 - - - - 831 495214
R ERAER 4,435,990 7,265,345 239,544 125,226 670,945 54,616 12,791,666
XU ERE= 279,338 4,461 14,949 1,829 81 705,308 1,005,966
IR 7,868 205,071 630,649 196,861 90,210 16,258 1,146,917
HAh g & 349,273 157,785 199,062 41,344 14,009 5,089 766,562
HMMFETEREA - - - - - 6,060 6,060
Hith 385 44 19 - - 5,649 6,097
SRER AT 5,947,854 7,845,747 1,122,561 365,260 775,245 837,488 16,894,155
&R
&b R Hfth 4 Bh i A 1 ER TR 524,248 1,859,955 - - - 11,311 2,395,514
5 BURF A H fth & RAH A9 fE 7K 185,569 211,831 2,291 40,283 7,304 1,683 448,961
HARE 65,070 1,739 1,839 403 593 36 69,680
T HHEERAR - - - - - 2,085 2,085
TSR R - - - - - 9,359 9,359
SEH B SR E K 20,940 248 - - - 17 21,205
g 978,000 81,422 8,216 2,837 2,951 5,770 1,079,196
EXRITREIES 804,750 1,408,085 4,578,240 3,823,058 642,555 223,689 11,480,377
Hith 124 501 726 - - 5,306 6,657
ERAHRAT 2,578,701 3,563,781 4,591,312 3,866,581 653,403 259,256 15,513,034
FEEHENMHEOET 3,369,153 4,281,966  (3,468,751)  (3,501,321) 121,842 578,232 1,381,121

-



R

112 ERF%4RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

RERNEXEENBEMIHEFREENL, ATENLRA SRR AGF RN O DB UKENESITNT

T

2022412H31H

ot 3

WM e K AF M H RBITHRIN 108,864 - - - - 4,450 113,314
FFRUE L FR I 138,161 = = = = 8,321 146,482
ik 157,508 267,786 50,370 - - 832 476,496
T ERAE~ - - - - - 10,269 10,269
KINBEESRH = 404,707 = = = = 116 404,823
R GERR AR 4,338,300 8,172,647 170,801 192,855 475,572 41,381 13,391,556
RS SRR 27,569 52,836 24,922 49,887 8,087 533,648 696,949
R 28,076 300,221 535,541 56,813 = 13,065 933,716
HAbRAUR H 194,436 345,771 281,250 92,925 66,977 7,968 989,327
HthiNgm TAERR = - - - - 2,042 2,042
Hth - - - - - 5,238 5,238
SRA~AI 5,397,621 9,139,261 1,062,884 392,480 550,636 627,330 17,170,212
SRR

B\l B Lt 4 B AN M 17 SR IR 509,560 2,023,686 1,279 = = 11,321 2,545,846
BB R M SR EER 124,341 184,628 766 17,400 - 1,877 329,012
FARE 8,689 13,339 1,785 92 566 218 24,689
TSR R = - - - - 18,339 18,339
R I 47 3K 1,184,694 82,564 12,033 4,074 2,110 4,169 1,289,644
ERTHRFIES 917,481 980,759 4,985,111 4,265,572 699,542 230,487 12,078,952
HAts - - - - - 7,150 7,150
SRR AT 2,744,765 3,284,976 5,000,974 4,287,138 702,218 273,561 16,293,632
MEEFHEMRD AT 2,652,856 5,854,285  (3,938,090)  (3,894,658) (151,582) 353,769 876,580

REFMNEXEENBMIHBEFREESX, ATEWLRA X SR AGFERE O 25 NKENESTAT .

T

3MAMA 3E129A 1E55 5ZE 104 106 E JEER ait
2021412H31H
EREEE
N& RIFHFRBITHRI 85,232 - - - - 6,779 92,011
FHE W FRI 166,789 35,025 - - - 19,325 221,139
FHEE 162,345 169,818 38,338 - - 585 371,086
LT SRE &~ - - - - - 16,901 16,901
ENEESRE™ 488,162 - - - - 172 488,334
R GER AR 4,288,093 7,263,888 239,246 124,896 670,946 53,692 12,640,761
THMERE~ 136,073 48,554 57,622 12,167 2,917 582,351 839,684
FRER 7,821 204,597 630,058 196,657 90,209 15,923 1,145,265
H A AR & 348,166 157,154 186,222 36,657 13,341 4,550 746,090
Hhia TRER - - - - - 2,055 2,055
Hith - - - - - 3,798 3,798
SME~AT 5,682,681 7,879,036 1,151,486 370,377 777,413 706,131 16,567,124
SRR
B & E fh & B AL M 7 IR TR 524,351 1,859,955 - - - 11,311 2,395,617
15 BT L A € BRAN A 5K 82,845 119,463 2,853 10,212 - 655 216,028
N 51,192 1,739 1,839 403 593 24 55,790
PTESR AR - - - - - 8,801 8,801
St B 1 £ 50 R 7 5K 3,150 - - - - 2 3,152

e 1,074,562 94,357 8,216 2,837 2,951 5,770 1,188,693
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T
3IMNAMA  3E129AH 1ZE5% 5Z 104 10 E AR At
ERTTHRFIESH 797,845 1,392,004 4,551,943 3,825,643 642,555 223,382 11,433,372
Hith - - - - - 5,061 5,061
SR /RAeTT 2,533,945 3,467,518 4,564,851 3,839,095 646,099 255,006 15,306,514
MEEHENGRASIT 3,148,736 4,411,518 (3,413,365)  (3,468,718) 131,314 451,125 1,260,610

RN R E MRS RS A SUR D AT

THRIFT ARRBERHERNFT LA TEIONERNELT, BTREPRAKANESAT SR RROLED, XK
K12 A AR R FRANR A MG ST/~ & N EER T F 0. 22 REFT A AT XY DAAREE R, KRR LR K
i MM REFFRAER.

AEHE 20224 20214

BEFERTY | EeskA RSAKE  ARSEN  Rbsaks
EFH100ME & 44,413 (25,932) 45,537 (11,605)
TRE100MNE & (44,413) 28,593 (45,537) 12,342
Py

KRR I

FFI00ME & 45,166 (23,841) 44,095 (10,880)
TRE100E & (45,166) 26,226 (44,095) 11,598

X S FBEAN T RIE - EF R LA HARFENOT KRR —FRETHEEENNSREA ™ RSO G £ 251K
AR, ZOFREPRFENERASTRARNEVRFIFE, KREEFATH. BERRHGHRITEENANEFLRAER
ER.

MEMGERHENFWRIERTE—EF XN N PRFENHBERRTHTELRTAANETNNZ M,

REFANAZBEHARERAFANTSERRMNENEEEMNBR, Bt ERZW IR SKFERAFEESR. A, LRFIRE
P RR2EXNFIE, BTESNITREBEREAEARN R RERTT , FESFRATNE MG SRS AT R, BiZ
SR IR 7B R E IR R OO R AR 2 SRS 1 o) B SRER A9 KBS B A

(2) ICEMNBG

REFFIBINTICR R~ ERTRAR ZNEEZmEY SR SRE.

RERANKRTDWERARTLS, WHEET. Koo, BxMEMNRSI TS, REANLCENEFTEEREEXT. AEFE
FRCESTETANADETHMAETI M, 20220 F, ARDNETCEEEARTO0.5889T/1E T (2021 FEFEART
0.14925t/1%£7T).

AEATEBIINOHA OCRGEMDTER K (FaR)ZFH LRV ANRHTEENS W, FRULBLTMNARE R
REMEMEN AL 5HE T RFETLRNRER.

AEAZHHCEREHADE, MERTASMAURTEARTIKENESTMOT

A EH

20224%£12H31H

SRR

N& RIFHFPRBITHRI 109,357 4,503 - 4,503 113,860
I E AL R IR 40,128 52,168 21,030 73,198 113,326
HEHES 367,542 91,602 12,393 103,995 471,537
PTHE SR> 9,225 1,762 106 1,868 11,093
ENIBRE SRR > 404,823 = = = 404,823
RINGER AR 12,880,055 848,826 170,226 1,019,052 13,899,107
TG SR 901,318 27,206 2,604 29,810 931,128
BRI 840,271 95,086 - 95,086 935,357

HAh iR & 973,842 38,353 10,304 48,657 1,022,499

-
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£
| ART WAART RGTIART ATHARGAME A

Hhis TEKEE 2,042 - 3,312 3,312 5,354
Hitb 7,271 4,044 256 4,300 11,571
ERASET 16,535,874 1,163,550 220,231 1,383,781 17,919,655
EREGR:

B B H fth £ B ML A 77 HUER R 2,521,230 6,511 8,333 14,844 2,536,074
1) BT A0 EL £ BR AN A (A 5K 328,572 242,188 2,102 244,290 572,862
FARSE 14,153 15,238 9,478 24,716 38,869
X5 M &R 7 2,494 1 - 1 2,495
ket Bl 16,916 970 465 1,435 18,351
S B 4 R Y 7R AR 14,959 433 - 433 15,392
U EEE 1,004,043 110,364 53,317 163,681 1,167,724
ERTHESIES 11,970,722 102,203 53,031 155,234 12,125,956
HAts 15,443 1,174 1,507 2,681 18,124
SR ARET 15,888,532 479,082 128,233 607,315 16,495,847
RAWE L5 647,342 684,468 91,998 776,466 1,423,808
CELFETR (HFR/ZXEH) 341,191 (272,746) (66,697) (339,443) 1,748
B8 3,560,564 121,537 46,751 168,288 3,728,852

ARAETHCEREHADE . UWERFASHNARTEARTREANEITNOT

AREH

AR ETHART Htm#AHART SIHFARTANT &it
2021412H31H
ERE:
W& K A7 RBITRIN 85,719 6,560 286 6,846 92,565
FRE R 82,279 87,799 24,966 112,765 195,044
HHEES 289,645 80,719 722 81,441 371,086
PTE ST~ 13,342 2,196 1,440 3,636 16,978
ENRESRT= 495,214 - - - 495,214
BRI 11,658,348 961,579 171,739 1,133,318 12,791,666
N 974,499 30,785 682 31,467 1,005,966
AR 72 1,056,299 90,618 - 90,618 1,146,917
HAb AR H 704,456 60,737 1,369 62,106 766,562
Hithilzs TRERE 2,055 - 4,005 4,005 6,060
Hith 4,002 1,805 290 2,095 6,097
SRA~AIT 15,365,858 1,322,798 205,499 1,528,297 16,894,155
AR
B\l B Lt £ B AN M 17 SR TR 2,343,074 43,896 8,544 52,440 2,395,514
1) BT 7O H th & BR AL 4G fE 3K 225,508 221,297 2,156 223,453 448,961
HANRE 8,503 53,537 7,640 61,177 69,680
XSS AR 2,084 1 - 1 2,085
PTE SR AR 6,427 2,665 267 2,932 9,359
SE B € R 7 5K 21,205 - - - 21,205
R I 77 5K 907,856 126,314 45,026 171,340 1,079,196
ERTHRFIES 11,281,871 142,958 55,548 198,506 11,480,377
Hit 4,153 2,030 474 2,504 6,657
A RET 14,800,681 592,698 119,655 712,353 15,513,034
RN E L% 565,177 730,100 85,844 815,944 1,381,121
CEFETR (HFR/EXEH) 299,286 (204,259) (57,906) (262,165) 37,121

EREE 3,314,874 199,879 21,995 221,874 3,536,748
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T

2022412H31H

SRR
WM& REFHH RBITHRIN 108,864 4,450 = 4,450 113,314
FHE L FRIT 97,429 28,090 20,963 49,053 146,482
FbxEE 372,501 91,602 12,393 103,995 476,496
FHEERmAS 9,205 958 106 1,064 10,269
EINBRESRA ™ 404,823 - - = 404,823
RGN EER 12,379,739 841,759 170,058 1,011,817 13,391,556
THH LA~ 696,929 = 20 20 696,949
R R 838,891 94,825 = 94,825 933,716
H bk & 940,670 38,353 10,304 48,657 989,327
Hhiam TREZER 2,042 = = = 2,042
Hith 4,533 533 172 705 5,238
SRA~EIT 15,855,626 1,100,570 214,016 1,314,586 17,170,212
ERHR:
&k R H fth < Bh AL A9 7 R 2,523,357 14,156 8,333 22,489 2,545,846
5 B R b 4 B A fE 2R 170,111 156,799 2,102 158,901 329,012
WARE 2,581 12,630 9,478 22,108 24,689
LT SRR 16,916 958 465 1,423 18,339
R U 73R 1,104,008 128,854 56,782 185,636 1,289,644
ERTHREIES 11,959,695 67,390 51,867 119,257 12,078,952
Hith 5,161 617 1,372 1,989 7,150
SR HRAT 15,781,829 381,404 130,399 511,803 16,293,632
KA A LT%8 73,797 719,166 83,617 802,783 876,580
CELETR (SER/BXEH) 341,191 (280,283) (66,697) (346,980) (5,789)
EHR&IE 3,569,565 121,292 46,751 168,043 3,737,608
1T

ART ETMART Htm#HwART SIHFART N it
2021412H31H
EREF.
W& REFR P RBITHRI 85,232 6,493 286 6,779 92,011
TFRUE b FR I 134,589 61,737 24,813 86,550 221,139
HEES 289,645 80,719 722 81,441 371,086
FHEERmAS 13,342 2,120 1,439 3,559 16,901
ENBEEEFER~ 488,334 - - - 488,334
R R AR 11,514,951 954,114 171,696 1,125,810 12,640,761
XM ERA 839,684 - - - 839,684
TR 1,054,881 90,384 - 90,384 1,145,265
H b AR T 683,984 60,737 1,369 62,106 746,090
HEMAETRERE 2,055 - - - 2,055
Hith 3,438 136 224 360 3,798
ERA~AI 15,110,135 1,256,440 200,549 1,456,989 16,567,124
ERAaEs:
&k R H S R F IR IR 2,343,177 43,896 8,544 52,440 2,395,617
3 BUF A H fth & mh AN H & X 49,456 164,417 2155 166,572 216,028
WARS - 48,150 7,640 55,790 55,790
LT &R B 6,427 2,107 267 2,374 8,801
52 B 1 6 Bl 7T 7= 5K 3,152 - - - 3,152

-
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T

AR EXHART HtmHHHART SHFARTANT &it
Ui s 992,328 148,199 48,166 196,365 1,188,693
ERTHRFIESH 11,279,711 100,046 53,615 153,661 11,433,372
Hith 3,374 1,304 383 1,687 5,061
ERINBET 14,677,625 508,119 120,770 628,889 15,306,514
RN B L% 432,510 748,321 79,779 828,100 1,260,610
CELTETR (AR/BXEH) 299,286 (236,584) (57,906) (294,490) 4,796
& TR 3,327,631 206,254 21,995 228,249 3,555,880

TRINRTAEARKTHEEIINCREHMONETESN TGRS THNARTLREAN ZH1%NERLT SMHEHTHR~S5 0
AR O R BRI ET RS TR AEMEEZH, ERCEXLTHNAEARATHEBGEREAT W AEKX,

AL 1T
e sz e 20215
ETHBARMICEES)
FH1% 4127 5,263 4,389 5117
TRE1% (4,127) (5,263) (4,389) (5,117)

DANCEEHHNRAFEOZ N, AEAZBELHRENESR HREEUTHEE.
- AFAUEREBRAKAERILTHMONTL,

- CEREHNEATHEZMW,

- CEEHHNTHNEAZE.

4. FRENtERBE

RAMNERIEAKRARFEEEN. ERERNUEERARBTREEAR S MUE N R - BRI E RSB R . st )
URERLERTEERNA . FRANXSUREERBRERARAASNER.

AEARY—BERHMEEBIRIER SENRESPRAASRHEPINEE. EAWASTURER2ITE AR
KBS

2022%F , ATH#ERE A TERMAFHERAZT R, RERRESOREXH BEFRNREKPURERESRHENSRE 15
REREIHR, FATEBEIETH EMBARERERTHENANFERMEA.

AR E IR B AR

AEFAARSEXEEASEINER AP EEEFHFER. NN EPRER. BERS. BRAN. BETERERAGISEENET
LRI RENMARER,

/1%%}'3?)\1 IHABRRENISRER RN ESESRARARARNUENREENEZRF. AT LSEFETHENHRAIA
BRIEH ARARBASMAGRNE NEELREFAIN., REENLTTESRES RS, ERNBFES ERANNE, &
%I%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂﬂ’] A R EHERIEEEZA.

VEERBNASHERAMERARHEEEER] ., ARAN RS EERESS.
- TWEERHORESR, HEXZEERNE = HKE,

- BEERSOGRSMRA,

- EEGFSIHHEMNETEMEL,

- ERGSEATL.

AEARHEBBRIETH LR THEATRNATERAMN RSN, EHFFERERB ARERIRAN M. LI, RIEHLEZ
B AL —MANBNAG MEHMER FASEIHERE MELBAER, EARREINATMANAETE R, KAEARE
TEEMRHSRA MR,

BEBLT, ARAFFANARZASRERIFRANEHIIAKENSTLTRDA S REREBERNAAEHIEAFTNES
—REMFARENSI. BN, BAEARETERLH. PSRRI AETNRREAMERTEEET. ALERXENERE
I PDAREFERRITNERAEHF K,



ERTRRHEDN
REFAEHREDRN MR, DRFERANMERMETT . R 3R . mAfibiEas o8,
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AEANRABRZNEABEREGSAEATHNSERINRERATHNEEMER, LAZRARRKNREETFTENKIE
B, i EREAENMEARRKEAERSNEN. ARABRSATEEHN RS EZHAEREHLSEERTR R, X
ELETRERAERN, WEALEASEREFEALERSIHZKEE. B, RAEFNNRENAREARTESFHR
DERS, FR022F12A310, AKRAKIR (HHAHE—F—FENLE) EXTHRFESFSTMAITHARTI0.36H 2k, Hithk
HRES (BFERLREMSRNMERRR. @BEFMEthEmNMER. SERMSREA~FZNRKER) £FAITHART

1,652.521Z7t.

RERAENRMKYRD L, AEAETESRTATPSTNEATLEENTELRTIERMEASRASRAIBIITOT, K&
ANXEeaTAMPHNASRES TRTNINTEFTRENESR.

&R 20224128310
T e om e we e e s

Elhe o
AL RAFRRRBHHRR = 113,681 180 = = = = = 113,861
BFHE LRI 13,536 90,621 2,336 = 7,064 = = = 113,557
HERe = = 115,972 82,067 228,205 51,674 = = 477,918
INBRESRA” - - 404,911 - - = = = 404,911
R 56,325 - 136,345 296,176 1,639,202 6105694 4678759  6950,197 19,862,698
ot eRMA> 172,776 3,450 8,604 43,511 199,251 191,504 108,801 229,900 957,797
AR H 2,024 - 407 32,794 233,050 594,644 162,614 - 1025533
Hi R & 3 - 97,962 96,300 372,152 340,496 123,427 91,026 1,121,366
HMETARE 5,354 - - - = = = = 5,354
ety 1,261 6,145 45 2,896 1,193 63 16 30 11,649
A SRAF B 251,279 213,897 766,762 553,744 2,680,117 7,284,075 5073617 7,271,153 24,094,644
FfrELmnfk
B R H th & B F AT - 57,358 5,509 453,194 2,046,777 - - - 2562838
m B FRE S RyHER - - 30,315 154,677 265,007 118,552 24,667 - 593,218
LN = = 11,560 11,491 13,810 2,058 % 611 39,626
XHH AR 82 - - - - - 2,413 = 2,495
S EEFE - = 14,057 1,192 161 = = = 15,410
R HHR - 1,029,288 6,334 34,951 79,918 13,735 5,446 2852 1,172,524
ERfTREIEH = = 307,008 404234 1230128 6,379,368 4953985 1,092,436 14,367,159
Hity 1,94 3,424 99 26 2,677 9,380 571 12 18,130
EESRARE 2023 1,090,070 374,882 1,059,765 3638478 6,523,093 4,987,178 1095911 18,771,400
P 249256  (876,173) 391,880 (506,021)  (958,361) 760,982 86,439 6175242 5323244
fTESBTAERER
RAREENTE ST - - (153) ) (297) (127) 9% 61 (429)
BEMAENTESRIA

AEHAN = = 193,834 115,619 404,620 7,961 5 - 722,039

AERH = - (196,386)  (116,428)  (411,358) (7,634) (4 - (731810)
fTEEBMIARERAT - - (2,705) (816) (7,035) 200 95 61 (10,200)

-
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KER 20214128318
FiTEEmAT
RAERBEHHRETHR - 92,419 147 - - - - - 92,566
FIE L FI 12,566 121,984 8,669 15,260 38,054 - - - 196,533
it - - 115,336 49,113 173,265 39,470 - - 377,184
INBRESHA® 659 - 494,685 - - - - - 495,344
R GEHAER 95,781 - 168,865 281,897 1500075 5566693 4544671 6475459 18,633,441
HHERAE 161,598 3990 52,143 89,861 54,438 123,452 138,607 397,639 1,021,728
FAERHE 854 - 831 15,322 240,131 735,315 220,422 97,268 1,310,143
HA AR A - - 117,243 222,850 176,051 229,190 46,974 21,478 813,786
Hitia TERR 6,060 - - - - - - - 6,060
Hitp 75 3,447 47 453 48 1,873 124 30 6,097
FTESRASR 277,593 21,840 957,966 674,756 2182062 6695993 4950798 6,991,874 22,952,882
TSRk
B R HAth & REAIAGF AT - 51,337 1,703 483,734 1,883,788 114 - - 2420676
BB HRE SR mER - - 31,051 139,425 201,035 72,229 11,579 - 455,319
KNEE - - 35,062 30,074 1,855 2,204 439 650 70,284
XMt LN 2,085 - - - - - - - 2,085
S EBERATR - - 18,084 2,887 250 - - - 21,221
LU - 919,891 18,345 37,828 83,531 12,122 4315 3719 1,079,751
EXAREILS - - 365,879 191,168 1,697,860 5878325 4,511,951 1,050,538 13,695,721
Hth 243 2,694 64 978 1,348 1,314 6 10 6,657
FAESRAKEE 2,328 973,922 470,188 886,094 3869667 5966308 4528200 1054917 17,751,714
PN 275265 (752,082) 487,778 (211,338) (1,687,605 729,685 422508 5936957 5201168
fTESBIARSR
BAREENITESRIA - - 102 8 (50) 475 506 320 1,381
RRMAENITESRIR

B IN - - 140,191 121,749 452,310 2938 - - 717,188

bk - - (139998)  (120493)  (444,063) (2,890) - —(707,444)
fTEEMmIERSRAN - - 295 1,264 8,197 523 506 320 11,125
K17 20224£12F318
FTESRAT
A& REFRRRBITHR - 113,314 = = = = = = 113,314
FRE LI 13,536 132,947 = = = = = = 146,483
piitiia - - 115,972 83,986 231,288 51,674 - - 482,920
INBRESHAS - - 404,911 - - - - - 404,911
R GEHAER 43,467 = 131,900 282876 1599869 5924930 4613748 6,512,310 19,109,100
e~ 15,639 = 8,604 42,966 198,263 189,319 108,072 160,582 723,445
FARHA - - 407 32,551 233,023 593,450 162,614 - 1,022,045
H AR A - - 97,901 95,581 366,328 321,281 112,814 88213 1,082,118
HtA&E TARE 2,042 = = = = = = = 2,042
Hity - 2,030 1 2,818 298 61 - 30 5238

FrEERASE 74,684 248,291 759,696 540,778 2,629,069 7,080,715 4997248 6,761,135 23,091,616




W%4#%% — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 119 ‘

17 2022412 A31H
TS mAR
Bl R E & RAMERET - 59,483 5998 456,465 2,049,461 1,345 = - 2572752
BB ARt £ BN AR - - 9,392 113,909 143,051 54,508 17,691 - 338,551
KNRE - - 2,298 6,543 13,810 2,058 % 611 25,416
R FzsR - 1,141,930 11,883 34,962 83,733 13,735 5,446 2852 120454
EXGHRELEH - - 307,034 402561 1,221,700 6338565 4955724 1,092,436 14,318,020
Hit - 3,801 91 18 2,628 518 82 12 7,150
FESRARER - 1,205214 336696 1014458 3514383 6410729 4979039  1,095911 18,556,430
A3t 74684 (956,923) 423000  (473,680) _ (885314) 669986 18209 5665224 4535186
fTESBIARSR
BAGEENTESRIA - - (20) %) (297) (127) % 61 (296)
BROMAENTEERTIA
WEFHA - - 192,984 114,762 400,937 4,035 - - 712,718
ek - - (195593)  (115634)  (407,954) (4,090) = - (723271)
fiEEMmIANERAT - - (2,629) (879) (7,314) (182) 94 61 (10,849)
K7 20214128310
JHTESRAT
A& REHFRFTHR - 92,011 - - - - - - 92,011
R LR 12,566 173,359 - - 35,860 - - - 221,785
bt - - 115,336 49,113 173,265 39,470 - - 377,184
INBRESHAS - - 488,459 - - - - - 488,459
VG EIEE 86,205 - 163,608 264,141 1,460,764 5451947 4536877 6,476,171 18,439,713
RHHERHAS 18,159 - 52,143 89,289 52,746 106,505 138,146 397,547 854,535
AR H - - 813 15,272 238,857 722,660 218,235 97,268 1,293,105
HbHRR S - - 116,616 201,734 173,910 211,421 40,919 20,609 785,209
Hinilam TRER 2,055 - - - - - - - 2,055
Hit - 1,778 2 6 4 1,854 124 30 3,798
FortE oA~ B8 118,985 267,148 936,977 639,555 2135406 6533857 4934301 6991625 22,557,854
i EmARk
B & E & RMERT - 51,439 1,703 483734 1,883,788 114 - - 2420778
BB RS RyaER - - 11 80,277 77,356 50,665 10,418 - 218,727
N &2 - - 27,984 23,236 1,855 2,204 439 650 56,368
SEHESRE =5 - - 3,153 - - - - - 3,153
L eeEA - 1,005,828 23,369 38,601 101,295 12,122 4315 3719 1,189,249
EXTREILH - - 364,298 188,553 1,684,984 5843262 4515087 1,050,538 13,646,722
Hty - 2,649 63 899 846 588 6 10 5,061
FirEemAREN - 1059916 420,581 815300 3,750,124 5908955 4530265 1054917 17,540,058
=P 118985  (792,768) 516396  (175745) (1.614718) 624902 404036 5936708  5017,796
fTESBIANSR
BAREENTESRIR - - 42 100 128 701 507 320 1,818
BREMAENTEERTIA
MEFHAN - - 139,840 121,263 452,289 1,927 - - 715,319
RERE - - (139,649)  (120,008)  (444,056) (1,874) - - (705,585)

TEEMIARERAIT - - 233 1,357 8,361 754 507 320 11,552
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AERAGTHKE. FHRE ROTRKAZLEERFALEREINERSTREREMEIBIRHT .

AREH

2022%12H31H

BRI 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,249 268,101 3,076,368 3,716,738
FFHRERIBR 5 - 256 3,442 - - 3,703
RITRFILCE 1,358 1,694 3,323 - - - 6,375
FF = FIE 298 109 1,461 168 = = 2,036
&it 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,859 268,101 3,076,368 3,728,852
2021412H31H

BRI 3,015 6,873 87,411 254,943 234,365 2,928,600 3,515,207
FFHREZBR 1,441 114 2,141 3,566 2,000 - 9,262
RITERFILCE 507 1,640 6,553 - - - 8,700
FHERIE 270 767 2,533 9 - - 3,579
it 5,233 9,394 98,638 258,518 236,365 2,928,600 3,536,748

B fRfRRIMIE

REORFKE . FRERE. RITRALERAUERIEINERSTIZARIHE DB ROT -

T

2022%12H31H

BERRR A 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,250 268,101 3,085,368 3,725,739
FFHRERIER 5 - 256 3,197 - - 3,458
RITRHICE 1,358 1,694 3,323 = = = 6,375
FHEFIE 298 109 1,461 168 = = 2,036
&it 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,615 268,101 3,085,368 3,737,608
2021412H31H

TR 3,015 6,873 87,411 254,943 234,365 2,941,600 3,528,207
FFHREZBR 1,441 114 8,517 3,322 2,000 - 15,394
RITRFILCE 507 1,640 6,553 - - - 8,700
FHERIE 270 767 2,533 9 - - 3,579
Ait 5,233 9,394 105,014 258,274 236,365 2,941,600 3,555,880

5. &R~ MEmMARMARNME

ERTIAAANENKREIEERBRAR~RAREERT S L RSBEOIRN ., ATENERTH LRBURNE , REFBIL (G
ERAKRBESHTANARNE. MERAGRAREREZATUNE AT HEE, BN TR BREAEER S SEIE, AKX
SEMXANEERABGEERTHSSZEENIRTHSENMEER HSAANERIEENEFERRE—B.

AEAUDHE-BEXANEHIATREREXIAXFINIESEES XABRARASEERTZTHRNITE (REEE).

FEAUDP AFZERNEHIRAIBRORIEFRA . TEEY BEIUXANETEEE TN AN LS HRENREY I S
HONFERAFS. ARTHESHNAANERRTRAERECEEARTIAINGELERAE IFHEFNLANERRYE
BENGEERBE, TESAXARAASREANBRR-HR R ERE AN ES#THEE. FEENEES RS I THY
WE.

AEAUNDAE=ZFANERTIETRAXREAFANRELER L TRUNERALTESRTENBRN, EEEERGERAHE
ARNE. MRNGEERATRSERSRINIE PR~ %E TATE, ERAANENTERR T WEESEERFZWHT
TNESH ZLESHETB VRIS FHIERARE . IR ARA KSEBRKR RN FEX TH T ASEHE.



(1) MasgEtENERIA
AEANAANMETTENSRTRZ=1BERITNT:
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A EEH]
ERE
FTEERA~
CELGETR - 7,690 - 7,690
FELHTETR - 3,403 - 3,403
R GFR AR - - 48,097 48,097
SRIEE
HXFENBENESRESREM A RNE
THEAHEHITALBRENSHA>
% 264 80,831 478 81,573
ERIZE3=] - 68,507 - 68,507
BRERESHER 8,736 617 7,215 16,568
T RITHVER Y = & - - 3,450 3,450
M#ETA 11,224 17,106 731,742 760,072
BEEET - 368 - 368
BEMAAMETEREETHIT AL HRE
ol T
s - 576 = 576
BEEEI - 14 - 14
Hb AR
% 4,934 602,706 33 607,673
EfFE - 414,826 = 414,826
Hhias TEEE 3,354 - 2,000 5,354
ait 28,512 1,196,644 793,015 2,018,171
EAR
XS MERAH = = (2,495) (2,495)
FTHE SR TGS
CERGETHR - (15,380) - (15,380)
FIRETETR - (2,971) - (2,971)
&it - (18,351) (2,495) (20,846)

-
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AEH
(2021f12A3t8 ®-ER ®ZER $EER &t
SRR~
FTESRAS
CERLTETR - 9,609 - 9,609
MELGETR - 7,369 - 7,369
RIER MK - - 45,073 45,073
SRUE T

AXZENFENERAT REMBUAANE
HEAETHITALPRENSRA >

% 4,249 73,748 868 78,865
ERZE3-] - 171,243 - 171,243
BERESE/E 5,489 867 10,069 16,425
TR ITHEY ™R 72 - 4,470 4,542
WNHETH 17,527 14,102 702,231 733,860
BB - 376 15 391
BEMAANETERRTIITA YRS
HERA
% - 624 - 624
BB - 16 - 16
HAFAUEE
% 19,399 300,517 103 320,019
ERZE3] - 446,543 - 446,543
BEEET - - - -
Hithizs TRERE 4,060 - 2,000 6,060
&it 50,796 1,025,014 764,829 1,840,639
AR
XHMUEBMAR 1) - (2,084) (2,085)
TSR AR
CELTETAR - (2,827) - (2,827)
FIELTETR - (6,532) - (6,532)
&it (1) (9,359) (2,084) (11,444)
AT
(20221231 #-BR  ®ZBR  ®=Ex &
SRE>
PTEERAR
LCELTETHR - 7,648 - 7,648
FELGTETR - 2,621 - 2,621
BRI - - 48,097 48,097
SRS T

AXZENFENERATREMBUAIANE
HEEETIITALPRENSRA >

it - 78,357 481 78,838
B fFE - 68,507 - 68,507
WNHETH 11,224 17,106 520,684 549,014
BEMUAAMETERREHITA Y HIRGE
HERLA
R% - 576 - 576
REEETY - 14 = 14
H AR E
i - 578,236 - 578,236
EfFE - 411,091 - 411,091
Hithizs TREE 42 = 2,000 2,042
&it 11,266 1,164,156 571,262 1,746,684
Al
PrESm AR
CEREFETHR - (15,353) = (15,353)
FIRETETA - (2,986) - (2,986)

&it - (18,339) = (18,339)
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T
mesRANA goEx #SER #EEx A&
SR~
PSRBT~
LCEFETR 9,551 9,551
MEFETR - 7,350 - 7,350
RINGTR AR - - 45,073 45,073
SRIRE
IR ENFENESHASRAMURARANE
TEABEEHITALSHRANEHRA>
&% - 72,555 1,247 73,802
B FE - 171,243 - 171,243
MHETH 17,514 14,102 562,383 593,999
EEMAAMETEEHTINTA LT RS
ibfat: b g
s - 624 - 624
HEEEITY - 16 - 16
H R A
Bz - 300,517 - 300,517
ElFE - 445,573 - 445,573
HtRA TEBR 55 - 2,000 2,055
&it 17,569 1,021,531 610,703 1,649,803
SRR
PTES AR
CERGETR - (2,820) - (2,820)
FEGTETR - (5,981) - (5,981)
&it - (8,801) — (8,801)
2022 FEH2021EE, AEAE—RAMNE_ERSMIRZ AL ERER,
AEFALRE=ZFEXEHTARHMNT.
FEH SRR
L asevmR SEMERAS ARRREN RRREIRER  SRESAH
20224E1E1H 45,073 717,653 103 2,000 764,829
By - (15,873) - - (15,873)
0 9,624 92,615 33 = 102,272
“E (4,614) (58,678) - = (63,292)
MEZ BRI - (3,606) = = (3,606)
REait
&3 (1,986) 8,846 (102) = 6,860
Hbm e - 1,928 (1) - 1,825
20224E12A 310 48,097 742,885 33 2,000 793,015
FHENAS/AHET.
PN L ETNE S (1,986) 1,136 (102) = (850)

HTAHMGE SRS - 1,928 (1) = 1,720
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s SR
L amovmm SSMeRAS AGRREN RRREIRER  SRESAH
202141618 42,964 762,324 1,451 1,516 808,255
B - (16,396) - - (16,396)
120 6,186 27,212 - 500 33,898
%Y (4,740) (71,049) (1,527) - (77,316)
NE=BREH - (7,285) - (16) (7,301)
REE
g 663 22,838 24 - 23,525
Hpr s - 9 155 - 164
20214E12A31H 45,073 717,653 103 2,000 764,829
FHENR=/MHES.
TABRBARF RS (RK) 663 18,003 - - 18,666
ITAE GRS - 9 179 - 188

ATERE=ZFRXEMIERHMNT:

b ERH=
L msswRRR SSMBRRS  UBRRE  MREIRER  SMESAH

202241 A1H 45,073 563,630 = 2,000 610,703
B - - - = =
B 9,624 5,022 - - 14,646
=" (4,614) (53,221) - = (57,835)
NE=ZBRE = = = - -
Bam At

s (1,986) 5,734 - - 3,748
20224E12F31H 48,097 521,165 = 2,000 571,262
FHENR=/ M.

TTARBA TR PR/ (HRX) (1,986) (2,839) = = (4,825)

AR LGRS B = = - - -

SRR
L AssRRR O SBMERRS  AGBREN RRREIRER  SRESAH

202141518 42,964 621,238 1,015 1,516 666,733
#n 6,186 1,354 - 500 8,040
i (4,740) (59,908) (1,015) - (65,663)
ME=ZERE - (4,335) - (16) (4,351)
M@ &I

L& 663 5,281 24 - 5,968

Hibir &R - - (24) - (24)
20214128318 45,073 563,630 - 2,000 610,703
FRENE=/HEFR.

TR AR PR/ (RK) 663 (2,615) - - (1,952)

TTAHMER & B - - - - -
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@) ERARNMETRHERMTA

AERFE A RN ET BOELAFAOSE, RAAMEBHET T THOFTENBR, AANEEREENS HEZEX.

() NeBERFREGHA. FREALKR. FHEAS RARESMAR . ALEHELRT L FRER FARS. T8
[ W04 AR 7= 3K BB 8 P S A £ 0 o — 4 O B M3 B b R R R 3K

BT L SBA S RSN ROHBAASHE—ENN, BSAFHHAERSEHEN, EKENEZELAANE.

(i) daEs

EEE SR AR A ANE N T RS T HRN A ER, BT EBOIESRA . W AR ERLESRARRUEAS AR

4 A S48 A 1 0 R .

(i) &M SR ALK

mFIHARRRNAETBERBPEARRGEAR RS EHME AEHAE HKANEERAANEN SRR, BEF

RRROAANENA SR BT ARE, I K 51280 F R B ST RRAIE,

(v) EEFIEE Sk B 7E R R S5

ERAEEA TS AU ERRERNAANENASHRMIARE, WK B 52 R R AR 0H R BREN TR,

SR () (v) T R B S A B 0 S B TR 7= 0 SR R A K T 41 B 4 A AL

(V) BRGFHESIES

BB A ANENT RN D BB ELNSRTROTHBOWE. X T HERS T 5RO DL SR T RS HIEN %

% BN ANE NS BRI 5 HIR IR T IRK S R D RIS AR IEIERE,

THEIIF T ER S ESOKENMENBATR A RNE

20224£12H31H 2021412H31H
| MEME ARfME KENE DRNE
R
ERTTHFIESH 12,125,956 12,438,951 11,480,377 11,572,243
AT
ERTTHRFIES 12,078,952 12,393,550 11,433,372 11,524,787

6. HAEE
AEARTAAEENNAABMSILRE =~ AERTO MAEENE NEEAZ HENTER.
- HWEARHAZSEMEMRTEENWRENAELER,
- RIEAERAFHSLERNNEERBIRENRAEERHELR,
- REBEENAABMUZIHISER.

AEAEEEREETEERZASHEXRES MERBRESHEENE, IREERANEEXANLNERANZABR. £17E
ZHERRES FIRMEBERNABARNELR. T2022F12A31H, AEHAR AR AART8,34519127t, —RAXBRTMAART
15,090.191Z 7T, #b—RERBIMAART5,07711Z T, RAFREEH11.37%, —RBAFKEEH9.34%, L —REAXRTER
EH9.33%, AITHRARBMAARTI7,961.81{Z7C, 12— REARBHHM—RAABRMAART14,826.03127T, REATEEH
11.27%, b —REAF BRI —RERFTEEH9.27%,

T=. ZAFEARRABER
AEARATEEEAS AHRAEFER,

T, MEHRzHE
ATEFRE F0BEAA27AHAT ATHRTRAFMSHEE.
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Board of Supervisors

IR R IMIAE & R

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES

EE2

Board of Directors

SREER
Audit Department Senior Management
\ \ \ \ \
5 i = s 2N 3 =
DRZE BRI R ZE AR (Br)/ s
el N4 =
$EHAE) (¥zBitH) o L Ik i R4
Executive Office Policy Research Department Planning and Research Department (insttute) / Beasts f Rural Revitalization Department
(CPC Committee Offoe) | (CPC Commitee Pubiy Deparmeny) | novaonard DelpmentCeieror B charnen ) )
S e = ey 1T\ — 1T — 3 T =3
lsfzﬁ?l' %@ﬁﬁ jé%ﬁﬁﬂ =8 Ec10jn—0Jr-nLic Ac‘:tliEity ECLIOJrJr;c_ActiEity EcLI()JrJr;c_ActtliEity
Credit Review Department Inclusive Finance Department Department | Department I Department I
J v, J v, S
\ \ \ \ \
NP HIRED REMN LIRS NANAE k3= M S
(B ZARH) (BRBERENAE) freretny %’?ﬁ({ﬁ@% opee
Human Resources Department Office of the Steering Group for CPC Department of Party, Trade Union and Youth CDB Headauarters General Office
(CPC Committee Organization Department) Disciplinary Inspection (CPC Ethics Office) Afairs (CPC Committee United Front Department) a
J -/ J J /
EELRIEAEL Epr&rts= Al &
Housing Program Finance CDB Global Finance
/ ‘ /
\ \ \ \
AER H — 24 3 = kvl = — =¥
e s o EB B EF A fE—38 A e
T e ey A —— International Fi L‘Di o International Loan International Business International Business
9 P " emTFlc?rziagn 'Rggﬁ: Ofeﬁi):z) men Management Department Department | Department Il
/ / / / J
\ \ \ \ \
=217 KRBT LT #5247 ARE DT
Beijing Branch Tianjin Branch Hebei Branch Shanxi Branch Inner Mongolia Branch
J J J J
\ \ \ \ \
FMNT AL T TRAT BN BENT
Suzhou Branch Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
J J J J J
\ \ \ \ \
R AT I R34 RN 47 I AT BREMT
Hunan Branch Guangdong Branch Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch
J/ J/ /
\ \ \ \
BT BB TENMT FERET
Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch Tibet Branch
J J J
\ \ \ \ \ \
Fs FBREL HERREL BURAS RIS e L
Mg e B Repres‘enéatllve Office Reprgse’\;l\tatlve Office REL REL Reprgse[\tat(;ve Office
&l I4eEeety Representative Office Representative Office renac
in Rio de Janeiro in Caracas

TERRAT

Group Subsidiaries

BAERERIIEAT BEFESRHERLS EREMESROERAT

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. CDB Securities Co., Ltd. CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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I AR REEEZRS

Committee on Strategic Development
and Investment Management

FHERS
Audit Committee

NEEBEEZERS

Risk Management Committee

KERGIEHERE
Committee on Related-Party
Transaction Control

AEEFHFHERS

Committee on Human Resources

and Remuneration

BELNNE
Board of Directors Office
hIF5RHEA EEEHE H=# REED KU E TR AR
Market Development & Equity Legal and Compliance Finance & Accounting Treasury & Financial Risk Management
Investment Department Department Department Market Department Department
J J J J
ks EREEE ER = AR ERRHXED TR
] N o ’ Sz EEER
Economic Activity Loan Management Strategic Client Information Technology O o
Department IV Department Department Department P p
J J J J J
o FER o
IR IRT B LIERR (FFR M S RHERT) SR HR L
Retired Staff Department CDB Party School Procurement Center
(CDB Institute of Development Finance)
J J
E bR A 1E=3F
International Business
Department IIl
J
\ \
LT KENIT BEMRDT BRITIHIT Babi=3 N} SIARDT
Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch Heilongjiang Branch Shanghai Branch Jiangsu Branch
v
BT SIAT R 4T BEN1T AR T AL 4T
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch Henan Branch Hubei Branch
/ S
\ \ \
BRAT )l 5347 M7 =RENTT BREE T BT
Chongging Branch Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch Gansu Branch
J v
ESET 1N BT R TR R A ERALRL AR
Representative Office 1—&2&% Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
in Vientiane Representative Office in Minsk in Jakarta in Sydney in Budapest
in Astana
FIEERREESHRAT EARRESBRAT EFEMREEESERAST

China-Africa Development Fund

CDB Development Fund

CDB Infrastructure Fund Co., Ltd.
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=BT

BEIJING BRANCH

i ERMHERX EXTHAE168STHFKESE
Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

83E(Tel):(010) 63223100

1&HE(Fax):(010) 66412282

k4R (Zip): 100031

KiENT

TIANJIN BRANCH

ok KIFRH I X RKEIEIS B LR P OAE26RE
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Center A, 9 Binshui
Road, Hexi District, Tianjin

E31E(Tel):(022) 85681234

1& H(Fax):(022) 88355858

B4R (Zip):300061

LT

HEBEI BRANCH

ik AREDAERRISKE 17BE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road,
Shijiazhuang

835 (Tel):(0311) 85288100

£ H(Fax):(0311) 85288112

HR4%(Zip):050051

IEip, X5

SHANXI BRANCH

bt KRS /INVEXKIERE3275

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
8% (Tel):(0351) 4937222

£ E(Fax):(0351) 4937224

114 (Zip):030006

ARET

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

ik SRS RF XM K165

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
#3%(Tel):(0471) 3310014

f&H(Fax):(0471) 3310021

HB 4R (Zip):010098

35317

LIAONING BRANCH

ok : SERRT LT X FEAE1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
E3iE (Tel):(024) 22952975

& (Fax):(024) 22953371

#R4%(Zip): 110014

KEST

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KIEH PR ARK16-17SERERAE25E
Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

E83E (Tel):(0411) 82810918

£ E(Fax):(0411) 82633839

1R 4R (Zip): 116001

BT

JILIN BRANCH

ik KEMRHIAEE3995

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
315 (Tel):(0431) 85279600

£ (Fax):(0431) 85279700

R4 (Zip): 130022

BRTIHT

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik BRI AL X BT 882775

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
31E(Tel):(0451) 53907900

£ H (Fax):(0451) 53907808

B4R (Zip): 150028

labi=3 X

SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik B TIHRKESS

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
E33E(Tel):(021) 20266688
1&H(Fax):(021) 58883659

B4R (Zip):200120

SLAMT

JIANGSU BRANCH

bt : FR A IR PEE2325

Add: 232 Jiangdong Middle Road, Nanjing
817 (Tel):(025) 83276222

£ H (Fax):(025) 83276204
#R4%(Zip):210019

AT

SUZHOU BRANCH

ok AN Tk R X REMHET2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
#1%(Tel):(0512) 67887142

& B (Fax):(0512) 67887114

HR4%(Zip):215123

HIRT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

ik AN T F X2 B 6953145

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou

B815(Tel):(0571) 81686131

& B (Fax):(0571) 89778068

B4R (Zip):310020

TIRMT

NINGBO BRANCH

ik TR EMNX B 2ILET7S

Add: 577 Haiyan North Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
31 (Tel):(0574) 83872888

£ H (Fax):(0574) 83872100

B4R (Zip):315040

RET

ANHUI BRANCH

ok : S AT &L X ‘6995

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
3% (Tel):(0551) 62867889

£ H (Fax):(0551) 62875868

1B 4% (Zip):230071

BEST

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BN TR BREEERE127TS

Add: 127 Degui Road, Wenquan Street, Gulou District,
Fuzhou

3% (Tel):(0591) 87856844

& (Fax):(0591) 87856408

HR4%(Zip):350003

ENaST

XIAMEN BRANCH

it B H B AKX ETEI00SAWE L BNUE
ity )35-402

Add: 35/F-40/F, Fortune Center, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

3% (Tel):(0592) 2394308

£ (Fax):(0592) 2393111

114 (Zip):361001

STAST

JIANGXI BRANCH

ik B E AN K FMHRKREI100S

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honggutan District,
Nanchang

835 (Tel):(0791) 86592323

1&H(Fax):(0791) 86592333

B4R (Zip):330038

WHRS4T

SHANDONG BRANCH

ik FREH A+ 8116665 R4k Rt/ O D

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Center, 11666 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

3% (Tel):(0531) 81928100

1& H(Fax):(0531) 81928282

HR4R (Zip):250014

ERHT

QINGDAO BRANCH

it ERHARBEKISSHKBAEITE

Add: 17/F, Liantong Building, 15A Donghai West Road,
Qingdao

E31E(Tel):(0532) 81978277

1& H(Fax):(0532) 81978288

B4R (Zip):26607 1

BT

HENAN BRANCH

ik BN TH £ 7KK 2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
31 (Tel):(0371) 66000888

1& B (Fax):(0371) 66000777

1184 (Zip):450008

WAL T

HUBEI BRANCH

ok FINTH R B XAIEAE308S

Add: 308 Youyi Avenue, Wuchang District, Wuhan
833%(Tel):(027) 86759777

t£H (Fax):(027) 86759666

1R 4% (Zip): 430062

WET

HUNAN BRANCH

ik KT RORATHE ZRI18SHITRE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang Middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

31 (Tel):(0731) 84906851

£ E (Fax):(0731) 84906699

HR4%(Zip):410002

I"Re17

GUANGDONG BRANCH

sk TN R X BIHAEFEE10052—3. 16-26/2
Add: 3/F, 16/F-25/F, 100 West Huangpu Road, Tianhe
District, Guangzhou

8815 (Tel):(020) 38633017

& B (Fax):(020) 38633000

B4R (Zip):510627

RIN3T

SHENZHEN BRANCH

ok SRYI T AR X B = 182003 S ER &R AP OKES
=, 18F. 19F. 28-33%

Add: 6/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial Center,
2008 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
BiE (Tel):(0755) 25985666

1& E(Fax):(0755) 25987800

B4R (Zip):518038

AT

GUANGXI BRANCH

it BT HE R X RERE1495

Add: 149 Minzu Avenue, Qingxiu District, Nanning
E83E(Tel):(0771) 8018114

{EE (Fax):(0771) 5527233

R 4R (Zip):530028

BEST

HAINAN BRANCH

ik BOTHERRKIGHEF1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
31 (Tel):(0898) 68551901

1% H(Fax):(0898) 68551933

B4R (Zip):570311
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BRAMT

CHONGQING BRANCH

ik ERTIIR ERE1S

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongaging
815 (Tel):(023) 67858000

& & (Fax):(023) 67858114

B4R (Zip):400023

)53 47

SICHUAN BRANCH

ik RET S X X FEEE120SERF R BITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

81 (Tel):(028) 86029998

& H(Fax):(028) 86029617

B4R (Zip):610041

"MST

GUIZHOU BRANCH

ik : REATH R K66 S LB HLRE#10-212
Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan West
Road, Guiyang

835 (Tel):(0851) 88651588

1& H(Fax):(0851) 88651605

B4R (Zip):550003

LRSI

YUNNAN BRANCH

ik RAAT BIK1765

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
81 (Tel):(0871) 63634094
1&H(Fax):(0871) 63634001

1R 4%(Zip):650228

BREE T

SHAANXI BRANCH

ik AR T e —EK2SERARRTRE

Add: China Development Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
Oneg, Xi'an

#33%(Tel):(029) 87660578

£ E (Fax):(029) 87660581

1R 4%(Zip): 710075

HR2T

GANSU BRANCH

ik ZNHREE17285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
E81E(Tel):(0931) 8866628

£ E (Fax):(0931) 8866237

1R 4%(Zip): 730030

WEMT

XINJIANG BRANCH

it BEARFH LIS ERARRITRE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumai
31 (Tel):(0991) 2335001

£ & (Fax):(0991) 2335002

HR 4R (Zip):830002

58017

QINGHAI BRANCH
it ATHREK2S
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
E81E(Tel):(0971) 6161990
f£ B (Fax):(0971) 6161990
114 (Zip):810001

TEMT

NINGXIA BRANCH

ik SRITEREFREILEHTS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
E81E(Tel):(0951) 5695900

&£ H(Fax):(0951) 5695813

B4R (Zip): 750004

BT

TIBET BRANCH

ok FIEET )\ — R 285 A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
81 (Tel):(0891) 6623869

&£ H(Fax):(0891) 6623818

B4R (Zip):850000

BEBNT

HONG KONG BRANCH

ik FERIEEE SERS AP O—EI33%

Add: 33/F One International Finance Center, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

81 (Tel):(00852) 28016218

£ H(Fax):(00852) 25304083

FEHRERL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

bk B FF 2 BRNEER 186418 (A )1, 285t
Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,
Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

3%(Tel):(002-02) 27507406

EHrRMLRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW
otk T AR EIR T E RIS X AEH1S
Add: 1 Novatorov St., Moscow, Russian Federation
#33%(Tel):(007-495) 9894612

BYHRRARRLE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE
JANEIRO

i EFELRN AT ROX RIS RAREHIS5S10E
Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central District,
Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

81E(Tel):(0055-21) 981796921

RIANErAR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik EARRINAINE TR SBEEPERIREM
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela

eBRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
ik EECH DR E D IEH60S

Add: 60 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7BB, UK
81 (Tel): (0044)2079338702

GEG e

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
Mk ZERARHREEGEFLKX

Add: Saysettha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital of
Lao PDR.

317 (Tel):(00856)-20-56791136

P HTIE AR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA
ik - BBEE R ATNE R AR N T S HTR R AHT165 218
Add: 21/F, 16 Dostyk Street, Astana, Kazakhstan
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AR R AC R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
ik B S T R IR R REAHTT0S
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus
815 (Tel):(00375) 444559461

AL FRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

ik EDEE R PR WHEANIA K o T H Sopo Del K BARE22 2
Add: 22/F, Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

81 (Tel):(0062) 02150806518

ERARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

otk SRAF LR EUR ENB R IER E S ERE49E
Add: 49/F, Governor Phillip Tower, 1 Farrer Place,
Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia

335 (Tel):(0061) 421838660

kAR RL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN BUDAPEST
ik : 69 5F R AR B B I57S

Add: 1054 Budapest, Szabadsag tér 7.
E31%(Tel):(0036) 707429425

EFERARIIASE

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

ik ERHAEBX ERAAT IS EREHOCEIR
Add: 9/F, Block C, Financial Street Center, No.B9,
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

B335 (Tel):(010) 88308477

B4R (Zip): 100033

EFESR B BRAS

CCDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

otk AE R A X BRI A#1295

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
335 (Tel):(010) 88300999

B4R (Zip): 100037

ERERASRBERAST

CDB FINANCIAL LEASING CO., LTD.

ok RYIH A X BEP=K2003SEREM P OKRE
2. 7. 817, 21-27. 34FR

Add: 2/F, 7/F, 8/F, 21/F-27/F, 34/F, CDB Financial Center,
20083 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
81 (Tel):(0755) 23980999

£ B (Fax):(0755) 23980900

1R 4%(Zip):518038

FIERREEHRAE

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

Mok ERHAEBX EXTINAE28 SR M R R OR
BE10-118B

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Center, 28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
335 (Tel):(010) 59892900

1&H(Fax):(010) 59566969

B4R (Zip): 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of China Development Bank

(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)
2023-ZAB009

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 134 to 191, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts;
. Consolidation of structured entities.
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Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s gross carrying amount of loans and
advances to customers at amortized cost recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position amounted to RMB14,470.21 billion with a credit loss allowance
of RMB619.20 billion. The total exposure of loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts was RMB3,728.85 billion, for which a provision of RMB23.36
billion was recognized. The credit impairment losses on loans and advances to
customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
recognized in the Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to RMB110.45 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, as of 31 December 2022 represented management’s best estimate of
expected credit losses (“ECL") at that date under International Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments.

Management assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applied a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their ECL. Management assessed the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information and using the risk
parameter model that incorporates key parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default and discount rates.

The measurement models for ECL involved significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk characteristics,
selection of appropriate model and determination of relevant key measurement
parameters;

(2) Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”),
default or credit-impaired;

(8) Adoption of economic indicators, economic scenarios and their weights for
forward-looking measurement;

(4) The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established governance process and controls over the measurement of
ECL.

The Group developed complex models, employed numerous parameters and
data inputs, and applied significant management judgments and assumptions
in measuring the ECL, and the amounts of ECL and provisions estimated are
significant. These reasons resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit
matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(13)(f), Note 4(1), Note 14, Note 21,
Note 36 and Note 50(2) to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the measurement of ECL for the loans and
advances, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which comprised:

(1) Internal controls over ECL models, including the selection, approval and
application of methodologies of models, and the ongoing monitoring and
optimization of such models;

(2) Internal controls related to the review and approval of the portfolio
segmentation, model selections, parameters determination, the criteria for
SICR, the definition of default and credit-impaired, the use of forward-looking
scenarios and the judgement of risks from major uncertainties;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs used by
the models;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows and calculations of
present values of such cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL measurement.
The substantive procedures we performed include:

(1) We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed the
reasonableness of the portfolio segmentation, model selection, key
parameters estimation, significant judgements and assumptions in relation
to the models. We examined the ECL calculation on a sample basis, to
validate whether or not the ECL calculation reflect management’s modelling
methodologies.

(2) We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-financial
information, relevant external evidence and other factors of the borrowers, to
assess the appropriateness of management’s identification of SICR, defaults
and credit-impaired loans.

(8) For forward-looking measurement, we reviewed the basis management used
for determining the economic indicators, number of scenarios and relative
weightings, assessed the reasonableness of forecasted economic indicators,
economic scenarios and relevant weightings.

(4) We examined key data inputs to the ECL models for selected samples,
including historical data and data at the measurement date, to assess their
accuracy and completeness. We also tested the major data transfers between
the ECL calculation engines and relevant information systems, to verify their
accuracy and completeness.

(5) For loans and advances to customers in Stage 3, we tested on a sample
basis on the credit loss allowance computed by management based on
estimated future cash flows and discount rates with reference to financial
information of borrowers and guarantors, the latest collateral valuations, and
other information including forward-looking factors, etc.

Consolidation of structured entities

Structured entities primarily included asset-backed securities, assets management
plans and funds, etc., that were issued, initiated, managed and invested by the
Group. As at 31 December 2022, total assets of the consolidated structured
entities and unconsolidated structured entities, issued, initiated and managed by
the Group, amounted to RMB14.60 billion and RMB162.67 billion, respectively.
In addition, as at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of unconsolidated
structured entities invested by the Group which were issued, initiated and managed
by other institutions included in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB20.04 billion.

The Group evaluated the following aspects to determine whether the above

structured entities need to be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements:

. its power over these structured entities;

. its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these structured
entities;

. its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from
these structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by management in assessing whether the
Group had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such
structured entities resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(4), Note 4(2) and Note 45 to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

For different types of structured entities, we performed the following tests:

(1) Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the Group's assessment on whether it
controls a structured entity;

(2) Assessed the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group’s power over the structured
entities through review of related contracts and agreements;

(8) Performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service provider,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support
provided to the structured entities;

(4) Assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of decision-making authority of the structured entities,
the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its role as the assets
manager or service provider, the Group's exposure to variability of returns
from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by other
parties in the structured entities.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Group's 2022 Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zhu Jiandi.

BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

27 April 2023

.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 7 633,280 601,133
Interest expense 7 (462,970) (457,501)
Net interest income 7 170,310 143,632
Fee and commission income 8 2,410 2,373
Fee and commission expense 8 (906) (930)
Net fee and commission income 8 1,504 1,443
Net trading and foreign exchange gain 9 40,920 23,750
Net gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost 32 102
Dividend income 10 11,382 10,953
Net gain/(loss) on investment securities 1 159 (445)
Other income, net 12 8,437 7,880
Operating income 232,744 187,315
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 345 650
Operating expenses 13 (17,485) (17,172)
Credit impairment losses 14 (115,426) (76,642)
Other impairment losses on assets (3,031) (1,069)
Profit before income tax 97,147 93,082
Income tax expense 15 (12,807) (12,288)
Profit for the year 84,340 80,794

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 82,728 78,960
Non-controlling interests 1,612 1,834
84,340 80,794

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Profit for the year 84,340 80,794

Other comprehensive income:

Iltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation 22 116
Net (loss)/gain on investments in equity instruments through
o (116) 881
other comprehensive income
Subtotal (94) 997

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 4,509 (1,445)
Net (loss)/gain of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (2,492) 2,144
Others 1,384 879
Subtotal 3,401 1,578
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,307 2,575
Total comprehensive income for the year 87,647 83,369

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 85,120 81,384
Non-controlling interests 2,527 1,985
Total 87,647 83,369

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 113,860 92,565
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 113,326 195,044
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18 471,537 371,086
Derivative financial assets 19 11,093 16,978
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 404,823 495,214
Loans and advances to customers 21 13,899,107 12,791,666

Financial Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 931,128 1,005,966
Debt instruments at amortized cost 23 935,357 1,146,917
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24 1,027,853 772,622
Investments in associates and joint ventures 25 458 443
Property and equipment 26 123,008 109,531
Deferred tax assets 27 174,366 138,127
Other assets 28 37,167 31,782
Total assets 18,243,083 17,167,941
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 2,536,074 2,395,514
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 572,862 448,961
Placements from banks 31 38,869 69,680
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 32 2,495 2,085
Derivative financial liabilities 19 18,351 9,359
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 15,392 21,205
Due to customers 34 1,167,724 1,079,196
Debt securities issued 35 12,125,956 11,480,377
Current tax liabilities 43,434 17,445
Deferred tax liabilities 27 8,136 8,274
Other liabilities 36 108,209 97,565

Total liabilities 16,637,502 15,629,661
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 182,650 182,650
Investment revaluation reserve 39 (14,624) (11,547)
Surplus reserve 40 214,825 201,134
General reserve 40 260,425 258,519
Currency translation reserve 1,128 (3,076)
Other reserve 41 398 (365)
Retained earnings 42 513,776 465,883
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,579,826 1,514,446
Non-controlling interests 43 25,755 23,834

Total equity 1,605,581 1,538,280

Total liabilities and equity 18,243,083 17,167,941

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:

Executive Vice President,

in charge of the finance function Head of Finance

Chairman President
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 97,147 93,082

Cash flows from operating activities

Adjustments:

Impairment losses on assets 118,457 77,711
Depreciation and amortization 7,432 6,218
Interest expense for debt securities issued 376,594 365,994
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 11,915 8,865
Interest income for investment securities (60,841) (57,881)
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers (848) (643)
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 14,184 (18,228)
Net (loss)/gain on investment securities (1,204) 343
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment, intangible assets and (595) (804)
other long-term assets
Net foreign exchange loss (50,158) 31,037
Share of profit of associate and joint ventures (345) (650)
Dividend income (129) (68)
Subtotal 511,609 504,976
Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Ne;t(;grc;?na::czgl ki):;r;;:ﬁsnvsvith central banks and deposits with banks and 39,773 161,883
Net decrease/(increase) in financial assets held under resale agreements 6,879 (535)
Net decrease in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 65,998 26,301
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (1,118,929) (448,448)
Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions (86,772) (55,071)
Net decrease in other operating assets 136,176 45,847
Net incre_ase/(@ec.rea.se)l in due to customers and deposits from banks and 212,623 (563.183)
other financial institutions
Net (decrease)/increase in placements from banks (27,393) 6,779
Net decrease in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (5,821) (103,435)
Net decrease in other operating liabilities (44,888) (2,630)
Subtotal (822,354) (932,492)
Income tax paid (23,749) (8,993)

Net cash outflows from operating activities (334,494) (436,509)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Notes 2021

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal/redemption of debt instruments at amortized cost and

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,005,027 1147.849
Cash received from returns on investment securities 65,374 61,632
Cash received from other investing activities 6,416 6,685
Cash received from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates 280 -
Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment, intangible assets and (14.974) (25.247)

other long-term assets
Cagh pavid for purchasg of debt instruments at amortized .cos.t and (1,042,373) (1,129.687)

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Net cash inflows from investing activities 19,750 61,232
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debt securities issued 2,631,402 2,640,976
Cash received from borrowings from governments and other institutions 72,297 54,025
Cash received/(paid for) from other financing activities 533 (3,328)
Transactions with non-controlling interests (437) 341
Cash paiq for repayments of debt securitie§ iss.ue‘d and (2,098,725) (2,023.570)
borrowings from governments and other institutions
Cash payment for interest on debt securitie§ isgugd and (373,420) (367,453)
borrowings from governments and other institutions
Dividends paid (19,740) (22,707)
Other cash received related to financing activities (1,998) -
Net cash inflows from financing activities 209,912 278,284
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 14,834 (5,632)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (89,998) (102,625)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 756,381 859,006
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 44 666,383 756,381
Net cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 560,348 543,442
Interest paid (74,163) (84,957)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State Council
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), China Development Bank was
converted into a joint stock corporation on 11 December 2008, established
jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the "MOF") and Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Huijin™), and renamed as China Development Bank Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission (the former “China Banking Regulatory Commission,
CBRC” and “China Insurance Regulatory Commission, CIRC”, the “CBIRC")
and after completing the review by and registration of corporate changes with
the State Administration of Business and Commerce, China Development
Bank Corporation changed its name to China Development Bank, and
changed its form of organization from a joint stock corporation to a limited
liability company. After these changes, the Bank operates under business
license No. 911100000000184548 issued by Beijing Administration of
Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and financial institution license No.
GO001H111000001 issued by the CBIRC on 13 June 2017. The registration of
corporate changes does not affect the rights and obligations of the Bank. After
the changes, the Bank assumes all the assets, creditor’'s rights, debts and
businesses of the former China Development Bank Corporation

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align
their business focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic
development strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank
for medium and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so
as to raise and channel economic resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic
industries, pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional
development;

- Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation
and upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student
loans, and inclusive finance;

- National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture,
and people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative,
industrial capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure
connectivity, energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going
Global”;

- Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic and
financial reforms; and

- Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development
strategies and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries
registered in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”.
Branches and subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are
referred to as the “Overseas Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2022 relevant to and adopted by the Group
The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2022:

(1 Amendments to IAS 16
(2)  Amendments to IAS 37
(8)  Amendments to IFRS 3

@ Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle (issued
in May 2020)

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Business Combination

(1) Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

IAS 16 Amendments prohibit entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds of the sale of items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.

(2) Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

IAS 37 Amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous. The amendments apply a “directly related
cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly
related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract.

(3) Amendments to IFRS 3: Business Combination

The amendments have updated IFRS 3 Business combinations to refer to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, in order to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability in a business combination. In addition, the Board added a new exception in IFRS 3 for liabilities and contingent liabilities. The
amendments also confirm that contingent assets should not be recognized at the acquisition date.

(4) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2021 Cycle
The 2018-2021 cycle of annual improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9
Financial Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the illustrative examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the operating results, financial position and comprehensive income of the
Group.

.
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2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

effective dates in 2022

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(1) Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS

Practice Statement 2

(8)  Amendments to IAS 8

(4)  Amendments to IAS 12 ; )
single transaction

(5) IFRS 17 and Amendments Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2023
1 January 2023
1 January 2023
1 January 2023

1 January 2023

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

(6)  Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture

(1) Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

IAS 1 Amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments clarify what is meant by a
right to defer settlement that a right to defer must exist at the end of the
reporting period, classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity
will exercise its deferral right, and only if an embedded derivative in a
convertible liability is separately an equity instrument, would the terms of a
liability not impact its classification.

(2) Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure
of Accounting Policies

The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 change
the disclosure requirements with respect to accounting policies

Effective date has been deferred indefinitely

(6) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognized in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations will
have no material impact on the financial statements.

from “significant accounting policies” to “material accounting policy 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Information”. The amendments provide guidance on when accounting

policy information is likely to be considered material. The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
. i i consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have

(8) Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

IAS 8 Amendments added the definition of accounting estimates in I1AS stated.

8. The amendments also clarified that the effects of a change in an input i .

or measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates, unless (1) Accounting period

resulting from correction of prior period errors.

(4) Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

The amendments clarify whether the initial recognition exemption
applies to certain transactions that result in both an asset and a liability
being recognized simultaneously (e.g. a lease in the scope of IFRS 16
Lease). The amendments introduce an additional criterion for the initial
recognition exemption under IAS 12.15, whereby the exemption does not
apply to the initial recognition of an asset or liability which at the time
of the transaction, gives rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

(5) IFRS 17 and Amendments: Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 17 amendments replaced IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts. The standard provides a general model for insurance
contracts and two additional approaches: the variable fee approach and
the premium allocation approach. IFRS 17 and amendments cover the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts and apply to all types of insurance contracts.

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or
in some circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to
liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.



(4) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and entities (including subsidiaries and structured entities)
controlled by the Bank and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date
the Bank gain control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the
subsidiary. The Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including
those controlled through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gain on transactions
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized loss is also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred assets.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to the equity holders of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e., recognized in the consolidated income statement). When
the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.
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(5) Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which the investment is acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of
loss of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
loss. Additional loss is recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or former joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or the joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest in the associate
or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or the joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or the joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income by that associate or
the joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued, excepted for equity instrument designated as fair
value through other comprehensive.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and loss resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

.
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(6) Revenue recognition

~

-~

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

(a) Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI") financial assets, the
Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead
of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected
credit loss in estimated future cash flows.

- Financial assets that are not ‘POCI" but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3'), for which interest revenue is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e., net
of the expected credit loss provision).

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset (i.e., its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortized cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider
ECL and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and
points paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate.

(b) Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognized when the service is provided.

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for
those designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are
recognized within “Interest expense” in the consolidated income statement
using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (“RMB”).
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's Overseas
Operations are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The presentation currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") are analyzed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes
in the carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the
amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost
in foreign currencies are translated using the foreign exchange rates at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as FVTOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

-

(c) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position; except the retained earnings, other
items in equity holders' equity are translated at the rate prevailing at
the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when the items occurred; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Taxation
Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax.

(a) Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the
consolidated income statement because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

(10) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits
include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.



(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the
Group recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those
services as a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Short-term employee
benefits include salaries, bonuses, staff welfare, medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well
as labor union fees and staff education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for
basic pensions and unemployment insurance related to government
mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. The group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period in which
the related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches
(“Domestic Institutions”) participate in an annuity scheme established by
the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions with
reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in
the consolidated income statement when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011.
The entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such
as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the
present value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of
early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance
with termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is
recognized for the early retirement benefit payments from the date
of early retirement to the normal retirement date when the criteria for
recognition as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in
the consolidated income statement. Differences arising from changes
in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are
recognized in the consolidated income statement when incurred.

(11) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets,
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market) at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted
market prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted
cash flow analysis, option pricing model and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants.
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For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

(13) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

(i)  Amortized cost ("AC”). Financial assets at amortized cost primarily
include balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances to customers at amortized cost, debt instruments at
amortized cost and other receivables.

(i) FVTOCI. Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income include debt securities, and equity
instruments designated as fair value through other comprehensive
income which are not held for trading purpose.

(i

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’). Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss primarily include held-for-trading
financial assets, derivative financial assets, loan and advances
to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss, equity
instruments other than designated at FVTOCI, debt investments that
do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI.

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order
to generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely
to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of
assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g., financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of other
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group
in determining the business model for a group of assets include past
experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated.

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses
whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”). In making this assessment, the Group
will assess the contractual terms of the financial assets which may lead
to changes in the timing distribution or amount of the contract cash
flows and determine if the requirements of the above contract cash flow
characteristics are met. If the contract terms do not meet the requirements
of the above contract cash flow characteristics, the related financial assets
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity
instruments are described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer’s perspective (including special financial
instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability but are classified
as equity instruments), such as government and corporate bonds.
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one
of the following three measurement categories:

(i) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost.
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(i) FVTOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured
at FVTOCI.

(i) FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if
doing so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets
and liabilities being measured on different bases.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer’s Perspective (excluding special financial instruments that meet
the definition of a financial liability but are classified as equity instruments);
that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and
that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’'s net assets. Examples of
equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL,
except where the Group's management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVTOCI. The Group
designates the non-trading equity instruments that are expected to be
held for a long time for the purpose of long-term strategic corporation as
FVTOCI.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial
assets, it shall reclassify all affected financial assets, and apply the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group
does not restate any previously recognized gain, loss (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest. Reclassification date is the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that results in the Group reclassifying financial assets.

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cost, and measured at FVTPL. The FVTPL is applied to derivatives,
financial liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities designated
as such at initial recognition.

(d) Initial recognition and measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial
liability as measured at FVTPL: (i) it eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch); (i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets
and financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the entity’s key management personnel.

For the financial liabilities recognized due to the transfer of financial assets
does not meet the conditions for termination of recognition, the Group
retains to recognize the transferred financial assets and recognizes the
received consideration as a financial liability. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership and the
Group retains the control over the transferred financial asset, the financial
assets and relevant liabilities shall be recognized to the extent of the its
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(e) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on the
categories:

Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition: (i) minus the principal

repayments; (ii) plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount; (iii) for financial assets, adjusted for any credit
loss allowance. Interest income and interest expense from these financial
assets is included in “Interest income” and “Interest expense” using the
effective interest rate method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities,
periodic re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market
rates of interest alters the effective interest rate. If a floating-rate financial
asset or a floating-rate financial liability is recognized initially at an amount
equal to the principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the
future interest payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying
amount of the asset or the liability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, it shall
recalculate the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability
as the present value of the revised estimated future cash flows, and the
carrying amount discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
adjustment is recognized in profit or loss as income or expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gain or loss, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gain and loss on the instrument’'s amortized cost which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
“interest income” using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than
to generate investment returns are designated as FVTOCI. When this
election is used, fair value gain and loss is recognized in OCI and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established, and it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group, and the amounts of the dividends can
be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss and presented in the income statement within
“Net trading and foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or
which are not held for trading, in which case they are presented separated
in “Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.

Equity instruments

Gain and loss on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the “Net
trading and foreign exchange gain” in the income statement of.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk)
and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair
value of the liability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gain or loss
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss. The gain and loss from financial liabilities including the
effects of credit risk variance should be recognized in current profit and
loss by the Group.

When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to retained earnings.



(f) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with
its debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI and with
exposure arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i)  the time value of money; and

(iii) reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For financial instruments whose credit loss allowance are measured using
the ECL model, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their credit loss and recognize their ECL,
as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the financial asset is included in Stage 1 and have its ECL
measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial instrument
for the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial
recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 2 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

Stage 3: If the financial instruments is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 3 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI. The credit impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss, and it should not be presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a reduction of the carrying amount of the
financial asset.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial
instrument other than POCI at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the credit risk on the financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition is no longer met, the Group
measures the credit loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit loss at the current reporting date and the amount of
expected credit loss reversal is recognized in profit or loss. For POCI,
at the reporting date, the Group only recognize the cumulative changes
in lifetime expected credit loss since initial recognition as credit loss
allowance for POCI financial assets.

The Group will write off a financial asset when reasonably expects that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery of the financial assets after the
Group has completed all necessary measures and legal procedures. If in a
subsequent period the loan written off is recovered, the amount recovered
will be recognized in profit or loss through impairment losses.

(9) Contractual modification

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original
terms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for credit loss
allowance calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being
unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying
amount are also recognized as gain or loss on derecognition of debt
instrument at amortized cost.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset
and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for POCI financial assets).
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(h) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in
profit or loss.

Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities ("ABS”) to investors.
The Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these
ABS. As the asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services
including collecting payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining
account records related to the assets pool, providing service reports and
other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly
be used for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche
ABS, and then to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group
derecognizes or partially derecognizes the transferred financial assets
according to the extent of transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred financial assets.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

(j) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a current
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group
has an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. Otherwise, financial assets and financial
liabilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortization of guarantee fees, and the expected credit loss
provision required to settle the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated income statement.

A loan commitment is a definite commitment provided by the Group
to a customer to grant a loan to the customer on agreed contractual
terms during the commitment period. The credit loss allowance of loan
commitments provided by the Group is measured by ECL. The Group has
not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest
rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another
financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the credit
loss allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot
separately identify the expected credit loss on the undrawn commitment
component from those on the loan component, the expected credit loss
on the undrawn commitment are recognized together with the credit loss
allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit
loss exceeds the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit
loss is recognized as a provision.

.
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(14)Financial assets held under resale agreements and

financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined
price at a future date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements are transactions where the Group sells
financial assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a
future date under repurchase agreements.

Both financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements of the Group are in the form of
pledged repo. The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts
held under resale or sold under repurchase agreements in the statement
of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are not
recognized. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be
recognized in the statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that
between the sale and repurchase consideration, is amortized over the
period of the respective transaction using the effective interest method
and is included in interest income and interest expenses respectively.

(15) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Except the derivative which are
designated and qualified as a hedging instruments, the resulting gain or
loss in derivative is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contract which contains a host that is
a non-financial asset, are treated as separate derivatives when their
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the hybrid
contracts and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are separately accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group
choose to designate the hybrid contract at fair value through profit or loss.

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting
to account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria.
The Group's hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow
hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as
its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

(a) Fair value hedge

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or
unrecognized firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and
could affect the Group’s profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of the
derivatives, which are hedged for the risk exposure from fair value change
of non-trading equity investment designated as at FVTOCI, are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used is amortized to profit or loss over the period to
maturity. If the hedged item is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying
value adjustment is recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedge

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group’s exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or
unrecognized firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and
could affect the Group’s profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in profit or loss in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognized
hedged item. If the cumulative amount in the cash flow hedge reserve
which recognized in other comprehensive income is a loss, and all or part
of the loss is expected to be irreparable in the future accounting period,
the Group shall reclassified the expected irreparable part from other
comprehensive income to profit and loss in the same period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

- When the hedged cash flow affects profit or loss, the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognized directly in other comprehensive
income is recycled in the corresponding income or expense line of
the income statement. When the hedging relationship ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria after taking into account any rebalancing of the
hedging relationship, including the hedging instrument has expired
or has been sold, terminated or exercised, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in other comprehensive income at that time remains in
other comprehensive income until the hedged forecast transaction
ultimately occurs.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred immediately to profit
or loss.

(16) Equity instruments issued by the Group

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of
proceeds received, net of transaction cost.

The distribution to the holders of equity instruments is recognized as profit
distribution.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group's property and equipment comprise buildings, office and
machinery equipment, motor vehicles and vessels, aircrafts and
construction in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount
or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office and machinery equipment 3-25 years 0%-5% 3.80%-33.33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircrafts 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gain and loss on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in profit or

loss.



(18) Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value of assets not
retained plus related costs, and subsequently measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each
reporting period. When the fair value, less costs to sell, is lower than a
foreclosed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which the item is
disposed.

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means. In
principle, foreclosed assets should not be transferred for own use,
but, in the event that they are needed for the Group’s own business or
management purposes, they are transferred at their net carrying amounts
and managed as newly acquired property and equipment.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred for the investment property are
included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation is
recognized the same way as property and equipment and land use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged,
the Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the
carrying amount and related expenses, in profit or loss.

(20) Leases

(a) Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time, the Group assesses whether, throughout the period of use, customer
has both of the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

(b) As Lessee
Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease, for example, adding or terminating the right to use
one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the contractual
lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

(i)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
to use one or more underlying assets; and

(i) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
at the effective date of the lease modification the Group remeasures the
lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate. The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate
implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the
interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

(i)  decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that
decrease the scope or term of the lease, and recognising the gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or
loss; or
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(i) making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all
other lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the
lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contains any
purchase option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of
the individual underlying asset is not more than RMB50,000 when it is new
as a lease of low-value assets. The Group chooses not to recognize the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, and the rental expenses are recognized as “Operating
expenses” in the income statement on a straight-line basis over each
period of the lease term.

(c) As Lessor

At the inception date, a lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes finance
lease receivable and derecognizes the assets under finance leases. The
Group presents lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment
in the lease for the initial measurement. The net investment in the lease is
the present value of the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the
unreceived lease payments receivable at the commencement date, which
is discounted by the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Group calculates and recognizes the interest income in each period
during the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and
recognizes such interest income in profit or loss.

(d) Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

If the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to
calculate the present value of lease payment. The economic circumstance
and the observable interest rate set the foundation for each institution of
the Group in determining the incremental borrowing rate. On this basis,
the applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the
adjustment of the reference interest rate, which is determined according to
the situation of the institution and the underlying asset, the lease term, the
amount of lease liability and other specific conditions of the lease.

(e) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly include buildings, vehicles
and other right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes a
right-of-use asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of
the lease less any lease incentives received;

(iii)y any initial direct costs incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
subsequently by the Group. If the Group is reasonably certain that the
ownership of the underlying asset will be transferred to the Group at
the end of the lease term, the Group depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the asset. Otherwise,
the Group depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or the end of the lease
term.

The Group remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of
the changed lease payments and adjusts the carrying amounts of
the right-of-use assets accordingly. When the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction in
the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognizes the remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

.
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(f) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The lease payments need to be discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate of lessee as the discount rate. The Group
calculates the interest expenses of lease liabilities in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognizes
such interest expenses in profit or loss. Variable lease payments that are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i)
there is a change in the in-substance fixed payments; (ii) there is a change
in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;
(iii) there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or a rate used to determine those payments; or (iv) there is a
change in the assessments of options to purchase the underlying asset,
extend or terminate the lease, or the circumstances of the actual exercise
of these options.

(21) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other
intangible assets. Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
which generally range from 1 to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group
has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment loss and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.
Cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit,
and then to the other assets of the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata
basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

financial instruments and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as
a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by those charged with governance.

(25) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows

(26) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies,
other institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for
its services provided under the custody agreements and does not have
any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets under
custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not recognized in the
Group'’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers.
Under the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants
loans to borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans.
The Group is responsible for the arrangement and collection of the
entrusted loans and receives a commission for the services rendered.
As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds,
they are not recognized as assets or liabilities of the Group.

(27) Contingent liabilities

-

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognized, but
disclosed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and
other relevant factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations
for future events

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty
that the management has made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the next
twelve months.

Measurement of credit impairment losses

For financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial guarantee
contracts and loan commitments, the Group assesses the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information.

Expected credit losses refer to the weighted average of the credit loss
of financial instruments weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss refers
to the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under
the contract and all expected cash flows discounted by the Group at
the original effective interest rate, that is, the present value of total cash
shortage. Among them, POCI financial assets should be discounted at the
credit-adjusted actual interest rate of the financial assets.
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The ECL model involves periodic review of key definitions, parameters,
and assumptions, such as estimates of future macroeconomic conditions
and the borrower’s credit behavior (e.g., the possibility of customer default
and corresponding loss). A number of significant judgements are required
in applying the accounting requirements for measuring expected credit
losses, such as:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Criteria for determining whether there was a significant increase in
credit risk, or a default or impairment loss was incurred as well as
definition of default and credit impairment;

- Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and weightings;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used
in measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 50(2) Credit risk.

Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured
entities, the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group
controls and should consolidate these structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual
rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates
the Group’s power over the structured entities, performs analysis and
tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, including but not
limited to commission income and asset management fees earned as the
asset manager or service provider, the retention of residual income, and, if
any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured entities. The
Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent through
analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the structured
entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for its role as asset
manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns
from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset
value, comparable companies approach, and other valuation techniques
commonly adopted by market participants. To the extent practical, the
Group uses only observable market data, however areas such as credit
risk of the Group and the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital,
perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity
to comparable companies and their performance indicators may not
be observable and require management to make estimates and apply
judgements. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In the normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets
through various types of transactions including, among others, regular way
sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing
whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or
partial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured
entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine
whether the Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.
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The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection
with such transfers to determine:

- whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash
flows from the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass
through” of those cash flows to independent third parties.

- the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets are transferred.

- Where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially
all of the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the
Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over these
financial assets and if the Group has continuing involvement in these
transferred financial assets.

Income Tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
effect is uncertain. The Group makes estimates and judgement for
items of uncertainty, taking into account existing taxation legislation and
past practice of relevant tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax in the period in which such a
determination is made.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets. If any
such indication exists, an impairment loss is provided.

In assessing the present value of goodwill generated from the acquisition
of subsidiaries, the Group estimates the present value of future cash flows
at appropriate discount discounting rates. In assessing the present value
of future cash flows of subsidiaries, significant judgements are exercised
over the related income, operating expenses and discounting rate to
calculate the present value.

TAXATION

The Group’s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Corporate income tax

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group in Mainland China
is 256%. Taxation on overseas institutions is charged at the relevant local
rates. The pre-tax deduction of corporate income tax shall be implemented
in accordance with relevant state regulations.

Value added tax (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit
business, fee income on financial services and income from trading of
financial products at 6%.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for
Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other
Services” (Cai Shui [2016] No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding
Issues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management
Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No.2) and “Circular on the Relevant Issues
concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Asset Management Products” (Cai
Shui [2017] No. 56), managers of asset management products shall pay
VAT at 3% for taxable activities undertaken after 1 January 2018.

City construction tax
City construction tax is calculated as 1% to 7% of VAT.

Education surcharge
Education surcharge is calculated as 3% to 5% of VAT.

.
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6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2022 were as follows:

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB81,967 100% directly held Equity investment
CDB Development Fund Mainland China RMBS0,000  100% directly helg \oT-Securities investment & investment

management and advisory
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB32,548  84.99% indirectly held Fund investment & management
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB12,642 64.40% directly held Leasing
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding
CDB Infrastructure Fund Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB30,000 100% directly held Non-seourities investment & investment

management and advisory

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries,
and there was no restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities. And CDB Infrastructure Fund Co., Ltd., a new wholly-owned
subsidiary, was established on 21 July 2022.

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 553,119 524,409
Debt investment securities (a) 60,841 57,881
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 17,185 13,124
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 2,134 5,716
Others 1 3
Subtotal 633,280 601,133

Interest expense

Debt securities issued (376,594) (365,994)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (65,531) (74,296)
Due to customers (7,804) (7,335)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (11,915) (8,865)
Others (1,126) (1,011)
Subtotal (462,970) (457,501)
Net interest income 170,310 143,632

(a) Interest income of debt investment securities includes interest income of debt instruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 906 1,225
Loan arrangement fee 280 330
Credit commitment fee 83 70
Consultancy and advisory fee 585 91
Brokerage fee 1 2
Others 605 655
Subtotal 2,410 2,373
Fee and commission expense (906) (930)

Net fee and commission income 1,504 1,443
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9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 53,629 (9,760)
Net (loss)/gain on trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss (2,564) 33,881
Net loss on foreign exchange derivatives (9,795) (471)
Net (loss)/gains on interest rate derivatives gain on interest rate derivatives (250) 100
Total 40,920 23,750

10.DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 11,253 10,885
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated) 129 68
Total 11,382 10,953

11.NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 159 (445)

12.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 7,230 7,349
Others 1,207 531
Total 8,437 7,880

13.OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Staff costs 7,974 7,593
Taxes and surcharges 4.421 4,335
General operating and administrative expenses 2,918 3,343
Depreciation and amortization 2,172 1,901
Total 17,485 17,172

14.CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 104,284 74,024
Debt instruments at amortized cost 4,424 (444)
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 300 351
Loan commitments 6,172 1,486
Financial guarantee contracts (4) 3)
Others 250 1,228
Total 115,426 76,642

15.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current tax 49,590 23,516
Deferred tax (Note 27) (36,783) (11,228)
Total 12,807 12,288

-
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The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 97,147 93,082
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 24,287 23,270
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries 27 (550)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (12,632) (11,596)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 544 17
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 581 1,147
Income tax expense 12,807 12,288

16.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 3 3
Balances with central banks 113,857 92,562
Total 113,860 92,565

17.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 60,318 109,191
Other domestic financial institutions 13,417 12,480
Overseas banks 39,455 73,088
Other overseas financial institutions 56 -
Subtotal 113,246 194,759
Accrued interests 80 294
Total 113,326 195,053
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 - (9)
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 113,326 195,044

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB18,270 million (31 December 2021:
RMB18,795 million), which were mainly security deposits pledge with clearing houses.

18.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 371,284 294,833
Other domestic financial institutions 14,001 -
Overseas banks 85,537 75,828
Subtotal 470,822 370,661
Accrued interests 772 585
Total 471,594 371,246
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (52) (131)
- Stage 2 (6) (29)

Placements with banks and other financial institutions, net 471,537 371,086

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore,
do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable or unfavorable as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly.
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The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments outstanding
at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2022

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 687,294 7,667 (15,376)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 3,607 23 (4)
Subtotal 7,690 (15,380)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 420,050 3,403 (2,971)

Interest rate options 6,011 - -
Subtotal 3,403 (2,971)
Total 11,093 (18,351)

31 December 2021

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 686,502 9,561 (2,820)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 3,632 48 (7)
Subtotal 9,609 (2,827)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 557,243 7,256 (6,419)

Interest rate options 6,383 113 (113)
Subtotal 7,369 (6,532)
Total 16,978 (9,359)

(2) Hedge accounting
Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits
issued by the Group as presented in “Due to Customers” in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2022, the notional amount of the
Group amounted to RMB8,282 million (31 December 2021: RMB7,523 million).

The Group's fair value changes on hedge instruments and the net gain or loss of hedged items arising from hedging risks, as well as the hedging ineffectiveness
portion recognized from changes in fair value gain or loss are not material.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks, with the hedged items being borrowings from
other banks for the Group's leasing business. The Group also uses cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable
to interest rate risks and exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being the bonds issued by the Group’s subsidiary CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. As at 31 December
2022, the notional amount of two hedge business mentioned above amounted to RMB17,396 million and nil, respectively (31 December 2021: RMB26,024 million
and RMB875 million, respectively).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging
and the profit or loss relating to the ineffective portion were insignificant.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 404,935 494,383
Others 1,322 2,963
Subtotal 406,257 497,346
Accrued interests 116 174
Total 406,373 497,520

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 - -
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 (1,550) (2,306)
Subtotal (1,550) (2,308)
Financial assets held under resale agreements, net 404,823 495,214

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

-
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21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(1) The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 13,851,010 12,746,593
At fair value through profit or loss (b) 48,097 45,073
Loans and advances to customers, net 13,899,107 12,791,666

(@) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost is as follows:

As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 14,222,605 13,020,110
Finance lease receivables and others 204,533 199,479
Subtotal 14,427,138 13,219,589
Accrued interests 43,075 30,902
Total 14,470,213 13,250,491
Stage 1 12,892,388 11,915,177
Stage 2 1,344,107 1,205,460
Stage 3 233,718 129,854

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (209,408) (192,457)
Stage 2 (254,675) (229,513)
Stage 3 (155,120) (81,928)
Subtotal (619,203) (503,898)
Loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost, net 13,851,010 12,746,593

(b) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As at 31 December

Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 47,786 42,909
Fair value change 311 2,164
Total 48,097 45,073

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2022 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 8,489 (8,489) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (18,017) 28,073 (10,056) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (8) (57,215) 57,223 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 44,932 19,506 4 64,442
Remeasurement (a) 3,076 48,743 40,845 92,664
Mature or reverse (22,645) (13,259) (16,918) (52,822)
Write-off - (148) (9,612) (9,760)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 6,255 6,255
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (848) (848)
Foreign exchange differences 1,124 7,951 6,299 15,374

As a 31 December 2022 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203
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As at 1 January 2021 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 17,706 (17,706) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (20,124) 23,255 (3,131) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (8,590) 8,590 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 28,013 23 9 28,045
Remeasurement (a) 61,204 14177 22,981 98,362
Mature or reverse (17,761) (22,158) (12,464) (52,383)
Write-off - - (10,494) (10,494)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 5,976 5,976
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (643) (643)
Foreign exchange differences (792) (4,142) (1,289) (6,223)
As a 31 December 2021 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898

(a) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of Probability of Defaults (PDs) and Loss Given Defaults (LGDs); transfers
among Stage 1, Stage 2 and 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant change of credit impairment in the period, and the consequent “set up” (or

“set down”) between 12-month and lifetime ECL.

(i) In 2022 major changes in the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers that have a great impact on the Group's credit loss allowance

includes:

As at 1 January 2022, the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 accounted for 90% of total beginning balance of loans and
advances to customers. The changes of the Group’s ECL of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 were mainly driven by a net increase of nearly 6% in

the corresponding gross amount;

As at 1 January 2022, the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 2 accounted for 9% of total beginning balance of loans and

advances to customers. Approximately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage 1 transferred to Stage 2 in 2022;

As at 1 January 2022, the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 3 accounted for 1% of total beginning balance of loans and
advances to customers. Approximately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage 2 transferred to Stage 3 in 2022. Such increase was offset by the decrease
resulting from write-offs and recovery of approximately 20% of the beginning balance of Stage 3 loans and advances to customers.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of the loans and advances to customers of which credit loss allowances were transferred
from Stage 3 to Stage 2, and from Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, which due to the modification of contractual cash flows but not resulting in derecognition

were not significant.

@

-~

Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by

installment, if any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.

As at 31 December 2022

Past due

Unsecured loans 10,671 9,323 14,220 626 34,840
Guaranteed loans 3,982 2175 491 730 7,378
Loans with collateral
Loans secured by collateral 22,873 1,396 18,721 16,049 59,039
Pledged loans 26,825 2,194 5,198 5,021 39,238
Total 64,351 15,088 38,630 22,426 140,495
As at 31 December 2021
Unsecured loans 6,042 782 13,296 508 20,628
Guaranteed loans 815 328 7,028 - 8,171
Loans with collateral
Loans secured by collateral 11,236 9,742 35,863 6,362 63,203
Pledged loans 4,265 1,145 6,565 3,457 15,432
Total 22,358 11,997 62,752 10,327 107,434

-
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22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss

Government and quasi-government bonds 4,241 11,861
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 60,308 49,646
Corporate bonds 17,024 17,358
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 68,507 171,243
Asset management plans 368 391
Stock and fund investments 16,568 16,425
Wealth management products issued by other banks 3,450 4,542
Other equity investments 760,072 733,860
Subtotal 930,538 1,005,326

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) (a)

Corporate bonds 576 573
Asset-backed securities = 51
Asset management plans 14 16
Subtotal 590 640
Total 931,128 1,005,966

(a) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss primarily include investments in bonds with funds from investors of wealth management
products, which were issued by the Group before 2019.

23.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 826,566 1,038,916
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 500 500
Corporate bonds 103,989 95,348
Investments in trust plans and others 3,220 3,208
Subtotal 934,275 1,137,972
Accrued interests 13,097 15,949
Total 947,372 1,163,921

Stage 1 945,348 1,151,761

Stage 2 - -

Stage 3 2,024 2,160

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (10,209) (5,214)
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 (1,806) (1,790)
Subtotal (12,015) (7,004)
Debt instruments at amortized cost, net 935,357 1,146,917

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2020, transfer among stages of the Group's debt instruments at amortized cost was not significant.
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2022 5,214 - 1,790 7,004
Remeasurement (a) 4,451 - 25 4,476
Mature or reverse (52) - - (52)
Transfer in/transfer out - - (11) (11)
Foreign exchange differences 596 - 2 598
As at 31 December 2022 10,209 - 1,806 12,015
As at 1 January 2021 5,216 5 2,874 8,095
Transfers:

Stage 2 to Stage 3 - 5) 5 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 86 - - 86
Remeasurement (a) 71 - 20 91
Mature or reverse (47) - (574) (621)
Transfer out - - (537) (537)
Foreign exchange differences (112) - 2 (110)
As at 31 December 2021 5,214 - 1,790 7,004

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Government and quasi-government bonds 429,534 223,971
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 6,797 9,345
Corporate bonds 162,708 81,474
Asset-backed securities 285 281
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 414,787 446,527
Subtotal 1,014,111 761,598
Accrued interests 8,388 4,964
Total 1,022,499 766,562
Stage 1 1,022,466 766,460
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 33 102

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Listed equity 3,354 4,060
Unlisted equity 2,000 2,000
Total 5,354 6,060
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, total 1,027,853 772,622

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of non-trading equity instruments at FVTOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in
fair value of such instruments will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2022 117 - 1,034 1,151
Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 3 9) - 9 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 56 - = 56
Remeasurement (a) 9 - 281 290
Repayment and transfer out (46) - - (46)
Foreign exchange differences 1 - - 1
As at 31 December 2022 128 - 1,324 1,452

As at 1 January 2021 74 - 726 800
Originated or purchased financial assets 51 - - 51
Remeasurement (a) 23 - 323 346
Repayment and transfer out (31) - (15) (46)
As at 31 December 2021 117 - 1,034 1,151

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

25.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures 458 443

Net 458 443

26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December

Cost (a) 162,655 137,984

Accumulated depreciation (a) (33,776) (25,987)

Allowance for impairment losses (a) (6,573) (3,088)

Fixed asset held for disposal 702 622

Total 123,008 109,531
(a) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of property and equipment are consisted of the

following:

Cost

As at 31 December 2021 22,323 3,413 28,401 82,403 1,444 137,984

As at 31 December 2022 22,898 3,588 34,895 99,657 1,617 162,655

Accumulated depreciation

As at 31 December 2021 (7,422) (2,736) (1,872) (13,957) = (25,987)

As at 31 December 2022 (8,624) (2,797) (3,623) (18,732) = (33,776)

Allowance for impairment losses

As at 31 December 2021 (67) (15) (325) (2,642) (39) (3,088)

As at 31 December 2022 (72) (17) (575) (5,873) (36) (6,573)

Net book value

As at 31 December 2021 14,834 662 26,204 65,804 1,405 108,909

As at 31 December 2022 14,202 774 30,697 75,052 1,581 122,306
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27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 174,366 138,127
Deferred tax liabilities (8,136) (8,274)
Net 166,230 129,853

(1) Movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 129,853 119,526
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) 36,783 11,228
Charged to other comprehensive income 678 (947)
Others (1,084) 46
As at 31 December 166,230 129,853

(2) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are attributable to
the following items:

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 628,362 157,090 515,195 128,799
Fair value changes of financial instruments 60,542 15,219 56,078 13,971
Provisions 23,118 5,779 17,106 4277
Others 2,237 470 1,580 358
Subtotal 714,259 178,558 589,959 147,405
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of financial instruments (42,934) (10,733) (61,835) (15,458)
Others (8,729) (1,595) (15,582) (2,094)
Subtotal (51,663) (12,328) (77,417) (17,552)
Net 662,596 166,230 512,542 129,853

As at 31 December 2022, there were no significant deferred income taxes unrecognized.

-



' 162  ERF LR CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

28.0THER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Prepayment to vendors 11,889 12,263
Interest receivable 7,824 3,301
Right-of-use assets 1,890 2,019
Investment properties 1,876 2,428
Goodwill (1) 1,246 1,241
Long-term deferred expenses 859 751
Intangible assets 797 864
Deposits with securities exchange 260 261
Others 13,050 11,854
Total 39,691 34,982

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Interest receivable (15) (154)
thers 0 .
Oth (2,509) (3,046)
Subtotal (2,524) (3,200)
Other assets, net 37,167 31,782
(1) Goodwill

As at 31 December

Gross amount 1,246 1,241
Allowance for impairment losses (534) (534)
Net balances 712 707

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related cash-generating units. Based on the
result of the impairment testing, RMB534 million impairment losses on goodwill were recognized as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB534 million).

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 2,472,383 2,337,623
Other domestic financial institutions 31,552 20,719
Overseas banks 29,854 30,093
Other overseas financial institutions 103 4916
Subtotal 2,533,892 2,393,350
Accrued interests 2,182 2,164

Total 2,636,074 2,395,514
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30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 485,154 370,163
Overseas banks and other financial institutions 55,733 56,288
Foreign governments 28,941 20,777
Subtotal 569,828 447,228
Accrued interests 3,034 1,733
Total 572,862 448,961

The collateral pledged under borrowings from governments and financial institutions is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 14,161 55,426
Overseas banks 24,471 14,218
Subtotal 38,632 69,644
Accrued interests 237 36
Total 38,869 69,680

32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s financial liabilities measured at fair value though profit or loss mainly comprise of the borrowing with
conversion options from non-financial enterprises.

33.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 14,937 21,188
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 430 -
Subtotal 15,367 21,188
Accrued interests 25 17
Total 15,392 21,205

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

34.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 949,186 854,627
Term deposits 110,442 118,332
Pledged deposits 1,426 2,903
Certificates of deposit 104,665 101,401
Subtotal 1,165,719 1,077,263
Accrued interests 2,005 1,933

Total 1,167,724 1,079,196

-
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35.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions (1) 11,730,446 11,142,456
Subordinated bonds issued @ 30,010 30,010
Tier-two capital bonds issued @) 134,665 84,222
Subtotal 11,895,121 11,256,688
Accrued interests 230,835 223,689
Total 12,125,956 11,480,377

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.

(1) Debt securities issued by financial institutions

As at 31 December 2022

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2022 2023-2065 1.65-5.90 10,488,749
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2021 2023-2037 2.76-4.27 1,063,885
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in domestic market 2021-2022 2023 0.80-2.80 10,445
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2022 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 17,284
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2022 2023-2037 0.00-5.47 108,255
Bonds issued by the Bank 11,688,618
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2014-2022 2023-2027 1.20-5.30 31,145
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2018-2022 2023-2027 2.65-4.50 14,477
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2022 2023-2024 3.05-3.40 899
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (4,693)
Debt securities issued by the Group 11,730,446

As at 31 December 2021

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2021 2022-2065 1.86-5.90 9,758,861
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2021 2022-2037 3.01-4.27 1,173,317
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in domestic market 2021 2022-2023 0.38-0.80 19,123
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2021 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 14,782
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2021 2022-2037 0.00-4.00 134,090
Bonds issued by the Bank 11,100,173
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2021 2022-2027 0.80-3.75 40,361
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2017-2018 2022-2023 4.50-4.70 9,989
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2019 2022 3.58 269
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (8,336)

Debt securities issued by the Group 11,142,456
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(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2022

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

As at 31 December 2021

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, the coupon rate of the bond remains unchanged.

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2022

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2018-2022 2028-2037 2.85-4.45 129,837
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,828
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 134,665

As at 31 December 2021

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2018-2020 2028-2030 3.88-4.45 79,807
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,415
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 84,222

The Group issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates in year 2018, 2020 and 2022. The Group has an option to redeem part or all of the
bond at face value upon the closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were
met, subject to regulatory approval. If the Group did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds
when regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.

36.0THER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Deferred government subsidies for education loans 24,359 27,628
Provision for loss on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 23,361 17,193
VAT and other taxes payable 12,431 10,094
Amounts received in advance 10,116 6,694
Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 9,328 13,454
Security deposits for leasing 7,242 7,221
Leases liabilities 6,501 3,619
Accrued staff cost 3,352 3,270
Maintenance deposits from lessees 2,344 1,604
Payables for security brokerage service 71 45
Others 9,104 6,843

Total 108,209 97,565

-



"

166 ERFALRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

37.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021

MOF 153,908 36.54
Huijin 146,092 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.59
Total 421,248 100.00

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no change in the Bank's equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.

38.CAPITAL RESERVE

As at 31 December

Capital premium 182,650 182,650

39.INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

As at 1 January (11,547) (14,755)

Amount of loss of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI (8,529) 2,930
- Net gain on investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss on disposal - 4
- Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 244 233

Amount of loss of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVTOCI (621) 891
Less: income tax effect 829 (850)
As at 31 December (14,624) 11,647

40.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAP, to statutory
surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank's share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to
statutory surplus reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated loss of the Bank or to increase the
Bank's share capital upon approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after
such capitalization. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As at 31 December

The Bank (a) 255,123 253,382
Subsidiaries (b) 5,302 5,137
Total 260,425 258,519

(a) Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012,
the Bank is required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than
1.5% of the outstanding balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

(b) Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its profit for the
year as general reserves.

41.0THER RESERVE

Other reserve includes remeasurement of employee benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges.
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42.RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 1 January 465,883 434,686
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 82,728 78,960
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (a) (7,272) (6,420)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve (b) (i) (6,419) (9,083)
Appropriation to general reserve (b) (i) (1,914) (9,553)
Dividends (b) (i) (19,740) (22,707)
Others 510 -
As at 31 December 513,776 465,883

(a) Profit appropriation for 2022

The Bank appropriated RMB7,272 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2022. Other proposal for profit appropriations of the
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 is pending for approval by the Board of Directors.

(b) Profit appropriation for 2021

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 20 December 2022, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approved as following:

(i)  An appropriation of RMB6,419 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

(i) An appropriation of RMB1,741 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

(iiiy A cash dividend of RMB19,740 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2021 which has been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. As ended 31 December 2022, the cash dividend has been paid.

(c) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, retained earnings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank's subsidiaries that attributable to the Bank amounting
RMB8,529 million and RMB6,730 million.

43.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. 10,252 9,805
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. 12,205 10,718
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. 3,298 3,311
Total 25,755 23,834

44.CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(1) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

As at 31 December

Balance with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 141,569 160,878

Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

Financial assets held under resale agreements 404,707 488,162
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 118,323 105,391
Investments in government bonds 1,784 1,950

Total 666,383 756,381

-
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STRUCTURED ENTITIES

Consolidated structured entities

Structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed by
the Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able to use its
power to affect the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities. Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities referred to above totaled RMB14,600 million (31 December 2021: RMB20,687
million).

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

(a) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products,
asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds. The Group has no plans to provide financial or other support to these unconsolidated
structured entities.

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets of unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB162,668 million
(31 December 2021: RMB134,603 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s share in these structured entities amounted to RMB8,491 million (31 December
2021: RMB7,533 million). These amounts represented the Group’s maximum exposure to these structured entities.

(b) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the third party

The Group classifies its interest held in other structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2022, the information on the amount of total
assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available from the public domain.

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of structured entities issued by other institutions held by the Group amounted to RMB20,040 million (31 December 2021:
RMB22,961 million). Among them, the balance reported on trading assets and other financial assets amounted to RMB19,755 million (31 December 2021:
RMB22,640 million), the balance reported on the investment on debt instruments at amortized cost amounted to nil (31 December 2021: RMB91 million), and
the balance reported on the investment on debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to RMB285 million (31 December
2021: RMB230 million).

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group
assessed among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the
assets and whether it has relinquished its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Note 3 (13) (h) and Note 4(4).

As at 31 December 2021, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB148 million
(31 December 2021: RMB511 million), which retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and therefore has not been
derecognized in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no continuing involvement in these assets. And the Group had no balance in respect of loans transferred
that qualified for full derecognition.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the
Group's management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office
level. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group's main operating
segments are set out below:

Banking operations

This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending, deposits,
agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services. Debt issuance is the major
source of funding to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations primarily include money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond
investments, customer-based interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.

Equity investment
This segment consists of equity investment activities.
Leasing operations

This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which the Group acts as a lessor.

Securities operations
This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.
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Interest income 623,239 766 10,758 1,128 (2,611) 633,280
Interest expense (454,946) (1,903) (8,207) (531) 2,617 (462,970)
Net interest income 168,293 (1,137) 2,651 597 6 170,310
Include: Net interest income from customers 167,271 (64) 2,726 377 - 170,310
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,022 (1,073) (175) 220 -
Net fee and commission income 609 592 (51) 373 (19) 1,504
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 559 592 (10) 363 - 1,604
Inter-segment net fee and commission 50 - (41) 10 (19) -
Other income, net (a) 47,415 6,300 7,812 681 (933) 61,275
Operati.ng expenses and credit impairment and other (128,631) (980) (5,354) (1,096) 119 (135,942)
impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 87,686 4,775 4,958 665) (827) 97,147
As at 31 December 2022
Segment assets 17,651,016 226,772 352,886 43,714 (205,671) 18,068,717
Unallocated assets 174,366
Total assets 18,243,083
Segment liabilities 16,322,299 62,195 318,893 28,126 (102,147) 16,629,366
Unallocated liabilities 8,136
Total liabilities 16,637,502
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 2,006 (137) 5,381 60 122 7,432
Capital expenditure 647 315 14,059 9 - 15,030
Credit Impairment losses 113,425 4 1,227 548 222 115,426
Other impairment losses on assets 1 - 3,030 - - 3,031
Credit commitments 3,737,608 244 - - (9,000) 3,728,852

Interest income 591,113 746 10,131 1,257 (2,114) 601,133
Interest expense (448,833) (2,021) (8,088) (715) 2,156 (457,501)
Net interest income 142,280 (1,275) 2,043 542 42 143,632
Include: Net interest income from customers 141,120 87 2,123 302 - 143,632
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,160 (1,362) (80) 240 42 -
Net fee and commission income 868 301 (82) 351 5 1,443
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 810 301 (13) 345 - 1,443
Inter-segment net fee and commission 58 - (69) 6 5 -
Other income, net (a) 17,678 17,938 8,075 243 (1,044) 42,890
Operatilng expenses and credit impairment and other (88.917) (320) (4.500) (850) (296) (94,883)
impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 71,909 16,644 5,536 286 (1,293) 93,082
As at 31 December 2021
Segment assets 16,619,924 217,855 340,163 41,540 (189,668) 17,029,814
Unallocated assets 138,127
Total assets 17,167,941
Segment liabilities 15,458,288 64,002 309,909 26,082 (236,894) 15,621,387
Unallocated liabilities 8,274
Total liabilities 15,629,661
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,692 231 4,349 68 (122) 6,218
Capital expenditure 593 1 24,551 16 - 25,161
Credit Impairment losses 74,037 (504) 2,443 270 396 76,642
Other impairment losses on assets 2 - 1,067 - - 1,069
Credit commitments 3,555,880 244 - - (19,376) 3,536,748

(a) Other income includes net trading and foreign exchange gain/(loss), net gain on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, net
gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost, dividend income, net gain on investment securities, other income and share of profit of

associates and joint ventures.

-
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48.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of
transactions with the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 56,248 80,734

Interest rate range (%) 1.99-4.42 0.00-4.68

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,137 2,294
Net trading gain 74 45
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. Its principal activities are equity
investments as authorized by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the
obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital
of the Bank.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 1,706 2,992
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 83,106 49,833
Interest rate range (%) 2.15-4.23 2.15-4.38

Year ended at 31 December

Interest income 2,240 1,647

Net trading gain 78 96

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under
normal commercial terms.

—_

3) Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood’)

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. Its principal activities are domestic and overseas
investments in project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment management.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Buttonwood owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Transactions with Buttonwood and transactions with entities controlled or joint controlled by Buttonwood are carried out in the Group's ordinary course of
business under normal commercial terms.

Transaction with subsidiaries
The carrying amount of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank's statement of financial position is as follows:

o
£y
=

As at 31 December

Assets

Placements with banks and other financial institutions 4,959 -
Derivative financial assets 1 19
Loans and advances to customers 41,406 42175
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 126
Other assets 22 4
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 9,771 103
Derivative financial liabilities 15 -
Due to customers 121,920 109,497
Debt securities issued 4,569 8,269
Other liabilities 6 22

As at 31 December 2022, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to subsidiaries were RMB9,000 million
(31 December 2021: RMB19,376 million).
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Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,816 1,685
Interest expense (1,003) (693)
Fee and commission income 60 70
Fee and commission expense (10) (GR))]
Dividend income 7,863 10,517

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

(5) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The Group’s
transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 were not significant.

(6) Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material transactions with key management personnel.

(7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from the
obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.

49.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(1) Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals,
management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating result of
the Group.

(2) Credit commitments

As at 31 December

Loan commitments 3,716,738 3,615,207
Letters of guarantee issued 3,703 9,262
Bank acceptance 6,375 8,700
Letters of credit issued 2,036 3,579
Total 3,728,852 3,536,748

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB50,793 million (31 December 2021:
RMB54,294 million), with the remainder of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.

(3) Capital commitments

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

- equity instruments 47,833 38,440
- property and equipment 38,001 37,911
Total 85,834 76,351

The Group’s capital commitments of property and equipment are mainly property and equipment for lease. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s capital
commitments of property and equipment for lease were RMB37,333 million (31 December 2021: RMB37,202 million).
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(4) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

2021

Contractual amount 28,014 30,184

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's finance lease commitments were all within one year.

(5) Collateral

(a) Assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December

2021

Bonds 18,611 22,792

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 500 -

As at 31 December 2022, the principal of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB15,367 million (31 December 2021:
RMB21,188 million) as set out in Note 33. All repurchase agreements were due within 5 years from the effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables and leased assets under operating lease, where the Group was a lessor, were pledged as collateral for
borrowings from other banks. As at 31 December 2022, carrying amounts of these collateral amounted to RMB158,952 million (31 December 2021: RMB71,406
million).

As at 31 December 2022, certain bonds were pledged as collateral for due to customers by the Group, of which carrying amounts was RMB2,001 million.

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20). The Group did not hold any
collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

50.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

@

-

The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports on these financial risks or the combinations
of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a core characteristic of a financial undertaking, and business operations cannot be carried out
without being exposed to operating risks. The Group’s aim is, therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns, and minimize the
potential adverse effects these risks may have on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate debts with different maturities, and earns spread income by investing these
funds in medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors, basic industries and pillar industries. The Group seeks to increase its profitability by
minimizing the funding costs as it issues different types of bonds, where feasible under market conditions, to meet its asset and liability management needs
and funding needs.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions including, among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate swaps, interest rate
floor options, for risk management purposes as well as to meet the needs of its customers.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in its risk management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation of the risk
limits in reliance of reliable and timely information from its information systems, as part of its efforts to identify and analyze risks. The Group regularly reviews
and continues to make improvement to its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and products, and incorporate best practices.
The most important types of financial risks to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group’s business, management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances, and investment activities including debt instruments and derivatives.
Off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, also expose the Group to credit risk.

In accordance with the CBIRC’s regulatory guidelines on the internal credit rating approach, and in light of its unique business features, the Group has
established its credit rating framework, including credit rating methodologies, procedures, control and management, data collection and IT infrastructure. It is a
two-dimensional risk rating framework that incorporates both customer credit ratings for their probabilities of default and the facility credit ratings for estimated
loss given default when the customers become default. To ensure the accuracy and comprehensiveness of the ratings, the Group has also established internal
guidelines and criteria for country rating, sovereign rating, regional rating and industry rating.



(a) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures
on the entire credit process, including credit due diligence and loan
applications, credit review and approval, loan disbursement, post-lending
monitoring and non-performing loan management. By applying strict
and standardized credit operational procedures, the Group strives
to strengthen its end-to-end credit management for pre-lending due
diligence, credit rating, review and approval, disbursement review
and approval, and post-lending monitoring, improve the mitigating
effectiveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal of
non-performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management
systems, as part of its efforts to comprehensively enhance its credit risk
management capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when it comes
to the conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that
it cannot reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of the financial
asset. Indicators that it has become impossible to reasonably expect to
recover a financial asset, in whole or in part, include: (1) enforcement has
been completed; and (2) the Group has no other recovery alternative but
to foreclose and dispose of the collateral, and does not expect the value
of the collateral to fully cover the principal and interest of the financial
asset.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit assets, the Group is
also exposed to credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and
it manages its risk exposures on its treasury operations by carefully
screening counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing
credit risk and investment returns, adopting rating-based underwriting
by comprehensively considering the internal and external credit rating
information, and reviewing and adjusting credit limits in a timely manner
through limit management systems. In addition, the Group also provides
off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantee services to
customers, which may expose the Group to the risk of having to make
payments on behalf of customers in case they default, where the risk
approximates that of a loan. For these operations, the Group adopts risk
control procedures and policies similar to those applicable to the credit
business to minimize their credit risk

(b) Collateral

The Group has adopted a series of credit risk mitigation policies and
measures, including the requirement for collateral, the most widely used
and traditional measure. The Group has developed operational guidelines
for the acceptability of specific assets pledged as collateral and their
capability to mitigate credit risk, and regularly reviews the assessment
results of the collateral

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as
toll collection rights, real estates, land use rights, equity securities, cash
deposits and equipment, collaterals held for financial assets other than
loans and advances to customers are dependent on the nature of the
financial instruments. Debt instruments are generally unsecured, but for
asset-backed securities and other similar instruments, they are generally
secured by pools of financial assets. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
held no significant foreclosed assets.

(c) Credit ratings

The Group uses internal client credit ratings to reflect the probability
of default (PD) assessments of individual counterparties, and employs
different internal rating models for different types of counterparties.
Borrower information and specific information (e.g., the borrower’s
revenue and the industry/sector it operates in) is incorporated into
the rating models, and also includes external data of the borrower as
supplementary information. In addition, the models also fully consider the
expert judgments of credit and risk management officers, thus enabling
the credit ratings to capture factors that may not have been considered by
other sources.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The Group applies ECL models to calculate the credit loss allowance for
its debt financial instruments carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI, as
well as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The method
applied by the Group in assessing the expected credit loss of its financial
assets is a risk parameters model.

For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of
expected credit loss, the group uses a “3-Stage” model to measure the
credit loss allowance and ECL:
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Stage 1: A financial instrument whose credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition,
but it is not considered as a financial instrument with credit impairment.

Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred.

A Stage 1 financial instrument credit loss allowance is measured at an
amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument
in the next 12 months. Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall
have their credit loss allowances measured at an amount equivalent to the
expected credit loss of the financial instrument expected to arise over its
remaining duration.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex models and assumptions in calculating the expected credit
loss. These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
default by customers and the corresponding loss). In assessing the
expected credit risks in accordance with accounting standards, the Group
uses judgments, assumptions and estimates where appropriate, including:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics;

- Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters;

- Determination of the criteria for SICR;
- Definition of default and credit impairment;

- Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis,
a grouping of exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk
characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous.
In performing this grouping, the Group uses information such as the
type of borrower, industry, usage, and type of collateral to ensure the
reasonableness of its credit risk grouping.

Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and
whether a financial asset has become credit-impaired, the Group
recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss
for the next 12 months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key
parameters of ECL measurement include possibility of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The Group establishes
its PD, LGD and EAD based on the internal rating system currently used
for risk management purposes. In accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 9, the Group performs quantitative analyses of historical statistics
(such as counterparty ratings, guarantee methods and collateral types,
repayment methods, etc.) and forward-looking information.

The parameters are defined as follows:

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation, either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. The definition of default refers to
the failure to pay the debt as agreed in the contract or other violations
of the debt contract that have a significant impact on the normal debt
repayment.

LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default (EAD).

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time
of default.

.
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The group uses an internal credit rating to track the default probability
assessment results of a single counterparty and adopts different internal
rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrowers and
specific loan information collected at the time of a loan application are
incorporated into the rating model. The group regularly monitors and
reviews the assumptions associated with the calculation of expected
credit loss, including the probability of default and changes in value of the
collateral over each period.

In 2022, no significant changes were made to the estimated methodology
or key assumptions.

Determination of the criteria for SICR

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition at
each balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging an assessment of
its financial assets, the Group thoroughly considers various reasonable
and supportable criteria that may reflect whether or not there has been
a significant change in their credit risk. Key factors considered include
regulatory and operating environments, internal and external credit ratings,
solvency, viability as a going concern, terms of loan contracts, repayment
behaviors, among others. The Group compares the risk of default of
financial instruments on the reporting date against that on the initial
recognition date in order to determine the changes of default risk.

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to help determine
whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since its initial recognition. The criteria include changes in the borrower’s
PD, changes in its credit risk rating and other factors. The Group decided
that credit risk has significantly increased if contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. As of the report date, low credit risk financial instruments
with a high credit rating (internal rating above admittance threshold) are
deemed to have a low credit risk and no assessment is performed as
to whether the credit risk on the report date has significantly increased
compared with the initial recognition.

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has provided
credit facilities for temporary deferral in principal repayment and interest
payment to some of the borrowers affected by the epidemic in accordance
with the government's regulations. For above credit facilities, the Group
insists on substantial risk judgment, and comprehensively considers
the changes of the borrower's operating ability, solvency and epidemic
situation, so as to assess whether the credit risk of related financial
instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Definition of default and credit impairment

The criteria used by the Group to determine whether a credit impairment
occurs under IFRS 9 is consistent with the internal credit risk management
objectives. In assessing whether a borrower has become credit-impaired,
the Group mainly considers the following quantitative and qualitative
factors:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation
to interest or principal payment, or the borrower is overdue for more
than 90 days in any principal, advances, interest or investment in
corporate bonds due to the Group;

-  The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit loss.

The credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking
information. Through the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies
the key economic indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of various
business types, including macroeconomic index, Enterprise prospect
index and Real estate index, etc. The impact of these economic indicators
on the PDs and the LGDs varies from one type of business to another.
The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert
forecasts and statistical analyses to determine the relationships between
these economic indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The Group assesses
and forecasts these economic indicators at least on an annual basis,
calculates the best estimates for the future, and regularly reviews the
assessment results.

Based on statistical analyses and expert judgements, the Group
determines the weightings of the optimistic scenario, base scenario and
pessimistic scenario and the corresponding macro-economic forecast
under each scenario. The group’s multi-scenario economic forecasts
include the most likely base scenario and a number of possible scenarios
that reflect positive or negative trends in the economy. The group assesses
and determines the weighting of each scenario. The weighting of base
scenario is greater than the aggregated weightings of the rest scenarios.
The Group uses the weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1) or weighted lifetime
ECL (Stage 2 and Stage 3) to measure relevant impairment allowances.
These weighted credit losses are calculated by multiplying the expected
credit loss under each scenario by the corresponding scenario weighting.

ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial statements
reflect the effect of a range of possible economic outcomes, and the
weighted amount of the expected credit loss recognized in the financial
statements is generally higher than that calculated by using only the
benchmark scenario. In 2022, the Group has taken into account different
macroeconomic scenarios, combined with the impact of factors such
as the Covid-19 epidemic on economic development trends, and made
forward-looking forecasts of macroeconomic indicators. Including:
quarter-on-quarter GDP growth, used to estimate ECL, ranges from 3.4%
to 6.6% in the neutral scenario for 2023.

At 31 December 2022, the Group concluded that three scenarios are
appropriate, being the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic
scenario. As at 31 December 2022, the incremental impact to the credit
loss allowance of using the probability-weighted ECL against the base
scenario was less than 5%.

Scenario weightings

Scenario weighting is one of the important methods of sensitivity analysis.
The decremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase
of probability-weighting of the optimistic scenario and a 10% decrease of
the probability-weighting of the base case scenario when measuring the
ECL derived from using aforesaid three scenarios. The incremental impact
would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase on probability-weighting
of the pessimistic scenario and a 10% decrease on probability-weighted
of the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using
aforesaid three scenarios.

The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3

At each measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of
each future period related to credit-impaired financial assets. The cash
flows are discounted and aggregated to determine the present value of
the assets’ future cash flows.
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(e) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks 113,857 92,562
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 113,326 195,044
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 471,537 371,086
Derivative financial assets 11,093 16,978
Financial assets held under resale agreements 404,823 495,214
Loans and advances to customers
Financial investments
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 13,899,107 12,791,666
Financial Investments 756,510 829,888
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 755,920 829,248
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 590 640
Debt instruments at amortized cost 935,357 1,146,917
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,022,499 766,562
Others 11,571 6,097
Subtotal 17,739,680 16,712,014
Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments
Loan commitments 3,716,738 3,515,207
Letters of guarantee issued 3,703 9,262
Bank acceptance 6,375 8,700
Letters of credit issued 2,036 3,579
Subtotal 3,728,852 3,536,748
Total 21,468,532 20,248,762

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are

based on carrying amounts of these assets.

(f) Credit commitments and provision
Change in provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 1 January 2022 4,019 12,930 244 17,193
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 (5,079) 5,079 - -
Transfers to Stage 1 879 (879) - -
Remeasurement (a) 6,910 4175 - 11,085
Charge for the year 3,008 - - 3,008
Mature or reverse (1,888) (6,600) - (8,488)
Foreign exchange differences 31 532 - 563
As at 31 December 2022 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

___-

As at 1 January 2021 2,596 12,564 550 15,710
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 (168) 168 - -
Remeasurement (a) 354 (1) 2 355
Charge for the year 1,943 2,085 - 4,028
Mature or reverse (694) (1,753) (304) (2,751)
Foreign exchange differences (12) (133) (4) (149)
As at 31 December 2021 4,019 12,930 244 17,193

(a) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of PDs and LGDs; transfer among Stage 1, Stage 2 and 3 due to
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the period, and the
consequent “set up” (or “set down”) between 12-month and lifetime ECL.

-
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(9) The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss
The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances to customers into “Low Risk”, “Medium Risk”, “High Risk”.

-  “Low Risk” exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of default and/or low levels of
expected loss.

- “Medium Risk” exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, with low default risk.
“High Risk” exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater concern.

The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss, unless otherwise stated, Stage 1 represents a
12-month expected credit loss, and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expected credit loss.

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 12,866,087 = = 12,866,087
Medium Risk = 1,338,103 = 1,338,103
High Risk = = 222,948 222,948
Total 12,866,087 1,338,103 222,948 14,427,138
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (209,408) (254,675) (155,120) (619,203)
Net 12,656,679 1,083,428 67,828 13,807,935

Credit Grade

Low Risk 11,892,965 - - 11,892,965
Medium Risk - 1,197,129 - 1,197,129
High Risk - - 129,495 129,495
Total 11,892,965 1,197,129 129,495 13,219,589
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (192,457) (229,513) (81,928) (503,898)
Net 11,700,508 967,616 47,567 12,715,691

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 945,348 - - 945,348
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 2,024 2,024
Total 945,348 - 2,024 947,372
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (10,209) - (1,806) (12,015)
Net 935,139 - 218 935,357

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,151,761 - - 1,151,761
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 2,160 2,160
Total 1,151,761 - 2,160 1,153,921
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (5,214) - (1,790) (7,004)
Net 1,146,547 - 370 1,146,917

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,022,466 = = 1,022,466
Medium Risk = = = =
High Risk = = 33 33
Total 1,022,466 - 33 1,022,499

Expected credit loss on assets (128) - (1,324) (1,452)
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 766,460 - - 766,460
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 102 102
Total 766,460 - 102 766,562
Expected credit loss on assets (117) - (1,034) (1,151)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,568,268 = = 3,568,268
Medium Risk = 160,340 = 160,340
High Risk = = 244 244
Total 3,568,268 160,340 244 3,728,852

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,414,777 - - 3,414,777

Medium Risk - 121,727 - 121,727

High Risk - - 244 244

Total 3,414,777 121,727 244 3,536,748
Provision

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7,880 = = 7,880
Medium Risk - 15,237 - 15,237
High Risk = = 244 244
Total 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

Credit Grade

Low Risk 4,807 - - 4,807
Medium Risk - 12,930 - 12,930
High Risk - - 244 244
Total 4,807 12,930 244 17,981

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession of
collateral to mitigate potential credit loss. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential loss are shown below:

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 233,718 (155,120) 78,598 58,653
Debt instruments at amortized cost 2,024 (1,806) 218 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 33 (1,324) 33 -

Total 235,775 (158,250) 78,849 58,653

-
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Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 129,854 (81,928) 47,926 60,253
Debt instruments at amortized cost 2,160 (1,790) 370 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 102 (1,034) 102 -
Total 132,116 (84,752) 48,398 60,253

The fair value of collateral presented in the table above is up to the book value of the credit risk exposure. As at 31 December 2022, the quality of the Group’s
collateral or credit enhancement did not change significantly compared to prior year.

(h) Loans and advances to customers
The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

31 December 2022

Unsecured loans 546,288 1,381,615 2,229,330 4,157,133
Guaranteed loans 110,219 241,722 829,154 1,181,095
Loans secured by collateral 57,517 169,704 1,637,374 1,864,595
Pledged loans 13,096 48,844 7,210,161 7,272,101
Total 727,120 1,841,785 11,906,019 14,474,924

31 December 2021

Unsecured loans 411,358 1,002,629 1,904,140 3,318,127
Guaranteed loans 102,432 222,029 664,318 988,779
Loans secured by collateral 77,593 157,008 1,482,030 1,716,631
Pledged loans 15,142 53,730 7,170,089 7,238,961
Total 606,525 1,435,396 11,220,577 13,262,498

Loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Loans and advances to customers

Urban renewal 2,791,908 19 2,924,303 22
Road transportation 2,629,214 18 2,451,616 18
Wa&izigggservaﬁon, environmental protection and public 1,503,640 10 1.036,152 9
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 1,436,376 10 1,289,544 10
Railway transportation 1,096,774 8 945,765 7
Urban public transportation 1,062,034 7 956,820 7
Manufacturing industry 1,015,403 7 833,559 6
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 570,021 4 566,233 4
Other transportation 511,028 4 392,847 3
Mining industry 322,431 2 310,443 2
Education 281,996 2 253,652 2
Financial industry 149,456 1 212,995 2
Telzgcr)vrimlr(r;:nication and other information transmission 75.979 ] 83118 ]
Others 1,028,664 7 805,451 7

Total 14,474,924 100 13,262,498 100
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The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the terms of loans and advances provided to customers due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position which resulted in the borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations, with a view to maximising recovery. Such restructuring activities
include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness, etc. Restructuring measures are based on indicators or criteria
which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These measures are kept under continuous review. As at 31 December
2022, the Group's total restructured loans amounted to RMB69,939 million (31 December 2021: RMB47,870 million).

(i) Investment in debt instruments

Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2022

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 85,628 2,666 10 - 1,190,006 - 1,278,210
Financial institutions 77,448 728 3,364 2,727 - - 84,267
Corporates 271,008 2,646 717 262 - 3,571 278,204
Asset-backed securities 257 32 - - - - 289
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (a) 441,779 - 31,978 9,576 - - 483,333
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 3,450 3,450
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 1,316 1,316
Asset management plans - - - - - 382 382
Total 876,020 6,072 36,069 12,565 1,190,006 8,719 2,129,451

As at 31 December 2021

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 98,097 817 10 - 1,194,808 - 1,293,732
Financial institutions 64,408 987 4,846 3,885 - - 74,126
Corporates 182,518 4,269 - 2,759 - 2,757 192,303
Asset-backed securities 247 128 - - - - 375
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (a) 592,210 - 13,891 10,715 - - 616,816
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 4,542 4,542
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 960 960
Asset management plans - - - - - 407 407
Total 937,480 6,201 18,747 17,359 1,194,808 8,666 2,183,261

(a) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.
(b) Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBC, Huijin and policy banks of

China.

(c) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset
management plans, and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.

-
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() Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers by nature of counterparties:

31 December 2022

Balances with central banks 113,857 = = 113,857
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 113,326 - 113,326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 471,537 - 471,537
Derivative financial assets 4107 6,986 - 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 404,823 - 404,823
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 4,741 149,231 602,538 756,510
Debt instruments at amortized cost 838,377 514 96,466 935,357
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 435,092 421,954 165,453 1,022,499
Other financial assets 3,467 2,138 5,966 11,571
Total 1,399,641 1,670,509 870,423 3,840,573

31 December 2021

Balances with central banks 92,562 - - 92,562
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 195,044 - 195,044
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 371,086 - 371,086
Derivative financial assets 5,417 9,377 2,184 16,978
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 494,557 657 495,214
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 177,260 239,334 413,294 829,888
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,054,245 513 92,159 1,146,917
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 227,122 455,944 83,496 766,562
Other financial assets 2,102 1,495 2,500 6,097
Total 1,658,708 1,767,350 594,290 3,920,348
(3) Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of fluctuations in the Group’s on and off-balance sheet activities, arising from changes in market prices including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and stock and commodity prices. The Group’s major market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in it trading book
and banking book.

The objective of the Group's market risk management is to establish an effective market risk management system, which can fully identify, accurately measure,
continuously monitor and effectively control market risks in trading and non-trading businesses, and ensure that market risk exposures are controlled within an
acceptable range of the Group, and achieve a balance between risks and benefits.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors and its affiliated committees. The Governors on Risk Management supervise
overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market risks are effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book

The Group's exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and banking book.

Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held for trading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and
off-balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the Risk Management Department and the Business Development Department within
the scope of their respective roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department is responsible for managing the market risk of the whole bank, and
specifically manages the market risk of the treasury transaction business. The Business Development Department assumes the responsibility for the overall
asset and liability management as well as management of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in the banking book, and the periodical preparation of
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk reports related to banking book.

Market risk measurement and management approaches
Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.

Trading book

The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading book through exposure limit control, stop-loss limit control and sensitivity limit control.
The Group establishes appropriate risk limits considering various risk factors of market risk, business complexity and other factors. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for the identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of risk exposures from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement results to Risk Management Committee by means of market value revaluation, duration analysis, etc.
The Business Development Department is responsible for the accurate and timely identification and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk using gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis and other methods.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, please refer to Note 50 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 50 (3) (b) foreign exchange rate
risk (including trading book and banking book).
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(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk of the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the macro-economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBC. The PBC established
RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk, commercial and market factors.
In general, the interest rates of interest-bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the same direction.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based on assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and economic
value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging
instruments to mitigate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of trading book is mainly managed and monitored by using interest rate limits,
sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the sensitivity

of projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarizes the Group's financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity

dates.

Financial assets:

At 31 December 2022

Cash and balances with the central banks 109,410 - - - - 4,450 113,860
Dgposlts. with banks and other financial 101,591 3,311 B B B 8.424 113,326
institutions
Plgcemehts with banks and other financial 155,600 264,786 50,370 _ B 772 471537
institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 11,093 11,093
Financial assets held under resale 404,707 B B B B 116 404,823
agreements
Loans and advances to customers 4,350,965 8,185,972 261,212 229,094 828,789 43,075 13,899,107
Financial asser measured at fair value 31555 53.097 25 827 50,321 78,016 691,412 931.128
through profit or loss
Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 31,655 53,997 25,256 50,321 78,016 691,393 930,538
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Designated)) B B 71 19 90
Debt instruments at amortized cost 28,523 300,221 536,703 56,813 = 13,097 935,357
Financial assets avt fair value through other 195.035 350,580 297,364 102,073 69,059 13,742 1,027,853
comprehensive income
Other financial assets 270 - - - - 11,301 11,571
Total financial assets 5,377,665 9,158,867 1,171,476 438,301 975,864 797,482 17,919,655
Financial liabilities:
D?pOSItS. from banks and other financial 503,720 2,021,081 B B B 11,273 2,536,074
institutions
quroyvm‘gs from governments and financial 247,924 281,013 20,963 17,928 -~ 3,034 572,862
institutions
Placements from banks 22,850 13,339 1,785 92 566 237 38,869
Financial habmlt\es measured at fair value B B B B B 2,495 2,495
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 18,351 18,351
Financial assets sold under repurchase 15,208 159 B B B 05 15,302
agreements
Due to customers 1,066,631 78,877 12,033 4,074 2,110 3,999 1,167,724
Debt securities issued 921,232 987,506 5,022,845 4,263,996 699,542 230,835 12,125,956
Other financial liabilities 104 2 14 50 - 17,954 18,124
Total financial liabilities 2,777,669 3,381,977 5,059,640 4,286,140 702,218 288,203 16,495,847
Net interest repricing gap 2,599,996 5,776,890 (3,888,164) (3,847,839) 273,646 509,279 1,423,808

-
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31 December 2021

Within 3 5 15 months 1-5years  5-10 years S s Total
months 10 years bearing
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the central banks 85,786 - - - - 6,779 92,565
Dgpoglts_ with banks and other financial 132,486 43203 B _ _ 19,335 195,044
institutions
P\acemepts with banks and other financial 162,345 160.818 38338 _ _ 585 371,086
institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 16,978 16,978
Financial assets held under resale 494383 B B B B 831 495.214
agreements
Loans and advances to customers 4,435,990 7,265,345 239,544 125,226 670,945 54,616 12,791,666
Financial assets measured at fair value 279,338 4,461 14,949 1,829 81 705,308 1,005,966

through profit or loss

Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 279,093 4,461 14,571 1,829 81 705,291 1,005,326
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Designated) 245 B 378 - - 17 640
Debt instruments at amortized cost 7,868 205,071 630,649 196,861 90,210 16,258 1,146,917
FiZirrf;?;:;:jeaitnf%’s‘“e through other 349,273 157,785 199,062 41,344 14,009 11,149 772,622
Other financial assets 385 44 19 - - 5,649 6,097
Total financial assets 5,947,854 7,845,747 1,122,561 365,260 775,245 837,488 16,894,155
Financial liabilities:
D?E;isti:fi;zm banks and other financial 524,248 1,859,955 - - - 11,311 2,395,514
B?:Sotm?i%i;mm governments and financial 185,569 211,831 2,291 40,283 7,304 1,683 448,961
Placements from banks 65,070 1,739 1,839 403 993 36 69,680
ngﬂgmsg:‘li??r lrg::sured at fair value B B B _ ~ 2,085 2085
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 9,359 9,359
Fi;g?;i:its:ts sold under repurchase 20,940 o8 B _ _ 17 21,205
Due to customers 978,000 81,422 8,216 2,837 2,951 5,770 1,079,196
Debt securities issued 804,750 1,408,085 4,578,240 3,823,058 642,555 223,689 11,480,377
Other financial liabilities 124 501 726 - - 5,306 6,657
Total financial liabilities 2,678,701 3,563,781 4,591,312 3,866,581 653,403 259,256 15,513,034
Net interest repricing gap 3,369,153 4,281,966 (3,468,751) (3,501,321) 121,842 578,232 1,381,121

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on
the Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group’s net positions of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount,
and does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Net interest Ott.Ier
. comprehensive
income .
income
Increase 100 basis points 44,413 (25,932) 45,5637 (11,605)
Decrease 100 basis points (44,413) 28,593 (45,537) 12,342

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial
liabilities held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities
into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on financial assets at FVTOCI
held at the period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group's capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore, the above analysis may differ from the actual
situation. In addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other
comprehensive income of the Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the
risk management activities to mitigate the interest rate risk.
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(b) Foreign exchange rate risk
The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The Group'’s primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (“EUR”), Japanese Yen (‘JPY”) and, to a much
lesser extent, other currencies. The Group’s foreign currency exposures are mainly concentrated on USD. RMB depreciated by 0.5889 RMB/1 USD during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: appreciated by 0.1492 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency
exchange rates, and Earnings at Risk (“EaR”). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign
exchange risk to the extent possible.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group's assets and
liabilities presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 109,357 4,503 - 4,503 113,860
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 40,128 52,168 21,030 73,198 113,326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 367,542 91,602 12,393 103,995 471,537
Derivative financial assets 9,225 1,762 106 1,868 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements 404,823 - - - 404,823
Loans and advances to customers 12,880,055 848,826 170,226 1,019,052 13,899,107
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 901,318 27,206 2,604 29,810 931,128
/(—'[/)/Z/;;/nitzzjets at fair value through profit or loss 590 B B B 590
Debt instruments at amortized cost 840,271 95,086 - 95,086 935,357
F'Zi’ﬁﬁlei:iﬁie”:ﬁzzxzd at fair value through other 975,884 38,353 13,616 51,969 1,027,853
Others 7,271 4,044 256 4,300 11,571
Total financial assets 16,535,874 1,163,550 220,231 1,383,781 17,919,655
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,521,230 6,511 8,333 14,844 2,536,074
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 328,572 242,188 2,102 244,290 572,862
Placements from banks 14,153 15,238 9,478 24,716 38,869
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,494 1 - 1 2,495
Derivative financial liabilities 16,916 970 465 1,435 18,351
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 14,959 433 - 433 15,392
Due to customers 1,004,043 110,364 53,317 163,681 1,167,724
Debt securities issued 11,970,722 102,203 53,031 155,234 12,125,956
Others 15,443 1,174 1,507 2,681 18,124
Total financial liabilities 15,888,532 479,082 128,233 607,315 16,495,847
Net on-balance sheet position 647,342 684,468 91,998 776,466 1,423,808
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 341,191 (272,746) (66,697) (339,443) 1,748

Credit commitments 3,560,564 121,537 46,751 168,288 3,728,852

-
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As at 31 December 2021

Ae Us Ot e Tot
(RMB equivalent)  (RMB equivalent) Equivalent)
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with central banks 85,719 6,560 286 6,846 92,565
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 82,279 87,799 24,966 112,765 195,044
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 289,645 80,719 722 81,441 371,086
Derivative financial assets 13,342 2,19 1,440 3,636 16,978
Financial assets held under resale agreements 495214 - - - 495214
Loans and advances to customers 11,658,348 961,579 171,739 1,133,318 12,791,666
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 974,499 30,785 682 31,467 1,005,966
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 640 - - - 640
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,056,299 90,618 - 90,618 1,146,917
Fincin;ﬁ:;s;?;sv :ﬁiiﬁd at fair value through other 706511 60737 5374 66,111 772600
Others 4,002 1,805 290 2,095 6,097
Total financial assets 15,365,858 1,322,798 205,499 1,528,297 16,894,155
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,343,074 43,896 8,544 52,440 2,395,514
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 225,508 221,297 2,156 223,453 448,961
Placements from banks 8,503 53,537 7,640 61,177 69,680
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,084 1 - 1 2,085
Derivative financial liabilities 6,427 2,665 267 2,932 9,359
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 21,205 - - - 21,205
Due to customers 907,856 126,314 45,026 171,340 1,079,196
Debt securities issued 11,281,871 142,958 55,548 198,506 11,480,377
Others 4,153 2,030 474 2,504 6,657
Total financial liabilities 14,800,681 592,698 119,655 712,353 15,513,034
Net on-balance sheet position 565,177 730,100 85,844 815,944 1,381,121
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 299,286 (204,259) (57,906) (262,165) 37,121
Credit commitments 3,314,874 199,879 21,995 221,874 3,536,748

The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax arising from 1% possible movement of RMB spot and forward foreign exchange rates against
a basket of all other currencies on the net positions of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities and derivative instruments in the statement of financial
position. There is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income.
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As at 31 December As at 31 December
2022 2021

USD against RMB _ Profit before tax

1% appreciation 4127 5,263

1% depreciation (4,127) (5,263)

=

In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or loss due possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted
and do not take into account the following:

- changes in the Group's net position in USD subsequent to the balance sheet date;

- the impact on the customers' behavior due to the movement of the exchange rate; and

- the impact on market prices as a result of the movement of exchange rate.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity, however is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase

its assets as needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill
commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches include the
forecasting and monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2022, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through the issuance of financial bonds. In accordance with the approval from the CBIRC, all RMB
bonds issued by the Bank enjoy the same credit of policy financial bonds for a long time without the maturity date of debt credit, which enables the Bank to
continuously raise funds in the domestic markets by issuing new bonds.

Objectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current customer deposit, matured customer term deposits, repayment of debt
securities issued, loan drawdown, fulfil obligations under guarantees and other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and maturities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is an important mission of the Group. It is
impracticable for the Group to be completely matched in such positions since business transactions are often of uncertain terms and of different types. A
mismatched position might enhance profitability, but at the same time carries the risk of loss. The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions
within a reasonable range.

The Business Development Department and Treasury Department are the execution departments for detailed daily management. The Group's liquidity
management processes include:

- Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Monitoring the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;

- Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and

- Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to finance of new
debts in the market. In addition, experience shows that a certain level of matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will be renewed and not to be
withdrawn. Management maintains an appropriate level of highly liquid assets to address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of the committed funds under letters of guarantees or letters of credit issued. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since some of these commitments
will either expire, be terminated or not meeting requirements for drawdown due to customers' inability to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and
geographical area.

The Group's funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a presence
and participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs. The Group issues
fixed rate and floating rate debt securities each year. These debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or the bond holders to
redeem them prior to the bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. As at 31
December 2022, long-term (with a maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to RMB10.36 trillion, and other long-term
debts (include deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements and due to customers) amounted to RMB165.25 billion.

.
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The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or gross by
their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash flows of these financial
instruments by the Group may have different with the table as below:

As at 31 December 2022

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

— ~ 113,681 180 - - - - - 113,861

Deposits with banks and other 13,536 90,621 2,336 - 7,064 - - - 113,557
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other - - 115972 82067 208205 51,674 - - 477,918
financial institutions

Financial assets held under B B 404,911 B B a B B 404,911
resale agreements

Loans and advances o 56,325 ~ 136345 296,176 1,639,202 6,105694 4,678,759 6,950,197 19,862,698
customers

Financial assets measured at fair 4, ;7q 3,450 8604 43511 199251 191,504 108801 229,900 957,797
value through profit or loss

Debtinsiruments at amortized 2,024 - 407 32,794 233,050 594,644 162,614 ~ 1025533

cost

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other 5,357 - 97,962 96,300 372,152 340,496 123,427 91,026 1,126,720
comprehensive income

Other financial assets 1,261 6,145 45 2,896 1,193 63 16 30 11,649

Total non-derivative financial

assets 251,279 213,897 766,762 553,744 2,680,117 7,284,075 5,073,617 7,271,153 24,094,644

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

! I - 57,358 5,509 453,194 2,046,777 - - - 2,562,838
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments - - 30,315 154677 265007 118,552 24,667 = 593,218
and financial institutions

Placements from banks - - 11,560 11,491 13,810 2,058 96 611 39,626

F|n§nC|aI liabilities measlured at 82 B B B B B 2413 B 2,495
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under B B 14,057 1192 161 3 B a 15,410
repurchase agreements

Due to customers - 1,029,288 6,334 34,951 79,918 13,735 5,446 2,852 1,172,524

Debt securities issued - - 307,008 404,234 1,230,128 6,379,368 4,953,985 1,092,436 14,367,159

Other financial liabilities 1,941 3,424 99 26 2,677 9,380 571 12 18,130

Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 2,023 1,090,070 374,882 1,059,765 3,638,478 6,523,093 4,987,178  1,095911 18,771,400

Net position 249,256 (876,173) 391,880 (506,021)  (958,361) 760,982 86,439 6,175,242 5,323,244

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis:

Net inflow - - (153) (7) (297) (127) 94 61 (429)
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:

Total inflow - - 193,834 115,619 404,620 7,961 5 - 722,039

Total outflow - - (196,386)  (116,428)  (411,358) (7,634) (4) - (731,810)

Total derivative cash flows - - (2,705) (816) (7,035) 200 95 61 (10,200)
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As at 31 December 2021

Past due/ On demand Within 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over Total
undated month months months years years 10 years
Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central B 92,419 147 B B - B _ 92,566
banks

Deposits with banks and other 12,566 121,984 8,669 15,260 38,054 - - - 196,653
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other - - 115336 49113 173265 39470 - - 377,184
financial institutions

Financial assets held under 659 B 494,685 B B B _ _ 495,344
resale agreements

Loans and advances to 95,781 ~ 168,865 281,897 1500075 5566,693 4,544,671 6475459 18,633,441
customers

Financial assets measured at fair o4 cog 3,990 52,143 89,861 54438 123452 138,607 397,639 1,021,728
value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortized 854 - 831 15322 240,131 735315 220,422 97,268 1,310,143

cost

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other 6,060 - 117,243 222,850 176,051 229,190 46,974 21,478 819,846
comprehensive income

Other financial assets 75 3,447 47 453 48 1,873 124 30 6,097

Total non-derivative financial

assets 277,593 221,840 957,966 674,756 2,182,062 6,695,993 4,950,798 6,991,874 22,952,882

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

; R - 51,337 1,703 483,734 1,883,788 114 - - 2,420,676
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments - - 31,061 139425 201,035 72,229 11,579 - 455,319
and financial institutions

Placements from banks - - 35,062 30,074 1,855 2,204 439 650 70,284

quncwa\ liabilities meas.ured at 2085 B B B B B B B 2,085
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under B B 18,084 2,887 250 B B B 21021
repurchase agreements

Due to customers - 919,891 18,345 37,828 83,531 12,122 4,315 3,719 1,079,751

Debt securities issued - 365,879 191,168 1,697,860 5,878,325 4,511,951 1,050,538 13,695,721

Other financial liabilities 243 2,694 64 978 1,348 1,314 6 10 6,657

Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 2,328 973,922 470,188 886,094 3,869,667  5966,308 4,528,290 1,054,917 17,751,714

Net position 275,265 (752,082) 487,778 (211,338) (1,687,605) 729,685 422,508 5,936,957 5,201,168

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis:

Net inflow - - 102 8 (50) 475 526 320 1,381
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:

Total inflow - - 140,191 121,749 452,310 2,938 - - 717,188

Total outflow - - (139,998)  (120,493)  (444,063) (2,890) - - (707,444)

Total derivative cash flows - - 295 1,264 8,197 523 526 320 11,125
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Off-balance sheet items

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity
date.

As at 31 December 2022

Loan commitments 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,249 268,101 3,076,368 3,716,738
Letters of guarantee issued 5 - 256 3,442 - - 3,703
Bank acceptance 1,358 1,694 3,323 - - - 6,375
Letters of credit issued 298 109 1,461 168 - = 2,036
Total 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,859 268,101 3,076,368 3,728,852

As at 31 December 2021

Loan commitments 3,015 6,873 87,411 254,943 234,365 2,928,600 3,515,207
Letters of guarantee issued 1,441 114 2,141 3,566 2,000 - 9,262
Bank acceptance 507 1,640 6,553 - - - 8,700
Letters of credit issued 270 767 2,533 9 - - 3,579
Total 5,233 9,394 98,638 258,518 236,365 2,928,600 3,636,748

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market for
a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable market
data and relies as little as possible on the unobservable inputs. The valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants
could consider in setting a price, and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets of wealth
management business and the associated liabilities to investors in relation to the wealth management business. Fair value of securities investments
denominated in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debt investments
denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation results published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of derivatives is calculated by
applying discounted cash flow method or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. All significant inputs for the fair valuation of these financial assets and liabilities are
observable in the market.

Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses valuation
techniques to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies’ approach. The fair
value of these financial instruments based on unobservable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, including
credit risk of the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to comparable
companies and their performance indicators, etc.



(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:
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Financial assets

As at 31 December 2022

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives = 7,690 = 7,690
- Interest rate derivatives - 3,403 - 3,403
Loans and advances to customers - - 48,097 48,097
Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily
classified at fair value through profit or loss
- Bonds 264 80,831 478 81,573
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 68,507 - 68,507
- Stock and fund 8,736 617 7,215 16,568
- Wealth management products issued by other banks - - 3,450 3,450
- Equity investments 11,224 17,106 731,742 760,072
- Asset management plans - 368 - 368
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 576 - 576
- Asset management plans - 14 - 14
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Bonds 4,934 602,706 33 607,673
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 414,826 = 414,826
- Equity investments 3,354 - 2,000 5,354
Total 28,512 1,196,644 793,015 2,018,171
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - (2,495) (2,495)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (15,380) - (15,380)
- Interest rate derivatives - (2,971) - (2,971)
Total = (18,351) (2,495) (20,846)

-
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As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives - 9,609 - 9,609
- Interest rate derivatives - 7,369 - 7,369
Loans and advances to customers - - 45,073 45,073

Financial investment

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily
classified at fair value through profit or loss

- Bonds 4,249 73,748 868 78,865
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 171,243 - 171,243
- Stock and fund 5,489 867 10,069 16,425
- Wealth management products issued by other banks 72 - 4,470 4,542
- Equity investments 17,527 14,102 702,231 733,860
- Asset management plans 376 15 391
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 624 - 624
- Asset management plans - 16 - 16
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Bonds 19,399 300,517 103 320,019
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 446,543 - 446,543
- Asset management plans - - -
- Equity investments 4,060 - 2,000 6,060
Total 50,796 1,025,014 764,829 1,840,639
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (1) - (2,084) (2,085)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (2,827) - (2,827)
- Interest rate derivatives - (6,532) - (6,532)
Total (1) (9,359) (2,084) (11,444)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assets

As at 1 January 2022 45,073 717,653 2,103 764,829
Disposals - (15,873) - (15,873)
Additions 9,624 92,615 33 102,272
Settlements (4,614) (58,678) - (63,292)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (3,606) - (3,606)
Total loss recognized in

- Profit or loss (1,986) 8,846 (102) 6,860

- Other comprehensive income - 1,928 1) 1,825
As at 31 December 2022 48,097 742,885 2,033 793,015

Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in

- Profit or loss (1,986) 1,136 (102) (952)
- Other comprehensive income - 1,928 1) 1,727
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Financial assets

. . Financial assets
Financial assets X
Loans and at fair value

at fair value Total
advances to X through other ’ .
through profit ) financial assets
customers comprehensive
or loss .
income
As at 1 January 2021 42,964 762,324 2,967 808,255
Disposals - (16,396) - (16,396)
Additions 6,186 27,212 500 33,898
Settlements (4,740) (71,049) (1,527) (77,316)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (7,285) (16) (7,301)
Total loss recognized in
- Profit or loss 663 22,838 24 23,525
- Other comprehensive income - 9 155 164
As at 31 December 2021 45,073 717,653 2,103 764,829
Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in
- Profit or loss 663 18,003 - 18,666
- Other comprehensive income - 9 179 188

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

(i)  Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables due in one year within other assets and other liabilities.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate
the fair value.

(i) Debt investments

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using quoted market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take
into consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

(iii) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market
rates which are based on PBC'’s established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is
estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow
analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value.
(v) Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar
instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
Debt securities issued 12,125,956 12,438,951 11,480,377 11,672,243

(6) Capital management

Capital of the Group uses for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;
- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and
— to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management in accordance with the guidelines established
by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBIRC. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with
the CBIRC. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total capital of RMB1,834,519 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,509,019 million, total Core Tier 1 capital
RMB1,507,711 million, capital adequacy ratio 11.37%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.34%, Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.33%.
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